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IMPORTANT NOTICE

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee,
and the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company confirmed that there are no false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions in this interim
report and accept joint and several responsibilities for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of
the report.

If directors could not attend the Board meeting, their names

= should be listed

AHFESHR REEEEHK REEESHHRA WETEALS
Names of Positions of

directors who directors who Reasons for

could not attend did not attend not attending

the Board meeting the Board meeting the Board meeting Appointee
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Xiao Jianming Independent Office duty Li Dongru

non-executive

director
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The financial statements of the interim report of the Company
were unaudited, but were reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company.

Name of Chairman of the Company Wang Xing

Name of the person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs of the Company

Name of head of accounting Li Hongning

department (Accounting Supervisor)

Wang Xing, Chairman, Li Shunzhen, the person in charge
of accounting affairs, and Li Hongning, head of accounting
department (Accounting Supervisor), have declared that they
assured for the truthfulness and completeness of the financial
statements in the Interim Report.

There is no appropriation of non-operating fund by any controlling
shareholder or its related parties of the Company.

There is no external guarantee provided not in compliance
with the required decision-making procedures.

This interim report is prepared in both Chinese and English,
in the event that different interpretation occurs, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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(1) COMPANY INFORMA'I;I-bN-- v,
Name of the Company (Chinese)

T EERARKBRNDBRAR

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese)
E AR

Name of the Company (English)
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE
TOOL COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English)
kmtcl

Legal Representative
Wang Xing
(2) CONTACT PERSON AND CONTACT INFORMATION
Secretary to the Board
Name

Luo Tao

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-6166612

Facsimile number
86-871-6166288

E-mail

luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Securities Affairs Representative
Name

Wang Bihui

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-6166623

Facsimile number
86-871-6166288

E-mail
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn
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(4)

(5)

BASIC INFORMATION

Registered address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Post code of registered address
650203

Business address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Post code of business address
650203

Company’s website
www.kmtcl.com.cn

E-mail
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn

PLACE OF INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND
DOCUMENT INSPECTION

Designated newspapers for publishing
China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

Designated internet websites by China Securities Regulatory
Commission (CSRC) for publishing interim report
http://www.sse.com.cn

http://kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.hkex.com.hk

Interim report available at
Office Building, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province

SHARE LISTING

Particulars of the Company’s Shares

Class of Shares
A Shares

Stock Exchange
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
600806
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Class of Shares
H Shares

Stock Exchange
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
0300

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Date of Incorporation
19 October 1993

Place of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Date of First Change of Registration
29 March 2002

Date of Second Change of Registration
1 December 2007

Date of Third Change of Registration
11 October 2010

Date of Fourth Change of Registration
10 August 2011

Place of First Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Second Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Third Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Fourth Change of Registration
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Business Registration Number
530000400000458

Tax Registration Number
530111622602196

Organization Code
62260219-6

Appointed Auditor of the Company

Appointed Auditor of the Company
KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

Address
B/F., Block 2, Dongfang Square,
1 Chang An Street East, Beijing City
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(B) TENBRBNER
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RETHSHEAERNEIRSHE 1.

(7) MAJOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND INDICATORS

Major Accounting

Information and Financial

BB EEE Indicators Prepared in Accordance with the PRC
Accounting Standards
Bl KE: ARK
Unit: RMB
RHEHRL
AHEHR LEEHR LEEHRER(%)
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2012 2011 Change (%)
BEE Total assets 2,607,049,163.30 2,558,664,361.12 1.89
BEREMARRR Owner’s interest attributable
FEEER (SR FER) to the equity shareholders of the
Company (or shareholders’ equity) 1,395,109,222.60 1,402,138,349.42 -0.50
FEREMARRRER Net asset per share attributable to
BRFEE(L/B) the equity shareholders of the
Company (RMB per share) 2.63 2.64 -0.50
REH REHL
(1-68) LERE  LERBERH(%)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 Change (%)
HENE Operating profit -9,499,034.00 37,141,665.56 -125.58
bR Total profit 4,188,220.23 38,155,088.73 -89.02
BER LT ARRENFEAE Net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company 3,592,495.24 42,771,864.27 -91.60
FER LW ARRREHMER Net profit excluding non-recurring items
FEBEHERENFIE attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company -8,219,751.60 41,920,546.61 -119.61
EARGRET) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.0068 0.0805 -91.60
MERFEEEHERER Basic earnings per share excluding
EARGRNE (L) non-recurring items (RMB) -0.0155 0.0789 -119.61
mESkkEGT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 0.0068 0.0805 -91.60
MEFFEERE (%) Weighted average return on net assets (%) 0.26 3.08 EA283MEELE
Decreased by 2.83
percentage points
%&%ﬁb?imfﬁiu@@%ﬁ Net cash flow from operating activities -3,244,626.50 -9,428,009.50 -65.59
B EEEER Net cash flow per share from
Rem=58(n) operating activities (RMB) -0.0061 -0.0178 -65.59
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515
AEERERBBEINFEIENER Prepared in Accordance with No. 9 of Rules for
ENFEEREZRERKE : the Compilation and Submission of Information
Disclosure by Public Offering Companies Issued
by China Securities Regulatory Commission are as
follows:
FEEREE(%) ShE ()
Return on net assets (%)  Earnings per share (RMB)
mEYEY EfsRiE RESRUS
Basic Diluted
Profit for Weighted earnings earnings
WEBRE the reporting period average per share per share
GERRRILARRENERNE  Net profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company 0.26 0.0068 0.0068
B ECEHEEREER Net profit excluding non-recurring items
RRE BRI R 0F A attributable to the ordinary shareholders
of the Company -0.59 -0.0155 -0.0155
3 FREMBEREANEH 3. Non-Recurring Items and Amount
By T KR ARK
Unit: RMB
HZE201266A308
L6 A A
For the six months ended
ER Non-recurring item 30 June 2012
STAE BB Government grants included in current gains
(RAEEBRTEA - or losses (other than those closely related to the
BRREZS-RETER normal operating activities of the Company and
EEZXNBFRHBRA) those subject to a standard fixed amount
or an ongoing lump sum amount in
accordance with the government'’s policies) 13,142,000.00
bR MR Z MY EEINRARE H Other non-operating income and expenses other than
the above items 545,254.23
Ny EE Impact on income tax -2,053,298.07
PERREETEE(HiR) Impact on minority interests (after tax) 178,290.68
aif Total 11,812,246.84
= - REEHEBREREBER Ill. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS
(—)RpEHBERER (1) CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
WEHNERMNDEHER - During the reporting period, there is no change in share
capital.

o

R
BORBSESRAN(AMBITESEA 2. The Return on Net Assets and Earnings Per
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(Z)BRMBBEFHAER
1> RREENFRER

(2) SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLERS

1. Number of shareholders and shares held by them

Bl R
Unit: Share
REHRRRAH49,750(HPAK : 49,625 ' HER125)F
Total number of shareholders as at the end of the reporting period 49,750
(including 49,625 holders of A shares and 125 holders of H shares)

ATERRERER Shares held by the top ten shareholders
RRERE EfdRE
RR£# RRME  BRUA(%) khes kiRt EE WROEE
Number of Number of
Nature of Total number  selling restricted  shares pledged
Name of shareholders shareholders  Proportion (%)  of shares held shares held or frozen
HKSCC Nominees Limited BINEA 2535 134613815 - A
Foreign legal person Unknown
EBR (S8 BRAERA BBEA 2508 13320774 - A
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. State-owned legal person Unknown
EREIXRARRERARALAT BBEA 11.07 58,772,913 - A
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co. Ltd. State-owned legal person Unknown
ERRELT f 0.49 2,609,825 - A
Kunming Jinghua Co. Others Unknown
ZEEFRNERLARPERR ZERESER f 0.45 2,409,700 - A
Essence Securities Co. Ltd.-client credit trading Others Unknown

quarantee securities account

IREERREXIARAT f 036 1,932,600 - A
Beijing Haifeng Media Co., Ltd. Others Unknown
RIER f 028 1,510,009 - A
Wu Runhuan Others Unknown
2R Hff 0.14 730,000 - A
Liang Kang Others Unknown
s Hff 0.12 641,200 - A
He Kaifeng Others Unknown
PHRYREERARAT f 0.11 602,737 - A
Anhui Yinzhang Investment Management Co., Ltd. Others Unknown

I -
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AT RERERGERRERER

e
Selling unrestricted shares held by the top ten
shareholders

BFHEERERNE
RR A RO NEE ROBEERHE
Number of selling Type and
Name of shareholders unrestricted shares number of shares
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 134,613,815 BHN EHINERK
Overseas listed foreign shares
LEHAR(RE)BREEAR 133,222,774 ARBE B
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
EHEIRRAEREBAREME LT 58,772,913 ARBE B
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co. Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
ERBERT 2,609,825 ARBE B
Kunming Jinghua Co. RMB ordinary shares
ZERFBRNERAARFERRZEREFKFP 2,409,700 ARBE B
Essence Securities Co. Ltd.-client credit trading guarantee
securities account RMB ordinary shares
EREBEEHEUBERAT 1,932,600 ARBE B
Beijing Haifeng Media Co., Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
RER 1,510,009 ARBE B
Wu Runhuan RMB ordinary shares
RE 730,000 ARBE B
Liang Kang RMB ordinary shares
faslig 641,200 ARBE B
He Kaifeng RMB ordinary shares
ZHRYREERARAA 602,737 ARBE B

Anhui Yinzhang Investment Management Co., Ltd.

LR REABBEER - RTBNHA

A+ % R R 1 R B B BCR MDA A B B
R -BEAEBRRRZEIFHEBEBER - 2
AIARA bt EBE SR RBRBR ZER
BEEEBBERIXBN ETARBEREE
REHESKBEEEIEIREN —HITH
A e BI0BRERP AR T HMBERRZ H2
LMK -

RMB ordinary shares

Explanation of the connected relationship or acting in
concert relationship among the above shareholders

There is no connected relationship among the top ten
shareholders of selling unrestricted circulating shares, legal
person shareholders and state-owned legal person shareholders.
The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
or acting in concert relationship regulated by “Information
Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of Shareholding
of Listed Company” among the above holders of selling
unrestricted circulating shares of the Company. The Company
was not notified of any connected relationship among the top
ten shareholders.

Interim Report 2012 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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HEEBR R EBB AR RERA10%EIE
W e

2) BREXFAHEEI) BESXWEESNMEE
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H RS YEXVE) R - R R
MR/ KEHCRIBRTE) P EE TRIR
BCES REEEG )EXVIBET R8I
MAERABREERFIOERSIAE
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Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above, as
at 30 June 2012, there were no other shareholders whose
shareholdings exceeded the amount required to be disclosed
under Article 60 of “Administration of the Issuing and Trading
of Shares Provisional Regulations” of the PRC and Issue No.2
of “The Content and Format of Disclosure of Information of
the Listed Companies” (amended in 2005); and under Section
16(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance under the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Company was not
notified of any interests representing 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Among top ten shareholders, there are three shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares. They are
HKSCC Nominees Limited (hereinafter referred to as “"HKSCC
Nominees Limited”), which holds the overseas listed foreign
shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which holds
the state-owned legal person shares; and Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned
legal person shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders
are not pledged, frozen, nor designated.

Notes:

1) HKSCC (Nominees) Limited holds shares on behalf of clients.
The Company did not receive any notification that any H
shareholder held more than 10% in total share capital of the
Company.

2) Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not notified by any
person (who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who
owns the interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that shall be disclosed to the Company
in compliance with the requirements contained in Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"),
or the interest or short position that shall be included in the
prescribed register in accordance with section 336 of SFO.

3) As at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors and the Supervisors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions
which the Directors or the Supervisors are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

0
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| ke
Strategic investors or general legal persons-:%s t
shareholders as a result of placing of new shares

BRREERN-—REANER NEFRERRBD HNEFRALERS

Commencement of Expiry of
Name of Strategic investors or general legal person agreed holding agreed holding
LEHR(RE)BRAEETAF 20061218 20106 12A31H
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. 1 December 2006 31 December 2010
EHEIRRAEREERREMLA 200512 A31H 201012 A31H
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. 31 December 2005 31 December 2010

2 ERERRRERESNARERR
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(Z)RAFRIEIER
1- BEERER

2. Changes in controlling shareholder and beneficial
controller

There was no change in the controlling shareholders and

beneficial controller during the reporting period.

IV. DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

(1) CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the reporting period, there was no change of
shareholding held by directors, supervisors and senior
management officers.

(2) COMPANY STAFF

1. Areas of Specialization

HEER AE

Areas of specialization Number of Employees
— BIBR 1. Staff

EMBIAZ Number of existing staff 2,448

HptEETA Of which: Production worker 1,525

HERMAE Skilled technician 387

HEAEB Sales and marketing 77

BBAR Finance 59

EEAB Administration 147

RBAE General services 29

NEEEAER Early retirement 175

5E - —BRAR Staff pending for duties 47

HEAE Others 2

Interim Report 2012 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited




+H

HEARERBR 2. Education Level
HEER AE
Education level Number of Employees
SN 2. Qualifications
He: R4 Of which: Postgraduate 21
RE University 400
rE College diploma 412
FE Diploma 353
= B High school or vocation school 692
AT Junior high school or below 570
= BREAE 3. Title 501
Hi 5 Of which: Senior 61
Loy Intermediate 153
Iz Junior 287
EEERE V. DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(—)MEHAREESLERNHRESAH (1) OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS DURING THE REPORTING

WMEBARN RABREZERAARE
631,677F T HEBATRABRENFF
HARE3592F 0 &R EFREAHARE
885,193 F ;LI A R#42,772F jLAE Lt
PDRITPE28.64%F191.60% °

201291 - 68 » ZEEBEMRRTE B
ERERNMEAR BIARBE ¢ B A AR R
Wi FEUAERCESEREEAETE -
BRTEMRRSEFE  TBREATS
B BRI TR mAEAAR . EXEE
SER BAABEER NHITEXERDB
F - SwmEOEGER AR EBESR
FERD  REEE - BFMAE - 2FH
RETERD  BRFETHMSELTTEIR
EEE ERAEREEEREBERE
R TR KEETHELRSREFE
thRIZE A o

202F B[+ A IstE8I2EEHET -
BEERCOESBAERSK  BENIK
BEK EERREREBALEBEEZES
WIAMEBE B2 - X FARELRER
[041E % 5 1H - 86351 & M E R BT A #7F
EERIETEHDESTBHHOKE - B
BRIMSERGEFS  mHEHFEBY
N BRPEREEEL  KERER BE
OO EKLHEBRAEZSEKE - TEEFEH
i AT 78 5 AR TAE -

PERIOD AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

During the reporting period, the Company has obtained a
turnover of RMB631,677,000 and net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company of RMB3,592,000, representing
a decrease of 28.64% and 91.60% respectively as compared
with the turnover of RMB885,193,000 and net profit of
RMB42,772,000 in the same period last year.

In the first half of 2012, the overall macroeconomic situation
was challenging with the economies of the Europe and the
U.S.A. kept fluctuating at a low level. In view of slowdown in
the domestic economy, the PRC government focused on the
adjustment of its economic structure. Such negative impact
on the machine tool industry led to weak market demand,
decreasing profitability, lack of hotspot growth and liquidity
stress in the industrial chain. In addition to the excessive
production capacity in the downstream industry of large
sophisticated products, imports of high-end products also
squeezed market shares. Furthermore, the small-and-medium
size general product business faced shrinking order inflows,
delivery of large heavy products delayed and competition
intensified. The decrease in orders, lack of confidence in the
downstream market and delivery delay led to contraction in
our overall business scale, resulting in a decline in profits and
thus a corresponding decrease in net cash flows generated
from operating activities.

With the comprehensive implementation of "the 12th Five-
year Plan" in the Year 2012 and the effort by the government
to adjust the economic structure, the prudent fiscal and
currency policies should then steer the domestic economy from
slowdown into stabilization. In the first half year of 2012, the
Company achieved good results in the participated 04 Precision
Project, 863 Plan and National Technology Innovation Platform
Construction. However, presently, the Company still faces a
myriad of challenges, given the product structure upgrading,
fiercer market competition, ever-changing customer needs and
the even mixed economic environment. The Company will focus
on the following six aspects for the second half of the year:

.
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of the Company. The Company will accelerate to b
up the flagship stores and specialty stores, implement
the product manager system to strengthen marketing.
Meanwhile, the Company will send its staffs around
customers to improve the after-sales service.

The Company will refine the production and operation
models, improve operating efficiency and make the
castings and machine tool components a specialized,
strong and large business arm. The streamline assembly
model will be promoted for horizontal boiling machine
products according to the requirements for definite
time, location and quantity. Through intensive and lean
production, the Company will seek to ensure the delivery
cycle for key contract products.

The Company will strengthen the technological service
and support to market function and production sites.
While earnestly implementing the national key special
projects, the Company will expedite the introduction of
the SCHIESS technology, push ahead the process team
building and management on standard processes, and
upgrade the technological development capability and
level.

The Company will deepen the "quality management
storm”, advocate innovations in quality management
system and extend the quality-based reward and
punishment mechanism to suppliers and collaborative
manufacturers to enhance the supporting level.

The Company will take initiatives to promote corporate
fundamental management centering on financial
management, including the overall budget managementand
the ERP project as well as the comprehensive performance
assessment, reforms in remuneration management
methods and optimisation of human resources structure.
At the same time, the Company expects to improve
capital operations and broaden financing channels to
shore up the product mix restructuring and technological
renovations.

Taking all-around consideration of the development
plans for machine tools and the existing production
and operation conditions, the Company will actively and
prudently expedite the construction progress of the heavy
equipment plant and cast base projects.
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(2) MAJOR OPERATION INFORMATION

e

Business segment or product information

Bz :or ¥E:ARK

Unit: RMB

=E 0N EREA EXRFBE(%)

Operating

Operating Operating profit

POEBSER Business segment or product income expenses  margin (%)
BRERHEERMIER(ME3) Sales and processing of machine

tool products (note 3)
Sales, installation and technical
services of highly efficient compressors

RREEERRHE  RERRHB

TERERNOTHELER  EEXRAR
3040k -2 A P

2.

534,101,907.97  397,009,155.98 25.67

97,575,394.98 81,638,095.42 16.33

Analysis on the changes of the market and the
operating costs of the major business

B

Unit: RMB

TERE B A BHELA% EHEE%

For the six For the six

months ended months ended Proportion Change

HH Item 30 June 2011 Proportion 30 June 2012 (%) (%)

R Raw material 387,556,207.14 57.99  247,053,484.57 51.61 -36.25

BEETA Direct labour costs 45,750,141.91 6.85 44,133,056.60 9.22 -3.53

FREEENE Benefit expenses 23,471,162.15 3.51 23,733,412.68 4.96 1.12

SLEER Manufacturing costs 136,094,611.36 20.37 83,603,451.77 17.47 -38.57

MEIMIE External processing expenses 75,399,699.77 11.28 80,123,845.78 16.74 6.27

GE Total 668,271,822.33 100.00  478,647,251.40 100.00 -28.38
ST Analysis:

KB ERHEEXNAR EFR R D
189,625F T AR 528.38% * /MA W=
ERARR ABCESERNPRRIHEES]
BEAERD  £EEWREZHMDE -

RBERREGEENEE2424% - BER
SEURBMEEREAMTRE  BAIK
RBEFTIGI - & EK AL R IEREF R HE
FFEREIR24.50% EAREFF o

During the reporting period, the operating costs decreased
by RMB189,625,000 or 28.38% over that in the same period
last year, mainly attributable to the decrease in production
volumes due to significant decline in sales orders as affected
by the macro-economy.

During the reporting period, the consolidated gross profit
margin was 24.24%, substantially the same with the gross
margin of 24.50% in the same period last year, as the decrease
in the price of raw materials was offset by the increase in the
staff cost.
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01MEL¥E 2012FLEE £
ES 100N ES 9N B HI(%) B5(%)
Proportion
Turnover Turnover of sales of
for the for the machine tools
first half first half to total
DTERPER Business segment or product of 2011 of 2012 sales (%)  Change (%)
TE(gE) Business segment (CNC)
BRZHRESR General facilities production 412,546 172,678 32.33 -58.14
EREHRER Specified facilities production 311,319 237,386 44.45 -23.75
TAMWEEVEEE  Electric mechanical equipment production 31,607 32,069 6.00 1.46
RBERTERER Transportation facilities production 18,114 45,291 8.48 150.04
HipsiE% Other production 30,479 46,678 8.74 53.14
Ef Products
B\ 8t 8 R Horizontal boring and milling machine tools 313,817 175,309 32.82 -44.14
A SR Floor-type boring and milling machine tools 326,581 174,146 32.61 -46.68
a1l & A ghER Table-type boring and milling machine tools 113,157 93,920 17.58 -17.00
HirgfIs gt R CNC gantry boring and milling machine tools 29,002 79,800 14.94 175.15
Hith Others 21,508 10,927 2.05 -49.20
At Total 804,065 534,102 100.00 -33.57
it - Notes:

1 20RF ¥ FHSHERTFPIHEES
137,915F 7L - (h S E B E(HIRI D) H

25.82% °

20 202 L¥FEAMABHERRBRER
53,662F T + (HERAEAREEAD21.88% °

1.

In the first half of 2012, total sales of top five customers
amounted to RMB137,915,000, accounting for 25.82% of
total sales of the Company (machine tools segment).

In the first half of 2012, total purchases of top five suppliers
amounted to RMB53,662,000, accounting for 21.88% of the
purchase amount for the first half of the year.
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4 BEHLAAZEUBENBLBRLEE 4.

Material changes in major financials during the

K & B 1Y =5 BF reporting period over those in the same period
last year

HAY BYH(LFEH) b-pok BHEE%

As at As at Increase/
HR Item 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 decrease Change (%)
EKES Monetary assets 41,133,179.42  192,200,330.65  -51,067,151.23 -26.57
r&u& 3 Bills receivable 137,212,884.80  104,034,946.22  33,177,938.58 31.89
E3 Inventory 1,055,132,296.64  983,679,390.52  71,452,906.12 7.26
BHER Prepayments 46,845,146.12  79,699,344.86  -32,854,198.74 -41.22
RAFHER Long-term deferred expenses 1,778,069.69 1,365,116.55 412,953.14 30.25
JEEER Accounts payable 470,793,407.45  363,932,002.93  106,861,404.52 29.36
JE{F B T 55 7 Accrued salary 20,127,813.58  33,498,389.64  -13,370,576.06 -39.91
JERRF Dividends payable 2,953,794.73 135,898.49 2,817,896.24 2,073.53
BERA Operating income 631,677,302.95  885,192,581.37  -253,515,278.42 -28.64
BERA Operating costs 478,647,251.40  668,271,822.36  -189,624,570.96 -28.38
BERSRMM Business tax and surcharges 2,357,382.72 5,812,730.24 -3,455,347.52 -59.44
HHRER Financial expenses 4,101,623.86 91,215.12 4,010,408.74 4,396.65
REREEX Asset impairment loss 24,647,148.14  42,41435397  -17,767,205.83 -41.89
BEMIA Non-operating income 13,964,629.08 2,357,738.53 11,606,890.55 492.29
BENTH Non-operating expenses 277,374.85 1,344,315.36 -1,066,940.51 -79.37
FriEH Income tax 732,407.53 4,148,994 49 4,881,402.02 -117.65
PURERTHER Minority interests for the period -136,682.55 -467,781.05 331,098.50 -70.78
vl bl Net profit 3,592,495.24  42,771,864.27  -39,179,369.03 -91.60
ReRBeSEMFEME Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ -47,896,983.10  -59,422,627.56  11,525,644.46 19.40
DT Analysis:
A BEESERLOZHNDBIRNIHEER A. the decrease in monetary assets was due to the decrease

DRTEL in sales of the Company for the period;

B. FEWEHRENMEHNAHAHEELER B. theincrease in bills receivable was due to the increase in

g hniE AL IEZE TR the use of acceptance notes by our customers for sales

settlements for the period;

C. TFEENREARNPAERAETHRS C. the increase in inventory was due to the increase in
HANFTER products in progress as a result of production expansion
for the period,
D. FENEFRLEBARAHHEERD D. the decrease in prepayments was due to the decrease in
KELEEMSWMEMRERY - LT the procurement of materials for production as a result
) 44 FE 7 S A TR AN R B of the decrease in sales for the period, which led to a
decrease in prepayments paid to suppliers;
E. REBSFEBHAEMNISAEARRER E. the increase in long-term deferred expenses was due to

fhhn TEF g Me04T T FEE R
i

T BR BB IR A s AR R H &R
PEEERMEKE S ER - AREM
FRATEL O BRI PR

the increase in deferred expenses by RMB604,000 arising
from the renovation of processing workshop for arris of
slab for the period;

the increase in accounts payable was attributable to the
increase in credit purchase of raw materials due to tight
liquidity as a result of decrease in sales and increase in
inventory;

.
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RFKR BN

FEAT R RIE A0 - 2 A A B 20114
EABELRAR  IRBNENEBR
& N H 8 RS PTER

AN B A W AR 4253,515F
T EBRSFURTBERARE
XEB NMEREBEEREEELRE
REANZNTE RAAEAKAHEESR
BTRHE SWEXRRARDT
28.64%

REEHLRUABEE X WAL T
R

A EHERIIBERBMIEXH R
ZRD

ABEHHHERENETARBES
BRIEMTRBETERE - BEFF
BIBINFTEL ;

BERERXBRDERREHARE
YRR R IR I K EFRE - Euk -
AHERIEREFER LFERE

S HMNIT N B8 0 R AR B A BB AT 4 B
BRI AER EFRHEAE N T 11,337F
TCRTER

ERITHBIZEIBZREHEMLR
X BEEEREEAFRLFRAB
LD PR

PrETIRINE R R AHERRB AR
EIEFISTRE B R IR R PR 15T & AR
D BHYAEHRK EFREHEM

DEBRRBREREFRTIEEAHE
FREARFEMERBEMBD

in the provision of annual bonus for the period;

the increase in dividends payable was due to the
outstanding dividends provided for the Hong Kong
investors under the profit distribution proposal for 2011
implemented by the Company;

operating income for the reporting period decreased
by RMB253,515,000 or 28.64%, mainly attributable to
the remarkable decline in sales of machine tools of the
Company as affected by the various macro-economic
factors such as adjustments to industry structure and
slowdown in economic growth;

operating costs for the reporting period decreased
accordingly as a result of such decrease in operating
income;

the decrease in business tax for the reporting period was
due to the decrease in value-added tax;

the increase in financial expenses for the reporting period
was attributable to the increase in loan interests as a result
of the increase in liquidity loans due to tight liquidity;

the decrease in asset impairment loss was due to the
decrease in provision for bad debt over that in the same
period last year as a result of the slowdown in the growth
of accounts receivable of the Company for the reporting
period;

the increase in non-operating income was due to the
increase in recognition of income by RMB11,337,000
from carrying forward the government grants over that
in the same period last year;

the decrease in non-operating expenses was mainly due
to the decreases in loss on debt restructuring, loss on
retirement of fixed assets and other losses over those in
the same period last year;

the increase in income tax was due to the impairment
provision for bad debt and recognition of deferred income
tax assets, leading to a decrease in income tax expenses,
thus recording an increase in income tax over that in the
same period last year;

the decrease in minority interests was due to the decrease
in loss of subsidiaries for the reporting period;

Interim Report 2012 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

7 -




5\

R. FHAETERANTIEREERZLEEKA
Wm%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂftiﬂﬁﬁ¢7
46,641 F L MEEER UKE
%¥Imﬁ$ﬁ%tﬂ BEBH
TR T17.37% @ B2IEREEFEH
FRiE - BECFABE® EFR TR
91.6% :

S. ﬁ%&ﬁ% BV HYF I hNFE L N =

REEREEEHELANRREFE
Htti‘tuo

FEEMBEREREREBER

BE_T-——_FXA=1+HIL AEEE
EHES AEE-—FRIHPEFI/AR
#125,000F 7T - AEBEEEMRAR L
EREBRSNANEN  HRERHNR
TRARNEERIBER

HE-_Z——EA=1tHILRBREFA
AR EET A ARE1,395,109F 7T °

EXBENLR

HE_Z-——_FRA=THILEBRER
AH R ESEAELRB1.2115 -

HAFTENEREBR - EmNE
FEEBEL  TBRMASZHE]
%ﬁ@?%%ﬁﬁ%i%%ﬁmﬁ

H 1F2012F6 A30H $¥M1E AT BE5.2218 ¢
b R62% c RRIEKRBBEEN
OB R E M4226 0 BB IRE R78
B EMEMRSeE  Hib: TEBKAR
BEM BUIEEKABIETE EF 8z
ERE R ARG EEEERESFIIE:

%
B

-

puil
%

1) REAUGE BHIFBLEMNZR -
REABEREFRE

2)  INORMIEREE - SMBEIE TR - FRESD
R
3) MERBRRLE  ABREHRRAEN

5ta

4) MR FEHEMANE - H0REUER R
BE RVEKBEE  HIERMH
A

5) HEAFEZHEEEREIIE -
MEERPIEH - E%?%‘é*éﬁﬂl? %|J7J<

R.  net profit decreased by 91.6% over that in the same
period last year, primarily attributable to a decrease
of RMB46,641,000 in the sales profit over that in the
same period last year due to the decrease in operating
income as well as an increase in fixed costs such as the
administrative expenses and financial expenses, although
there was a 17.37% decrease in the operating costs, it
was much lower than the decrease in sales profit;

S.  theincrease in net increase in cash and cash equivalents
was mainly due to the increase in net cash flow from
financing activities over that in the same period last
year.

Financial resources and capital structure of the
Group

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no long-term borrowings
and the Group had borrowings due within one year of
RMB125,000,000. The Group maintains a sound credit condition
with a high margin product mix and has sufficient cash flow
for future repayment of liabilities.

As at 30 June 2012, the shareholders’ equity attributable to
parent company was RMB1,395,109,000.

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2012, the shareholders’ equity to debt ratio of
the Group was 1.21.

Discussion and analysis of important issues relating
to the operations of the Company, including the
securing of purchase orders, product sales or
overstocking and changes in key technicians

The amount of new contracts as at 30 June 2012 amounted to
RMB522 million and 62% was attributable to CNC products.
The Company had excessive stock of finished products,
including 422 general machine tool products, 78 CNC machine
tool products and 86 other products. Among which, general
machine tools were flow products while CNC machine tools
were produced according to orders. In light of these, the
Company will continue to take the following measures to
decrease inventory:

1)  grasp the effective orders and control the production
time to set a reasonable marginal inventory-scale;

2) increase the management to procurement and outsourcing
to decrease the cost of purchasing raw material,

3) promote lean production and adjust input-output in
progress plan;

4) intensify efforts to send out goods, strengthen the clear
up of accounts receivable, reduce the quantity of finished
products and decrease the amount of fund used,

5)  carry the Company's overall budget management forward,
facilitate the implementation of the ERP project and
enhance the management and control over operation.

.
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TEERATDRSRATGNKLEE N 8. Review of operations and business analy5|s.1"-r ajol
REESN controlling companies and invested companies
By - ARKFT
Unit: RMB'000
RRER EBHE TEERARS ZREA EERE RRA
Nature of Registered
Name business Major products or services capital Total assets Net profit
BRRRERERNERBERAR 2@k B ERE T RER
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing  Energy saving compressor and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. turbo machines 50,000 420,654 707
ARG RERETRARERAT  HEX RENEEEZRE
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing  Laser prototyping machine
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd. 60,000 130,376 -1,548
BRBNERERLR HEZ % R EETHE
EERK R EmREH
Kunming TOS Machine Tool Manufacturing  Development, design, production
Company Limited and sales of self-produced machine 5008 (BL) 150,302 2,132
tool series products and accessories 5 million (Euro)
ERERBRRRERAA HER BRREANRE R NHE
Kunming Kunji General Machine Manufacturing ~ Development, design and sales of
Co., Ltd. machine tool products and accessories 3,000 3,167 4,136
AFBEEEBR (3) INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY
EEESFERER 1. Use of Proceeds from Raised Fund
WMEBHRKN AREZEESSNAIHEESR During the reporting period, there were no proceeds from
SEAEREEIFR new raised funds, nor any proceeds from previous raised funds
being utilized for the period.
IEEELEBEBR 2. Use of Proceeds from Non-raised Fund
MEHRKN AEEIFEEESHAFIHEE During the reporting period, there were no proceeds from
B FEABETHNBER - new raised funds, nor any proceeds from previous raised funds
being utilized for the period.
(MEZESTEFHRETTEISKETE (4) Revised Operating Plan for the Second Half of 2012

B A1 72 BB AR A BRSO B R L
MERRE BN RNE  SEHER
TB-BARTERIRRSTE TR - BT
P& MEARRAH  EXRELER:EX
DETEM NHTRERBR - SmED
EE=R: AN EREREERD K
ENERREELE  BiFME - 112012
FLFFRRETER  BHEFAE2012
FELLBEMAMBER  £XWAI5
& BERERREFMNE.2E -

by the Board

Presently, the overall macroeconomic situation was challenging
with the economies of the Europe and the U.S.A. kept fluctuating
at a low level. In view of slowdown in the domestic economy,
the PRC government focused on the adjustment of its economic
structure. Such negative impact on the machine tool industry
led to weak market demand, decreasing profitability, lack of
hotspot growth and liquidity stress in the industrial chain. In
addition to the excessive production capacity in the downstream
industry of large sophisticated products, imports of high-end
products also squeezed market shares. Furthermore, the small-
and-medium size general product business faced shrinking
order inflows, delivery of large heavy products delayed and
competition intensified. According to the operation of the
Company in the first half of 2012, the Board suggested to
adjust the business objective of the Company for 2012 and
the related budget as: operating revenue would be RMB1.5
billion and the net profit attributable to the parent company
would be RMB20 million.
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VI.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with a view to enhancing the corporate governance
standard of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as the code for securities
transactions by the directors. Having made all enquiries, all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company confirm that all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company are in compliance
with the Mode Code and its own code on the standards for
securities transactions by directors.

The Company has established the modern enterprise system,
continued to improve the corporate governance and regulate
the operation of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant regulations
issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The systems
of the Company are substantially in compliance with the
requirements under the Standard of Corporate Governance
for PRC Listed Companies jointly issued by CSRC and National
Development and Reform Commission. In the future, the
Company will continue to improve and strengthen the internal
control system in the normal course of operation with a view
to enhancing the standard of corporate governance.

IMPLEMENTATION OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
PROPOSAL FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

Proposal on profit distribution of the Company
for the year of 2011:

As proposed by the seventh session of the board of directors
at its fourth meeting, the proposal on profit distribution of
the Company for the year of 2011 was approved at the 2011
annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 May 2012.
In accordance with the PRC accounting standards, in 2011, the
Group recorded a profit of RMB54,567,000. After deducting the
transfer of RMB7,483,000 to surplus reserves, the distributable
profit realized by the Group in 2011 was RMB47,084,000, and
the accumulated profit available for distribution amounted
to RMB727,246,000. In particular, the Company recorded
a profit of RMB74,832,000. After deducting the transfer of
RMB7,483,000 to surplus reserves, the realized distributable
profit of the Company in 2011 amounted to RMB67,349,000
and accumulated profit available for distribution amounted
to RMB694,712,000;

Proposal on the distribution of cash dividends for the year of
2011: a cash dividend of RMBO0.2 (tax inclusive) is proposed
for every 10 shares held by Shareholders of the Company
based on the existing total share capital of 531,081,103 shares
(including 390,186,291 A Shares and 140,894,812 H Shares),
totaling RMB10,621,622.06 in cash. The actual cash dividend
after tax would be RMBO0.18 for every 10 shares held.

R
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holders of A Shares whose names appeared on the register

of members of the Company on the record date (i.e. 4 June
2012). The Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corp. Ltd. was entrusted by the Company to
pay the cash dividend on its behalf to the holders of the A
Shares without selling restrictions. With respect to the A Shares
subject to selling restrictions, the cash dividend was directly
paid to the holders of such shares.

The actual cash dividend after tax to be distributed to the
individual shareholders, investment fund and qualified foreign
institutional investors for A Shares would be RMBO0.18 for every
10 shares held. For individual investors who hold domestic
shares ("A Share”), the individual income tax would be withheld
and paid by the Company on their behalves at a tax rate of
10% and the actual cash dividend would be RMB0.018 per
share. For qualified foreign institutional investors (“QFlis”), a
cash dividend after tax would be distributed and the actual cash
dividend after tax would be RMB0.018 per share. Those QFlls
who wish to enjoy the agreed tax treatment may apply to the
competent taxation authority themselves. For other institutional
holders of domestic shares, the actual cash dividend would
be RMBO0.02 per share.

The holders of H Shares whose names appeared on the register
of holders of H Shares of the Company after close of business
on 18 May 2012 were entitled to the above final dividends paid
by the Company. The final dividends payable to the holders of
H Shares were denominated and declared in Renminbi and were
paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate was HK$100
to RMB81.182, which was based on the benchmark exchange
rates for Hong Kong dollar to Renminbi as announced by the
People’s Bank of China for one calendar day prior to the date
of approval for the payment of such dividends (i.e. 15 May
2012). The final dividend per H Share was HK$0.024636 (tax
inclusive).

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, ICBC
(Asia) Trustee Company Limited was appointed by the Company
as the receiving agent (the "Receiving Agent”) in Hong Kong
to receive the dividends on behalf of the holders of H Shares.
The Company would pay the final dividends declared in respect
of H Shares of the Company to the Receiving Agent, who
would hold such dividends in trust on behalf of the relevant
holders of H Shares until the payment is received. The dividend
warrants of H Shares together with the cheques would be
issued by the Receiving Agent and posted by ordinary mail
by Hong Kong Registrars Limited to the holders of H Shares
on or before 30 July 2012.

Presently, the payment of dividend has been completed.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

HALF-YEARLY PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PROPOSAL AND
CAPITALIZATION OF CAPITAL RESERVE TO INCREASE
SHARE CAPITAL

Nil.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Since there was no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, the Company did not have
any arrangement for the pre-emptive rights scheme during
the reporting period.

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries issued any warrants,
convertible securities, options or other securities with similar
rights, nor did any person exercise any rights as stated
above.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any securities issued by the Company during
the reporting period.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFT AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as
at 30 June 2012 are set out in the Notes to the financial
statements.

MAJOR LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

The Company signed a sales contract with Yancheng Xinde Qil
Machine Company (“Xinde Machine”) in June 2002 for sales
of four machine tools with a contract amount of approximately
RMB11.9 million. The related four machine tools had been
delivered to Xinde Machine before October 2003. In June 2009,
Xinde Machine filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging
that the goods delivered by the Company were unqualified and
sought for return of goods, refund of advances paid of RMB10.7
million and payment of penalty and compensation of RMBO.3
million and RMB3.7 million respectively. The Company denied
the claim and filed a counter claim against Xinde Machine
alleging that it was unreasonable for Xinde Machine to claim
for return of goods after use of the Company’s products for
more than 6 years and requesting Xinde Machine to repay the
unpaid amount of RMB1.3 million for the goods.

-
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ruling in relation to the aforesaid litigation on 18 May 20’
It was ruled that the Company should refund the advances
paid of RMB2,375,000 and bear the costs of the action in the
amount of approximately RMB26,000. The Company refused to
accept the ruling and appealed to the Higher People’s Court
of Jiangsu Province on 20 July 2012. The case has entered the
second-instance stage.

(9) BANKRUPTCY RESTRUCTURING
During the reporting period, there was no bankruptcy
restructuring of the Company.

(10) SHAREHOLDINGS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
AND INVESTED COMPANIES

During the reporting period, the Company did not have
any shareholding in other listed companies and invested
companies.

(11) PURCHASE AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS OR MERGER
AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the reporting period, there was no purchase and disposal
of assets or merger and acquisition activities.

(12) MAJOR CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, there was no major connected
transaction.

(13) TRUST

During the reporting period, the Company did not enter into
any trust arrangement.

(14) CONTRACTING

There was no contracting during the reporting period.

(15) LEASE ARRANGEMENT

There was no lease arrangement during the reporting
period.

(16) GUARANTEE

There was no guarantee in the reporting period.

(17) ENTRUSTED INVESTMENT

There was no entrusted investment in the reporting period.

(18) OTHER MAJOR CONTRACTS

There was no other major contract during the reporting
period.
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(19) PERFORMANCE OF COMMITMENTS

Commitments of the Company or shareholders holding more
than 5% shares during the reporting period or subsisting
during the reporting period are as follows:

1

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the shares held by them would not be sold through
the stock exchange for trading from date of obtaining
the approval for listing to 31 December 2010. As at
31 December 2010, selling restriction period for selling
restricted shares held by the above shareholders expired.
As at the end of the reporting period, the shares held
by the above shareholders were not tradable.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the resolution on the capitalization of the capital
reserves to issue new shares be proposed and approved at
the general meeting within one year after the completion
of the share reform on the basis of no less than five
new shares for every 10 shares held. Such resolution
was approved at the general meeting and relevant class
meetings for 2006 held on 29 June 2007 and the transfer
was completed.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. undertook
that the resolution on the distribution of profits of no less
than 50% of profits in the form of cash bonus dividend
be proposed and approved at the general meeting if the
performance of the Company in 2006 or 2007 fulfils the
conditions for distribution of profits to shareholders. Such
distribution of profits was completed in July 2008.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. undertook
that it would provide full support to the business
development of the Company in terms of technology,
business and resources and would consolidate the relevant
resources and markets by leveraging on its own unique
strengths based on the principles and models favorable
to accelerating the growth of the Company within two
years after the share transfer and share reform with a
view to developing Kunming Machine Tool as an important
platform for technological upgrade, business expansion
and sector growth to provide comprehensive support and
facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of
the Company. Currently, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Co., Ltd. has introduced production management officers
to the Company in order to facilitate the increase in
the production management capabilities and provide
convenience for the exports of the Company in terms
of market expansion.

(1) As at the date of this interim report, there is
no outstanding undertaking relating to business
performance.

(2) As at the date of this interim report, there is no
outstanding undertaking relating to injection of
assets and asset consolidation.

I

MEEEERARKEROERLE 2012 FHHE




Ct-EHRAARHEE - BEE -

(Z1) BME - BESTMSEEAMER

EB RGN R -

ﬁﬁ&

SRR SE SR
EFRERSTMEGAEREREE)

ESHERSTMEGHAS RV BI K
EFEERAAZEERE LMOAMLER
FX LA R BUED &Y R 3 & 5T R A5 AR -
At ARBEFEREEREFHER
SETENEE PR AR F2012F E IS ETAD
MAEETA - Ll @sTAEHPERE
EERARTRONFFERRAGELE
i@o

2012F8AAEWBEBME  E5EEKR
GETAN B FTiL BB R BB R ENEE (R
NEESFHEMEFAA L LSS RN
AN (B 2[2012]85%% ) H AR & FE AR 45 Ik
BABES - WHR2012F7 ARG EEHR
R RESHERSHMESAESED
PHAREEHERSHISHAMERE R
%) REFBERSITMEBANLE
HRR - R EBEEE  BEER(E
BHPEEBER)AETE -

BREE
ABE - RAIRR ERZFARAR
BUBER

BEPRAREES EF FRERE
B RAIRR  ERESABTRZHE
BEENESLS  THES - BRI RE
XS AFIEE

T A

ZN
A
%

(20) APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF AUDITOR

Any change of auditor:

No

Currently engaged

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

KPMG Huazhen is a Mainland audit firm approved by Ministry of
Finance and CSRC who is eligible to act as auditor for Mainland
incorporated companies listed in Hong Kong. Therefore, the
board of directors of the Company considered to re-appoint
KMPG Huazhen as the Company’s auditor and internal control
auditor for the year 2012. The issue regarding re-appointing
auditor has been approved at the annual general meeting of
2011.

In August 2012, the Company was notified in written by
KPMG Huazhen that it had recently completed the conversion
into the special general partnership in accordance with the
“Notice on the ‘Sino-foreign Joint Venture Accounting Firms
Localisation Conversion Program’” (Cai Kuai [2012] No.8)
and obtained its business license in July 2012. Following the
conversion, the full name of KPMG Huazhen has been changed
to "KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)”. KPMG
Huazhen (Special General Partnership) has been approved to
count its qualifying operating period and results to include
those of the former entity, KPMG Huazhen. Its professional
certifications (including its securities and futures certification)
have also been extended.

(21) PENALTIES ON THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER OF
THE COMPANY, AND RECTIFICATION ISSUES

During the reporting period, the Company, its Directors,
Supervisors, senior management officers, shareholders and
beneficial controller of the Company were not subject to any
audit, administrative punishments, disciplinary sanctions by
the CSRC and public censure by the stock exchange.
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(22) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

Kunming Kunji General Machine Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, was established on
16 October 2007 as a business arm of its parent. Since
its establishment, all activities of the company including
production of machine tools, sales and after-sales services
were undertaken by the parent on its behalf. With dull
business performance afterwards, the company was
dormant as of September 2010. Therefore, the company
was resolved to be cancelled.

A liquidation team has been established. Presently, the
liquidation team is processing the liquidation in accordance
with the relevant laws and statutory procedures. And the
liquidation is substantially completed by now. However,
the Company considered continuing its business expansion
via that company subsequently. As such, the cancellation
is suspended.

On 10 August 2012, the Company transferred its 50%
equity interest of Fujian Kunji Conventional Machine
Tool Company Limited by putting it to open tender on
Yunnan Equity Exchange Co., Ltd. at a transferring price
of RMB 1,000,000 with reference to the asset evaluation.
The Board considered that the transfer would be in the
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
and would be beneficial to the development of the
Company in the future.

Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Xi‘an
Ser”), a subsidiary of the Company, originally held 51%
equity interest in Hangzhou Ser Turbo Equipment Co.,
Ltd. (“Hangzhou Ser”). The original registered capital
of Hangzhou Ser was RMB1,200,000. In May 2012, the
Company decided not to participate in the proposal on
increase capital investment by other shareholders of
Hangzhou Ser. According to a resolution passed by the
shareholders at the general meeting and the amended
articles of association of Hangzhou Ser, its two shareholders
who are natural persons made additional contribution to
the company in an aggregate amount of RMB8,800,000,
increasing their respective shareholding in Hangzhou Ser
to 46.55% and 42% upon such additional contribution.
The original capital investment of RMB612,000 by Xi'an
Ser which accounted for 51% of the share capital would
represent 11.45% of the shareholdings in Hangzhou Ser
after the increase capital investment. After the completion
of the increase capital investment, Hangzhou Ser would
cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and would not
be consolidated in the financial statements.
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IR T & B R RE

Publishing newspaper

Publishing date

Websité £

0N FFEEBRARS

Announcement on estimated
decrease in the annual
results of 2011

FLrEEEEEINGHAELE

Announcement on resolutions
passed at the 3rd meeting of the
7th term of the board of directors

BRBRH201288— K
BRERRASBA

Notice of the first extraordinary
general meeting of 2012

202 E - RERRRAGRELE
Poll results of the first extraordinary
general meeting of 2012

BRARKELEESS
EMRGHREDE

Announcement on resolutions
passed at the 4th meeting of the
7th term of the board of directors

BRARKELEESS
E-REGFRBERE

Announcement on resolutions
passed at the 2nd meeting of the
7th term of supervisory committee

BREBE_O——FERR
FEMBA

Notice of annual general meeting
2011

(RREHFR)  (LEBEFR)

(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBEE AR  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBEE AR  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBERE AR  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBEESR)  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBEEAFR)  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(RBEIEAR)  (LBEF®R)

(EHRR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

201241 A19H
19 January 2012

201241 H19H
19 January 2012

201241 H19H
19 January 2012

201293A7A
7 March 2012

201293 A30A
30 March 2012

201293 A30A
30 March 2012

201293 A30A
30 March 2012

http://www.sse.com.cn *
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
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ESE| TSR T SR RE SRz HENEBARERBRERR
Event Publishing newspaper Publishing date Website
AR R T ARIEEREHE (PEBEHR) (LBEHR) 2012647268 http://www.sse.com.cn *
REEERE (EHRR) 26 April 2012 http://www.hkex.com.hk
Announcement on selling China Securities Daily, http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
equity interests of Shanghai Securities News
the subsidiary — Fujian Kunji and Securities Times
0N EREFEREAE (PEBEHR)  (LBEHR) - 2012954 16H http://www.sse.com.cn *
Poll results of the 2011 (EHFR) 16 May 2012 http://www.hkex.com.hk
annual general meeting China Securities Daily, http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times
g=zgnd (PEBEHR)  (LBEHR) - 2012954 16H http://www.sse.com.cn *
Announcement of the Board (EHFR) 16 May 2012 http://www.hkex.com.hk
China Securities Daily, http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times
0N FEARDREERAS (PEBHR)  (LBEHR) - 201295430A http://www.sse.com.cn *
Announcement on payment (EHFR) 30 May 2012 http://www.hkex.com.hk
of dividends for holders China Securities Daily, http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
of A shares for the year 2011 Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times
g=zgnd (PEBEHR)  (LBEHR) - 2012964 19A http://www.sse.com.cn *

Announcement of the Board

N

Announcement of the Board

2012 FHFEBERBALDSE
Announcement on expected
decrease in the interim

results of 2012

(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(FEEHB) (LBEFR)

(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

(FEEHB) (LBEFR)

(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News
and Securities Times

19 June 2012

201256 H19H
19 June 2012

201247 H27H
27 July 2012

http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
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VII. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHEEABR(CREES) CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited
20126 H30H As at 30 June 2012
SHE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HaF 2012%6H30H 2011128318
As at As at
1HH Item Note 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
RBEE ! CURRENT ASSETS:
EXEe Cash at bank and on hand (&) (V). 7 141,133,179.42 192,200,330.65
e Bills receivable (H) (V). 2 137,212,884.80 104,034,946.22
JRE 5 B 3R Accounts receivable (H) (V). 3 278,673,685.47 284,945,522.91
BRI IE Prepayments (A) (V). 5 46,845,146.12 79,699,344.86
H IR Other receivables (H) (V). 4 11,523,833.26 14,229,856.33
UE3 T Inventories (&) (V). 6 1,055,132,296.64 983,679,390.52
RBEEST TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,670,521,025.71 1,658,789,391.49
FRBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
RERERE Long-term equity investments  (#) * (V). 7 58,687,515.89 61,924,580.95
EEEE Fixed assets (H) (V). & 548,142,628.96 548,781,349.24
FEIR Construction in progress (&) (V). 9 145,772,658.21 119,146,793.10
BEEE Intangible assets (#) (V). 70 34,347,349.91 35,378,639.17
HE Goodwill (&) (V). 77 7,296,277.00 7,296,277.00
REGHER Long-term deferred expenses (&) (V). 72 1,778,069.69 1,365,116.55
BEFREHEE Deferred income tax assets () (V). 73 49,347,688.70 46,245,088.62
HindEme & E Other non-current assets (F) (V). 74 91,155,949.23 79,737,125.00
FRBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 936,528,137.59 899,874,969.63
BEEHAG TOTAL ASSETS 2,607,049,163.30 2,558,664,361.12
REEE: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
RHIER Short-term loans () (V). 17 125,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
ADES S Bills payable (7). 18 34,134,249.00 46,596,910.09
JE 1~ BR 3K Accounts payable (H) (V). 79 470,793,407.45 363,932,002.93
TEURIA Advances from customers (#) (V). 20 382,996,622.90 433,353,771.35
JRE A< B T %5 B Employee benefits payable (H) (V). 27 20,127,813.58 33,498,389.64
BRI E Taxes payable (H) (V). 22 5,977,014.32 7,310,302.86
JE~S AR Dividends payable (H) (V). 23 2,953,794.73 135,898.49
Hofth JE X Other payables (&) (V). 24 37,982,234.89 40,665,636.99
—FREBNIERSEE Non-current liabilities due
within one year (F) (V). 26 418,509.00 418,509.00

RBAEAT

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

1,080,383,645.87

1,025,911,421.35
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EHEERBER(REEM) (B)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited (Continued)

201296 A30H As at 30 June 2012
TEEEf c ARKTT
Unit: RMB
Miat 201256 H30H 20115128318
As at As at
1HH Item Note 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REIERR Long-term payables (H) (V). 27 1,812,277.35 1,918,881.90
HIAER K Special payables () (V). 28 15,167,565.87 15,267,565.87
B EE Provisions () (V). 25 14,234,414.16 17,390,990.97
HEMIERBAE Other non-current liabilities () (V). 29 46,108,936.81 41,490,702.91
*RBEABA TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 77,323,194.19 76,068,141.65
aEEF TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,157,706,840.06 1,101,979,563.00
BRRES - Shareholders’ equity:
e Share capital (7) (V). 30 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
BARNIE Capital reserve (#) (V). 37 27,303,321.72 27,303,321.72
el YN Surplus reserve (&) (V). 32 116,508,002.60 116,508,002.60
AOBEEHE Retained earnings () (V). 33 720,216,795.28 727,245,922.10

SERSAAREERAH
L BB RIS
REERET

BENRREZAG

WS MAR O N 2012F8A27TREEFR €/ -

EEREA x
TEGMIEREA: ZF
BERIMBRAA F

(A

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1,395,109,222.60
54,233,100.64

1,402,138,349.42
54,546,448.70

1,449,342,323.24

1,456,684,798.12

2,607,049,163.30

2,558,664,361.12

the Company on 27 August 2012.

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

i Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
[EE2 The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
41 The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
£25) (Seal of the Company)
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BEERER(KREHET)

BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited

201256 A30H As at 30 June 2012
2HEE c ARKT
Unit: RMB
HisF 201256 A30H 2011%12A31H
As at As at
1HH Item Note 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
REBEE: CURRENT ASSETS:
EBES Cash at bank and on hand 116,368,718.87 147,087,572.52
R E IR Bills receivable 100,117,884.80 87,154,946.22
JE U BR X Accounts receivable (+)Xx). 1 182,840,593.57 197,668,708.57
T FE Prepayments 19,617,083.16 45,024,333.22
JRE W A ) Dividends receivable 11,000,000.00 40,130,802.55
Hth 8 Wk Other receivables (+)(X). 2 16,836,556.35 19,977,210.82
=& Inventories 886,467,163.03 830,051,956.13
REBEESH TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,333,247,999.78 1,367,095,530.03
IRBEE . NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
RHRERE Long-term equity investments  (+) * (X). 3 82,235,781.74 87,617,846.80
EEEE Fixed assets 502,020,916.01 498,566,837.42
FEREIR Construction in progress 145,633,572.21 119,146,793.10
By EE Intangible assets 22,335,366.09 23,215,536.70
RHFEER Long-term deferred expenses 1,516,265.69 1,058,172.55
BEMEHERE Deferred income tax assets 41,378,481.66 38,085,867.83
HiIEmBEE Other non-current assets 91,155,949.23 79,737,125.00
FREBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 886,276,332.63 847,428,179.40
EEAG TOTAL ASSETS 2,219,524,332.41 2,214,523,709.43
REEE: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REAEE R Short-term loans 110,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
BN EE Bills payable - 20,000,000.00
JE TR X Accounts payable 368,527,641.54 298,667,958.42
Ta U R IE Advances from customers 234,985,118.50 281,112,591.02
1< B T 7 Employee benefits payable 18,221,597.00 32,029,264.98
ERXHE Taxes payable 5,018,115.45 5,888,997.79
JEE A~ A ) Dividends payable 2,817,896.24 -
H{h JE SR Other payables 36,199,964.24 50,833,320.18

—FRAPNIERBAE

REBREAT

Non-current liabilities due
within one year

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

418,509.00

418,509.00

776,188,841.97

768,950,641.39
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EEEBR(REERN)(F)

BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited (Continued)

201296 A30H As at 30 June 2012
TEEEf c ARKTT
Unit: RMB
Miat 201256 H30H 20115128318
As at As at
1HH Item Note 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
FREEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REAFERT R Long-term payables 1,812,277.35 1,918,881.90
BIFERR Special payables 15,167,565.87 15,167,565.87
JEErafE Provisions 14,234,414.16 17,390,990.97
HEMIEREaE Other non-current liabilities 46,108,936.81 41,490,702.91
FERBEESE TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 77.323,194.19 75,968,141.65
BEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES 853,512,036.16 844,918,783.04
RRER : Shareholders’ equity:
[ Share capital 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
NN Capital reserve 27,303,321.72 27,303,321.72
BBNTE Surplus reserve 116,508,002.60 116,508,002.60

A EHE

BRREZ S

BEMRRERAGT

W HHRERCON2012F8A27HEE= @ -

Retained earnings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

691,119,868.93

694,712,499.07

1,366,012,296.25

1,369,604,926.39

2,219,524,332.41

2,214,523,709.43

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

EEREA Ea
TEEIEREA: FIER

SEIHBRAA FHUE

the Company on 27 August 2012.

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of

accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department:

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

-
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EHFBER(REFR)
#HZE2012F6 A30H |L61E A HR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT - Una-l'

For the six months ended 30 June 2012

THE  ARETT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30AL6EANE
For the six months ended 30 June
et 2012% 01E
EH Item Note 2012 2011
—BERA 1. Operating income (&) (V). 34 631,677,302.95 885,192,581.37
oW EERA 2. Less: Operating costs (7) (V). 34 478,647,251.40 668,271,822.33
BEFSRIM Business taxes and surcharges (&) (V). 35 2,357,382.72 5,812,730.24
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 53,281,426.80 64,487,538.88
ERER General and administrative expenses 80,700,493.14 69,969,412.68
BHER Financial expenses 4,101,623.86 91,215.12
BEREEX Impairment losses (%)~ (V). 37 24,647,148.14 42,414,353.97
e &Y (RRIAN - 57551 Add: Investment income (*~" for loss) (7)) 36 2,558,989.11 2,996,157.41
Em: W‘éﬁ%ﬁ%fﬂ/\“ﬁﬁ Including: Income from
M ENE investment in associates
and jointly controlled entities 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
= EERE (BB - 15E) 3. Operating profit (- for loss) -9,499,034.00 37,141,665.56
e EEMEA Add: Non-operating income (%) (V). 38 13,964,629.08 2,357,738.53
BERMRE Less: Non-operating expenses (7)) 39 277,374.85 1,344,315.36
B EnBEERERX Including: Losses from disposal
of non-current assets - 334,890.75
FIBAE 4. Profit before income tax
(BRAFNU - J5E5) (*—" for total loss) 4,188,220.23 38,155,088.73
B ER BB (M - 15 E) Less: Income tax expenses ("~ for tax credit) () (V). 40 732,407.54 -4,148,994.49
e BRECREEMU - ISRES) 5. Netprofit( formetloss) 3,455,812.69  42,304,083.22
FENGATRENFHE Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company 3,592,495.24 42,771,864.27
PERFRE Minority interests -136,682.55 -467,781.05
A BRYE 6. Earnings per share:
(=) ER gk (1) basic (7)) 41 0.0068 0.0805
(Z)hEERE (2) diluted (7)) 41 0.0068 0.0805
t BB e lE 7. Other comprehensive income - -
N GEKERE 8. Total comprehensive income 3,455,812.69 42,304,083.22
GERSRARENGENEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company 3,592,495.24 42,771,864.27
FENDERANGAYEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to
minority shareholders -136,682.55 -467,781.05

M EHRRON2012F8A27HEE =@k -

}ifﬁﬁﬁ/\' x
TEGHIEREA: FIEZ
BEITHBRAA FHE
(/AT“E)

the Company on 27 August 2012.

Legal representative of the Company:

The person in charge of
accounting affairs:

The head of the accounting department:

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

Wang Xing

Li Shunzhen

Li Hongning

(Seal of the Company)
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FER(REER) INCOME STATEMENT - Unaudited

HZE2012F6A30H |E61E A HiR For the six months ended 30 June 2012
BN ARKTT
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30A 161 A M
For the six months ended 30 June
iz 2012% PIRE:
R Item Note 2012 2011
- BERA 1. Operating income (1) (X). 4 533,080,596.01 800,299,372.64
B EERA Less: Operating costs () (%). 4 396,054,285.03 598,303,102.87
2ERE R Business taxes and surcharges 2,032,102.00 5,428,107.63
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 50,022,570.31 60,646,956.18
ERER General and administrative expenses 69,069,595.54 59,627,236.71
HHER(F RGN - | RET) Financial expenses ("=" for net income) 3,144,787.50 -719,331.08
BEREEX Impairment losses 23,517,148.14 42,414,353.97
M mEREERA - I5RET) Add: Investment income (“~" for loss) () .5 617,934.94 3,646,444.30
A HBERERNAELENRERS Including: Income from investment
in associates and jointly
controlled entities 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
“%*‘JT (BB - J5RE5) 2. Operating profit (“-" for loss) -10,141,957.57 38,245,390.66
me EEMNEA Add: Non-operating income 13,583,091.41 2,357,738.52
e BEIEM Less: Non-operating expenses 17,500.00 1,321,247.89
B ERBEERERX Including: Losses from disposal of
non-current assets - 334,890.75
S FBAR(BFRARNU - I%ED) 3. Profit before income tax ("-" for total loss) 3,423,633.84 39,281,881.29
B FERER(MENA - 15HES) Less: Income tax expenses ("~" for tax credit) -3,605,358.08 1,865,742.55
FRBORBERA - SRES) 4. Net profit (“-" for net loss) 7,028,991.92 37,416,138.74
I HftiRANE 5. Other comprehensive income - -
A BENBRE 6. Total comprehensive income 7,028,991.92 37,416,138.74

B TRRER2012F8 A27HEESE 2/ ©  The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 27 August 2012.

EEREA

* Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
TEGAIEEREA:  FE

The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

e
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#HE2012%6 A30H 1616 A #AfE

BZ26A30RL6EAHE
For the six months ended 30 June
k3 20126 W1E
ER Item Note 2012 2011
- QBEEBELNRENE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HEHn  REAKIIINRS Cash received from sale of goods
and rendering of services 624,424,901.39 954,577,598.45
B ERE Refund of taxes - 66,264.68
WHERRELEDERNRS Other cash received relating to
operating activities (Z) (V). 43(1) 19,003,140.52 5,723,173.58
BEERRETANGT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 643,428,041.91 960,367,036.71
BEAR  BRABIANRS Cash paid for goods and services 423,642,078.59 720,004,232.45
THGEINRARIZNRAS Cash paid to and for employees 164,870,188.66 136,622,643.67
SRHEERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 34,245,894.63 70,456,934.18
THERELLESEENR Other cash paid relating to operating activities (&) (V). 4302) 23,914,506.53 42,711,235.91
BEERRETM G Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 646,672,668.41 969,795,046.21
BEFOEANRLRETE Net cash flows from operating activities (E) (V). 44(1) -3,244,626.50 -9,428,009.50
I RETHELNRLRE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
DERERERZI MBS Cash received from return on investments 5,000,000.00 6,000,000.00
REETEE BVAENERRS Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

EENENREEE intangible assets and other long-term assets 39,930.77 561,320.00
REFAAMEMEL TR Net cash received from disposal of a subsidiary () (V). 44(2) 943,758.31 -
IEIRELER Cash received from security deposit 4,000,000.00 -
REFBBLRANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 9,983,689.08 6,561,320.00

BEETAE EVAENEMRY

ESULE S
RATLRBHEIRNALED
XfIFRERER

RERIRDRM /N

RETPELNAEREFR

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets
Decrease in cash from losing control of a subsidiary (7)) (V). 44(2)
Cash paid for security deposit

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

61,300,594.15
5,970,608.35
829,831.87

43,121,146.06

8,900,588.71

68,101,034.37

52,021,734.77

-58,117,345.29

-45,460,414.77
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EHRERER(REE) ()

HZE20129F6A30H |E61E A HiR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Unaudited

(Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2012

wEEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30AL6EAHM
For the six months ended 30 June
#it 2012% 0115
15 Item Note 2012 2011
S EETBELENERENE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities:

DEENIEORE Cash received from borrowings 45,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
WEmERREEEDERNRE Other cash received relating to financing activities - 27,167,565.87
ELEPRER NN Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activites 4500000000 47,167,565.87
EREEAORS Cash repayments of borrowings 20,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
ARER - HEREAFS L AORE Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profit or

repayment of interest 11,494,175.78 21,013,592.51

SERPRLRL &

EELDELNANERR

M EZABURERALSENNEE

B RERRESENFENE
(BEHU - [523)
m:BNReREeSENHE

A BRRERREEENGE

W HHRERCON2012F8A27HEEE= @k -

EEREA T
TEGHIEFREA: FBEZ

SEIRBRAA

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
("-"for net decrease)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Legal representative of the Company:

(F) (). 4401)

The person in charge of

accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department:

31,494,175.78 51,013,592.51
13,505,824.22 -3,846,026.64
-40,835.53 -688,176.65
-47,896,983.10 -59,422,621.56
175,808,019.62 285,882,274.37
127,911,036.52 226,459,646.81

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 27 August 2012.

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

-
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#HE2012%6 A30H 161 A HAfHE

Unit: |
BZE6A300 L6AAME
For the six months ended 30 June
izt 20128 2015
HE Item Note 2012 2011
- BETBELNRERE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HERm  RESHRINRS Cash received from sale of goods
and rendering of services 523,493,121.18 835,467,222.88
KIEmELREDEANES Other cash received relating to operating activities 18,111,450.82 4,506,090.21
TREBRS TN Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 541,604,572.00 839,973,313.09
BEAED  BX4BINHRS Cash paid for goods and services 344,613,577.94 636,473,294.78
IRAEBINREBIZANES Cash paid to and for employees 150,183,591.48 125,431,927.88
INHNZERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 25,924,658.59 64,802,885.57
IHEHBELETHERNR S Other cash paid relating to operating activities 18,091,847 41 29,763,384.33
TEEBHR MM Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 538,813,675.42 856,471,492.56
REFHELNRLAEFE Net cash flows from operating activities (). 6 2,790,896.58 -16,498,179.47
2 RETHELENRERE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
BEFATMENELFE Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries 1,000,000.00 1,150,286.89
NERENERINRS Cash received from return on investments 6,989,605.81 6,000,000.00
RERTEAE BRAENLM Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

REEEWENRSER intangible assets and other long-term assets - 561,320.00
WERESFR Cash received from security deposit 4,000,000.00 -
REEZDHEETA NG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 11,989,605.81 7,711,606.89
BERETEE BRAENLEM Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

REBEXANRS intangible assets and other long-term assets 60,652,227.81 41,945,780.99
REEZDHEE L it Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 60,652,227 .81 41,945,780.99
RAERDELNFLRBIR Net cash flows from investing activities -48,662,622.00 -34,234,174.10
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HEREBR(REET) (4
#HZE20129F6 A30H 1-6{# A HARE

&)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Unaudited (Continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2012

TEEEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
HZ6A30A L6fAHM
For the six months ended 30 June
izt 2012F 20115
HE Item Note 2012 2011
= BEIHELNKENE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities:

BEEFRIIMNRE Cash received from borrowings 30,000,000.00 -
KIEMEMESEEHFENRE Other cash received relating to financing activities - 27,167,565.87
ELTHH TN Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 30,000,00000 27,167,565 87
EEEBLANAS Cash repayments of borrowings - 10,000,000.00
AERH - MEREAHEZF Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profit

fEe or repayment of interest 10,806,292.70 20,268,256.92
BEEBRSTL/ G Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 10,806,292.70 30,268,256.92
ELTHELNRETEFE Net cash flows from financing activities 19,193,707.30 -3,100,691.05

M EXEBHASRESSENNTE 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents -40,835.53 -688,176.65
I BERRLSENFENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(BRI - [ E51) ("-"for net decrease) (+)-(X. 6 -26,718,853.65 -54,521,221.27
n:BUReRELSENHE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period 143,087,572.52 248,304,966.05
A BRASRBSSENNE 6. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the period 116,368,718.87 193,783,744.78

B FEMAR O N 2012F8A27TREEE /A -

REREA T 4

TEEHIFREA:  FIE

SERIRBARAA T4
(AT%%

/

o

f}

~

the Company on 27 August 2012.

Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing

The person in charge of
accounting affairs:

Li Shunzhen

The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

-
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#HE2012%6 A30H 1616 A #AfHE

BENNE6ANALRREE BENMEGRNAL6RALE
For the six months ended 30 June 2012 For the six months ended 30 June 2011
g s Er0% BEOR  AREAE  JUBRER  BRERS iz Lo BA0E  AREAE  JUERER  BRREES
Total Total
Share Capital Surplus Retained Minority  shareholders' Share Capital Surplus Retained Minority  shareholders'
BB Item Note Gpitel reseve resenve eamings interests equity apitel resenve Tesenve eamings interests equity
- BiBE 1. Opening balance of
the curtent period S0LA0300 2130332072 11650800260 7272592210 SASAGAMBT0 145668479812  S30810300 2730331172 1090248362 70671603108 5689796543 143102320485
o KBNS 2. Changes during the perod
(R - ) (=" for decrease)
(-)5HE (1) Net profts - - - 3594954 1366825 349581269 - - 28421 46778105 423040832
[t (2) Other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - - - - -
B-IR(=ps Subotl of (1) and (2) - - - IMEN 3RS 34558169 - - ST GRS 34082
(S)HEMR (3) Appropriation of proits (%) () 22
1 EREHLE () Appropriaon of
surplus eserie - - - - - - - - - - -
1 HRRIAR () isrbuton to
shreolders - - - -l062,62206 - 106262206 - - - 265540505 - 2055405515
(mzfy () Others
1 BAFATESE () Efect oflosing contol
9)ehzEs of 3 subsdary on
i minorty inttets - - - - 6eEST -1T66ESST - - - - -
= BRbE 3. Closing balance of
the curtent period S3OBI10300 230332172 11650800260 7201679528 5423310064 14493231324 S3OBIM0300 27303372 1090481362 T2.9B/NN 643018438 144677327292

W BRE O R2012488A27HEESE @/ o The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 27 August 2012.

EERERA T 8
TEEFIFAREA: FEE

7

accounting affairs:

BIHBREA

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of

= The head of the accounting department:

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

Li Hongning

(Seal of the Company)
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BRERSHR(RLHFT)
#HZE20129F6 A30H 1-6{# A HARE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY- Unaudited
For the six months ended 30 June 2012

TRRENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
BZ20156530A LR EH EZ201156R30A L6BREH
For the six months ended 30 June 2012 For the six months ended 30 June 2011

wi f& EA0E BAME  AREAE  RREES & E50E BAME  AOEAE  RREES

Total Total

Share Capital Surplus Retained  shareholders Share Captal Surplus Retained shareholders'

18 Item Note capital Teserve reserve eamings equity capital reserve reserve eamings equity

- B8E 1. Opening balance of the current period 5308100300 2730332072 11650800260 69471249907 136960492639 53108110300 273033172 10902482362 65391794345 1.321327,191.79
ZOREEREEEE 2 Changes during the period

(oM - gl (=" for decrease)

(=) 578 (1) Net profits - - - 7089 7089919 - B - 3741613874 3741613874

(o) Rtk {2) Gther comprehiensiv income - - - - - - - - - -

L= Sub-total of (1) and (2 - - - 70891 7089919 - B - 3741613874 3741613874
(=) HEAR (3) Appropriation of profis

| ROEBLE () Appropriation of surpls resene - - - - - - - - - -

2 HRENAE () Distbution to shareholders - - - 1062162206 -10,621,622.06 - - - DBSSA05515 2655405515

BRS¢ 3. Closing balance of the current period 53108110300 2730332172 11650800260  691,11986893 136601229625  531,081,10300 2730332172 10902482362  664,780,027.04 133218927538

SRR 2012F8A27THEE =S H# 4 -

EERERA T #=
ITEEHITFREA: FIED

SRIEBREA FUE

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 27 August 2012.

Legal representative of the Company: Wang Xing
The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

I <o

MEEEEARKROERAA 2012 FHRE




ISR M (BRIGBIGEASN S HEMRD
AR¥T)

(=)~ RFEERER

o 5E B R BB IR AR (0 B PR 2 R (A T 578
[ARRGE])RMI1993F 10198 EH ZE A
RAMB(THRHEDKZBRDERDA -
AARMEFMiba AR BEEREEBETR
BEK235% o

N2 B) A2 A B BB M IR R A P B B SR AT 7 A8
Bl E R E S E[1993] 1735k L& -
EHARFIBRLHORMDERLDE - RUFEA
BEEAI EBEKKROERAR (AT
TRIE#]) - EREHIREIAER1993F6A4
30EMEEABIRALRRAR . FMLEER
B LSRN BAETT T EEFNE
FHEFEEERBARK17,925.878 7T ° It
HMEHTHBEREABEEEEERHE T
[1993) 4205 FE 1zt - BEFEEHREH
BEEEERBEEM®KEL1993] 11455 -
FHCFEER B EEF i BT
HEERABARES 421718 7T BIEH
BiERFEEGIHEBARK14,504.16
BT ) 1%82.74% /) £ 51 #7 A120,007,400
B - SR mEEARKI00T B K
KRBREEHFEMAE ARBTIAKER
BENA D B A102,397,700/% M &
17,609,700 °

LRGBS LZEgR L E[1993]505 8
o B3 F12AEEEHMAR ST
BREAFETE 16,5008 BHE » &%
HEARE1.000T : WHR1994F 18 F £
BEAER ST ET6,0008 KA -
SREEARY1.007T -

P by =1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ArFfa '
expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified)

(OF

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China
("the PRC") with limited liability on 19 October 1993. The place
of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC.

The Company is a stock company limited by restructuring from
Kunming Machine Tool Plant approved by [1993] No. 173 Ti
Gai Sheng issued by the State Economic Reform Commission.
The name at establishment was Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (“Kunji”). Kunming Machine Tool Plant
used its assets and liabilities at 30 June 1993 to invest in
the Company. The above assets and liabilities were assessed
by Shanghai Accounting Firm. The assessed net assets were
RMB179,258,700. The assessment was approved by [1993] No.
420 Guo Zi Ping issued by the National State-owned Assets
Administration Commission. According to [1993] No. 114
Guo Zi Qi Han Fa issued by the National State-owned Assets
Administration Commission, the assessed state-owned land
use rights included in the above net assets should be reduced
by RMB34,217,100, meanwhile, 82.74% of the adjusted net
assets (assessment value was RMB145,041,600) was discounted
to 120,007,400 shares with par value RMB1.00 per share. The
original investors of Kunming Machine Tool Plant, Yunnan
Provincial People’s Government and Kunming Jinghua Company
Ltd., held 102,397,700 and 17,609,700 shares respectively.

Approved by [1993] No. 50 Zheng Wei Fa issued by the
Security Commission of the State Council, Kunji issued and
listed 65,000,000 H shares with par value RMB1.00 per share
in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December
1993. Then, it issued and listed 60,000,000 A shares with
par value RMB1.00 per share in Shanghai Stock Exchange in
January 1994.
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MR2000%F12 8258 AL XA KB E
(EE)BRARI(ATHEBI RARERX]) EHE
A ARBIFEIKRAE#EIH RO ER
NAREERGE) RAEEXZEER
BEARBITFHENREEIZ?D71,052,146
fR o ZREEZED LP BT BBOATE
BB DCEARRIARHBIERO A
RARRRKEZEFEMENIE) (i
[2001)283%% 3¢ ) #t ) - 720016 A5
H BEBFPFERK RAEEXAER
HE)E— KRR -

7200238290 A TEHITHEE
BBEMPEEINE B ELES BB -
ERMEEEETIETHREERNETEAR
BIEZMTIEERTE  HEBAR AR
BIERFAFTABI X AEREERDBR
REJATEBIZRE#K]) -

MR2005F9 158 » X K& % 8L 5 # K
(EBE)BRETAR([LHEER )RR
EEERE) O AMEEBRREBRIREE
BHHEHNRZRKEME7D71,052,1460% %%
REECHGERNEEEEEEELE S
(AR KERBHE R D AR AR EH A RKE
EEHMENER) (BEER[2006] 628
O E YETEELAEEETELZES
(ATt e (BRI HEIR (ER)
EREAQFNEBIAEREEHERMDAER
AEMEBHENER) (FERARF[2006]
25557 ) 2 AZAIB - N2006F12A18 © %
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On 25 December 2000, Xi‘an Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation (“Jiaotong Group”) entered into Shares
Transfer Agreement of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Company Limited
with the People’s Government of Yunnan Province (“Yunnan
Government”) whereby Yunnan Government would transfer
71,052,146 state-owned shares of the Company to Jiaotong
Group. The transaction was approved by [2001] No. 283 Cai Qi —
the Approval of State-owned Shares Transfer of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Company Limited issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC. Upon completion of share transfer procedure on
5 June 2001, Jiaotong Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.

With effect from 29 March 2002, the Company used the name
“Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Company Limited” (”Jiaoda Kunji”)
jointly approved by the State Administration for Industry
and Commerce of the PRC and the Ministry of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of the PRC after completing the
business registration for change of company name in Yunnan
Commercial and Industrial Administration Bureau.

On 15 September 2005, Jiaotong Group and Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shenji Group”) entered into
a Share Transfer Agreement. Shenji Group agreed to purchase
71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda Kunji held by Jiaotong Group.
The share transfer was approved pursuant to the “Written
Reply regarding the Transfer of State-owned Shares of Jiaoda
Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 628)
issued by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee of the State Council and the Opinion on Information
Disclosure of the Acquisition of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.
by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Gong
Si[2006] No. 255) by China Securities Regulation Committee.
On 1 December 2006, the register of equity transfer was
completed and Shenji Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.
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Government of Yunnan Province regarding the Transfer of Title
of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” issued by the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province and the “Written Reply of
Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee regarding the Grant of Authorization to Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. to Exercise the
Shareholders’ Right of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” issued
by Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee, 31,345,554 state-owned shares held by the People’s
Government of Yunnan were transferred to Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Co., Ltd.”) at nil consideration on 31 December
2005. The share transfer was approved by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of the State
Council pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding the Transfer
of Part of the State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech
Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 1412). The transfer
was completed on 19 January 2007.

On 25 January 2007, the “Written Reply regarding the Transfer
of Shares and Increase in Share of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co.,
Ltd.” (Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 133) was issued by the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC to approve the share reform proposal
of the Company, pursuant to which a total of 38,235,855
shares (as to 28,091,955 A Shares and 10,143,900 H Shares
respectively) were transferred from the capital reserve to all
the shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’s
register of members on 26 February 2007 on the basis of 1.5606
shares for every 10 shares held. On 5 March 2007, the holders
of non-circulating shares of the Company made the payment
with a total of 18,728,355 shares held as consideration to
the holders of circulating A Shares on the basis of 2.7 shares
for every 10 shares held. The new A Shares were listed on 7
March 2007. Of the 18,728,355 shares, Shenji Group, Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. and Kunming Jinghua
Company contributed as to 11,088,398 shares, 4,891,787
shares and 2,748,170 shares respectively. After implementation
of the consideration arrangement, non-circulating shares held
by the holders of non-circulating shares of the Company
became tradable and listed.
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On 23 March 2007, approved by the shareholders’ meeting of
Jiaoda Kuniji, Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Company changed its name
to Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited.

Approved by the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 29 June 2007, based on total share capital of 283,243,255
shares of the Company, increased shares on the basis of 5
shares for every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by
capitalization of capital reserve, totally increased 141,621,628
shares. After the share increase, total issued share capital of
the Company was 424,864,883 shares, and total registered
capital of the Company was RMB424,864,883. The resolution
was approved by the “Written Reply regarding the Change of
Name and Increase in Share Capital of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech
Co., Ltd.” (Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 1390) issued by the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC.

Pursuant to the “Written Reply on the Change in Shareholders
of the Six Listed Companies including Yunnan Salt & Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2009] No. 1182) issued
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council on 22 October 2009,
47,018,331 shares of the Company held by Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd. were transferred to Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan
Industrial Investment”) to perform the obligations as the
contributor of state-owned assets.

Approved by the shareholders’ meeting held on 23 June
2010, based on total share capital of 424,864,883 shares of
the Company, increased shares on the basis of 2.5 shares for
every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by capitalization
of capital reserve, totally increased 106,216,220 shares. After
the share increase, total issued share capital of the Company
would be 531,081,103 shares, and total registered capital
of the Company would be RMB531,081,103. The resolution
was approved by the “Written Reply from the Department
of Commerce of Yunnan Province concerning its Consent to
the Increase in Share Capital by Capitalization of the Capital
Reserve by Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company
Limited” (Yun Shang Zi [2010] No. 130).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
mainly engage in development, design, production and sales
of machine tool series products and accessories and turbo
machine series products and accessories.
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(I1). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES::’-‘.

COMPANY AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

Statement of compliance with the corporate
accounting standards

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises — Basic Standard” and 38 Specific Standards
issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, and
application guidelines, explanations to corporate accounting
standards and other relevant regulations issued subsequently
(collectively referred to as “corporate accounting standards”).
These financial statements provide a true and complete
presentation of the consolidated financial position and financial
position, the consolidated financial performance and financial
performance and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows
of the Company.

These financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of “Regulation on the Preparation of Information
Disclosures of Companies Issuing Public Shares, No. 15: General
Requirements for Financial Reports” as revised by the CSRC in
2010 in relation to the disclosure requirements of the financial
statements and their accompanying notes.

Accounting period

The accounting period commences on 1 January and ends on
31 December.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The Company presents the financial statements in RMB. The
functional currency is determined by the Company and its
subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which major income
and costs are denominated and settled.
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Accounting treatment for business combination
under common control and not under common
control

(1)

(2)

Business combination under common control

A business combination under common control is a
business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the combination, and that control is not
transitory. Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the
acquirer in a business combination shall be measured
at their carrying amounts at the combination date as
recorded by the party being acquired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained
and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the
combination (or the aggregate face value of shares issued
as consideration) shall be adjusted to share premium under
capital reserve (or capital premium). If the share premium
under capital reserve (or capital premium) is not sufficient
to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted
against retained earnings. Expenses that are directly
attributable to business combination are expensed in the
profit and loss at the period incurred. The combination
date is the date on which the acquiring party effectively
obtains control of the party being acquired.

Business combinations not under common control

A business combination not under common control is
a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party
or parties both before and after the combination. The
sum of the assets paid (including the equity interest of
acquiree held before the date of acquisition) and liabilities
incurred or committed and the equity securities issued
by the Group as an acquirer for obtaining the controlling
interests of the acquiree measured at fair value on the
date of acquisition minus the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets in the combination, if the difference
is positive, it should be recognized as goodwill (please
refer to note Il. 17), or if the difference is negative, it
shall be included in the profit or loss for the period. The
transaction expenses of issuing equity securities or liability
securities as consideration for combination are included
as the initial measurement amount of equity securities
or liability securities. The direct expenses incurred in
business combination shall be included in the profit or loss
for the period. The difference between the fair value of
assets paid and its book value should be included in the
profit or loss for the period. The Group shall recognize
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired in the business combination at their
fair values on the acquisition date that meet the criteria
for recognition. Acquisition date is the date on which the
acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.
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Preparation of consolidated financial stater

The consolidated financial statements are based on control for
the scope of consolidation, and comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its operating activities. The financial position, financial
performance and cash flow of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period,
through a business combination involving entities under
common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary
are included in the consolidated financial statements as if the
combination had occurred at the date that common control
was established. Therefore, the opening balances and the
comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements
are restated. In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and financial
performance are included in the consolidated balance sheet
and the consolidated income statement, respectively, based on
their carrying amounts, from the date that common control
was established.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period,
through a business combination involving entities not under
common control, the acquired subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date,
and based on the fair value of those identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

For a business combination not involving enterprises under
common control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasured
its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair
value at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount is recognized as investment
income for the current period; the amount recognized in other
comprehensive income relating to the previously-held equity
interest in the acquiree is reclassified as investment income
for the current period.
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Where the Company acquires a minority interest from a
subsidiary’s minority shareholders or disposes of a portion of
an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the
difference between the amount by which the minority interests
are adjusted and the amount of the consideration paid or
received is adjusted to the capital reserve (share premium) in
the consolidated balance sheet. If the credit balance of capital
reserve (share premium) is insufficient, any excess is adjusted
to retained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the
disposal of a portion of an equity investment or otherwise,
the Group ceases to recognize the assets, liabilities, minority
interests and other related items of the interests related to
the subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is remeasured
at its fair value at the date when control is lost. Any profit
or loss incurred is recognized as investment income for the
current period when control is lost.

Minority interest is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet within shareholders’ equity. Net profit or loss and
comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders
are presented separately in the consolidated income statement
below the items of net profit and total comprehensive income,
respectively.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to
the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the minority
shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of shareholders’
equity of the subsidiary, the excess is allocated against the
minority interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the
Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group balances
and transactions, and any unrealized profit or loss arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
evidence of impairment.

Determination of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Foreign currency transactions 1

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency
transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to Renminbi
at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.

A spot exchange rate is an exchange rate quoted by the
People’s Bank of China or a cross rate determined based on
quoted exchange rates.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit
or loss, except those arising from the principals and interests
on foreign currency borrowings specifically for the purpose of
acquisition, construction of qualifying assets for capitalization
(see Note II. 15). Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are to remain
their amounts in their accounting currencies. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rate at
the date the fair value is determined; the resulting exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Group comprise cash at bank and
on hand, receivables, payables, loans and share capital, etc.

(1) Financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition, based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities: loans
and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are included in their initial costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition financial assets and liabilities are measured
as follows:
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3)

- Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
stated at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

- Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and shall not be offset.
However, a financial asset and a financial liability shall be
offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has a legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and the legal right is currently
enforceable;

- the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

Determination of fair values

If there is an active market for a financial asset or financial
liability, the quoted price in the active market is used to
establish the fair value.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a
valuation technique is used to establish the fair value.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties; reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same and discounted
cash flow analysis. The Group calibrates the valuation
technique and tests it for validity periodically.
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(4)

(5)

Derecognition of financial assets and financia

A financial asset is derecognized if the Group's contractua
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or if the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another

party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets
the criteria of the derecognition, the difference between
the two amounts below is recognized in profit or loss:

- carrying amount of the financial asset transferred;

- the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gains or losses from
changes in fair value that has been recognized
directly in equity.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or part of
it) only when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is provided.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes, but is not limited to the following:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) strong probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or go through another type of financial
reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for the
financial asset due to serious financial difficulties
on the part of the issuer;

(e) significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which
the issuer operates, indicating that the cost of the
investment in the equity instrument may not be
recovered by the investor;
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10.

(f)  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an equity instrument investment to below cost.

For the measurement of impairment of receivables, refer
to Note Il. 10.
(6)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that proves the residual
interest of the assets after deducting all liabilities in the
Company.

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognized in
shareholders’ equity.

Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment both on an individual
basis and on a collective group basis.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated as the
excess of its carrying amount over the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The Group discounts the carrying amount of the
receivables to its present value and the discounted amount is
recognized as impairment loss of asset, all impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables share
similar credit risk characteristics (including those having
not been individually assessed as impaired), based on their
historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the observable
figures reflecting present economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on receivables,
there is objective evidence of a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss will not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

-
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Significant single acc

single bad debt provision:
Judgment basis or criteria for receiv:
individually significant

@  type of trade receivable (trade receivables): criteria:
RMB7,000,000 for single accounts receivable;

@  type of other receivable (other receivables): criteria:
RMB3,500,000 for single accounts receivable;

® type of personal accounts receivable (other
receivables): criteria: RMB100,000 for single accounts
receivable.

Method of provision for bad and doubtful debts for
receivables that are individually significant and assessed
individually

The bad debt provision made for individually significant
accounts receivable adopted both on individual basis
and on collective combination basis. First by individual
impairment test, if the present value of estimated future
cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate is less than its carrying value, the difference
should be recognized as impairment loss and should make
provision. If the impairment not being incurred after the
individual test, the accounts receivable should combine
with other receivables to provide bad debt provision by
credit risk characteristic combination (see (b) below).
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Bad debt provision for accounts

combination:

receivable by

For accounts receivable not impaired after individual test
which stated in (a) above, the Group will include it in
the accounts receivable combination with similar credit
risk characteristics to do the test again.

Divide the accounts
receivable into two
groups based on
companies’ nature

Basis for
determining groups

Receivables from third parties
Receivables from related parties

Group 1
Group 2

Methods for providing bad debt
provision by different groups

Group 1 Ageing analysis
Group 2 Individual assessment
In group 1, provision for bad debts made by ageing
analysis:

Percentage Percentage
of provision for  of provision
trade receivable for other

Ageing (%) receivables (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 5% 5%
1-2 years (including 2 years) 30% 50%
2-3 years (including 3 years) 60% 100%
Over 3 years 95% 100%

In group 2, individual impairment test will be conducted
to accounts receivable of related parties at the end of the
period. Should objective evidence show that it incurred
impairment, according to the difference between the
present value of future estimated cash flow and the book
value, assets impairment should be recognized. Should
no objective evidence show that it has impairment, no
bad debt provision should be made.

I
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11.

Inventories

(1)

(2)

(3)

Classification

Inventories include raw material, work in process, semi-
finished goods, finished goods and reusable materials.
Reusable materials include low-value consumables,
packaging materials and other materials, which can be
used repeatedly but do not meet the definition of fixed
assets.

Cost of inventories transferred out

The actual cost of inventories transferred out is calculated
using the weighted average method.

The underlying factors in the determination of net
realizable value of inventories and the basis of provision
for diminution in value of inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenses that to help deliver the
inventories to the current location and situation. In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value at the balance sheet date.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and the related
taxes necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value
of materials held for use in the production of inventories
is measured based on the net realizable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated. The
net realizable value of the quantity of inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is based on the contract
price. If the quantities of inventories specified in sales
contracts are less than the quantities held by the Group,
the net realizable value of the excess portion of inventories
shall be based on general selling prices.
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4)

(5)

(1)

Any excess of the cost over the net realizable value of
each item of inventories is recognized as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories and charged to
profit or loss.

Inventory system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
Amortization of consumables including low-value

consumables and packaging material

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are amortized in full when received
for use. The amounts of the amortization are included in
the cost of the related assets or profit or loss.

12. Long-term equity investments

Initial investment cost

(a) Long-term equity investments acquired through a
business combination

- The initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment obtained through a
business combination involving entities under
common control is the Company’s share of the
subsidiary’s equity at the combination date. The
difference between the initial investment cost
and the carrying amounts of the consideration
given is adjusted to share premium in capital
reserve. If the balance of the share premium is
insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained
earnings.

- For long-term equity investments obtained
through business combinations involving
enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost represents the aggregate
of the fair values of assets transferred, liabilities
assumed, and equity securities issued by the
Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For a long-term equity investment
obtained through a business combination
not involving enterprises under common
control and achieved in stages, the initial cost
comprises the carrying value of previously-held
equity investment in the acquiree immediately
before the acquisition date, and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition date.

.
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through a business co

-~ An investment in a subsic
otherwise than through a business co

is initially recognized at actual payment cost

if the Group acquires the investment by cash,
or at the value stipulated in the investment
contract or agreement if an investment is
contributed by shareholders.

(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit and

loss

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
measured subsequently by using the cost method.
Cash dividends or profit distributions declared by
subsidiaries and attributed to the Company shall
be recognized as investment income (regardless of
whether it is the net profit realized by the investee
before or after the investment), except those that
have been declared but unpaid at the time of
acquisition and therefore included in the price paid
or consideration.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment in the balance sheet.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for in accordance with the principles
described in Note Il. 6.
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Investment in jointly controlled enterprises and
associates

A jointly controlled enterprise is an enterprise which
operates under joint control (see Note II. 12(3)) in
accordance with a contractual agreement between
the Group and other parities.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note Il. 12(3)).

An investment in a jointly controlled enterprise or an
associate is accounted for using the equity method
when subsequent measurement is made, unless the
investment meets the requirements as held-for-sale
(see Note Il. 26).

The Group makes the following accounting
treatments when using the equity method:

- Where the initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment exceeds the Group's interest
in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognized at the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group's interest in the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets, the investment is initially recognized
at the investor’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the
difference is charged to profit or loss.

- After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net
profit or loss after deducting the amortisation of
the debit difference which is recognized by the
Group before the first-time adoption of CAS,
as investment income or losses, and adjusts
the carrying amount of investment accordingly.
The debit balance of the equity investment
difference is amortized using the straight-line
method over the period which is determined in
accordance with previous accounting standards.
Once the investee declares any cash dividends
or profits distributions, the carrying amount of
the investment is reduced by that attributable
to the Group.

-
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net profits or losses after making appropriate
adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group
based on the fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Unrealized profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates or jointly controlled enterprises
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates or jointly controlled
enterprises using the equity method. Unrealized
losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or jointly controlled
enterprises are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains but only to the extent that
there is evidence of impairment.

The Group discontinues recognizing its share
of net losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
and any long-term interest that in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the jointly controlled enterprises is
reduced to zero, except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation to assume additional
losses. Where net profits are subsequently
made by the associate or jointly controlled
enterprises, the Group resumes recognizing
its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognized.

For other changes of shareholders’ equity other
than net profits or losses of jointly controlled
enterprises or associates, the Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment and recognizes it in shareholder’s
equity.
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Other long-term equity investments

Other long-term equity investments refer to
investments where the Group does not have
control, joint control or significant influence over
the investees, and the investments are not quoted
in an active market and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

Other long-term equity investments are accounted for
subsequently using the cost method. Cash dividends
or profit distributions declared by subsidiaries and
attributed to the Group shall be recognized as
investment income (regardless of whether it is the
net profit realized by the investee before or after the
investment), except those that have been declared
but unpaid at the time of acquisition and therefore
included in the price paid or consideration.

Basis for determining the existence of joint control or
significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractual agreed sharing of control
over an investee's economic activity, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to
the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing the control. The following evidences shall be
considered when determining whether the Group can

I8 exercise joint control over an investee:

- RAEA-—ERETHTEE -
BIEBIREEEVNEERE
E

- YREREAEUEREEED -
MAKRDBEEREN —

FIE :

- WMREBFRETEBERLDBE -
M ERERN—EARES
HEREBEUNBAEESETT
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TEE-RRABTHNTHMEL
BUREE AT E IR E

no single investor is in a position to control the
operating activities unilaterally;

operating decisions relating to the investee’s
economic activity require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing the control,

if the parties sharing the control appoint one investor
as the operator or manager of the jointly controlled
enterprises through the contractual arrangement, the
operator must act within the financial and operating
policies that have been agreed by the investors in
accordance with the contractual arrangement.
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(4)

financial and operating policy decisions of an investe
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
following one or more evidences shall be considered when
determining whether the Group can exercise significant
influence over an investee:

- representation on the board of directors or equivalent
governing body of the investee;

- participation in policy-making processes;

- material transactions between the investor and the
investee;

- interchange of managerial personnel;
- provision of essential technical information.

Method of impairment testing and measuring

For the method of impairment testing and measuring for
subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates,
refer to Note Il. 19.

For other long-term equity investments, the carrying
amount is required to be tested for Impairment at the
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that the
investments may be impaired, the impairment shall be
assessed on an individual basis. The impairment loss is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount
of the investment exceeds the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
on return for a similar financial asset, and is recognized
in profit or loss. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
The other long-term equity investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses in the balance sheet.
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13. Fixed assets

(1)

(2)

Recognition criteria for fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in the production of goods, provision of
services or for operation and administrative purposes
with useful lives over one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the
purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets
is measured in accordance with the policy set out in
Note II. 14.

Where parts of an item of fixed asset have different
useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in different
patterns thus necessitating use of different depreciation
rates or methods, each part is recognized as a separate
fixed asset.

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria are
satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to—day servicing of
fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation method for fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives on the basis of cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment,
except for those which meet the requirement as held-
for-sale (refer to Note Il. 26).

The depreciation period and residual value rate of each
type of fixed assets are as follows:

Annual

Depreciation Residual depreciation

Type period (year) value rate (%) rate (%)
Buildings and structures 40 years 5% 2.38%
Machinery equipment 5-20 years 5% 4.75% - 19%
Transportation equipment 5 - 14 years 5% 6.78% - 19%
Electronic equipment 5- 14 years 5% 6.78% - 19%

Useful lives, estimated net residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least each year-end.
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(3)  For the method of impairment testing and provis
impairment, refer to Note /I.19.

(4) Recognition and measurement of fixed assets acquired
under finance leases
For the recognition and measurement of fixed assets
acquired under finance leases, refer to the accounting
policy set out in Note Il. 25 (2).

(5) Disposal of fixed assets

The carrying amount of a fixed asset shall be
derecognized:

- on disposal; or

- when no future economic benefits are expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, and are recognized in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

14. Construction in progress

15.

The cost of self-constructed fixed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, borrowing costs that meet the criteria
for capitalization (see Note 1.15), and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use.

A self-constructed fixed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed assets when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress. Construction in progress is stated in
the balance sheet at cost less provision for impairment (see
Note 11.19).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
the cost of the asset.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are recognized as
financial expenses in the income statement when incurred.
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During the capitalization period, the amount of interest
(including amortization of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalized in each accounting period is
determined as follows:

- Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset, the amount of interest
to be capitalized is the interest expense calculated using
effective interest rates during the period less any interest
income earned from depositing the borrowed funds or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds before being used on the asset.

- Where funds are borrowed generally and used for the
acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings
is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative
expenditures on the asset over the above amounts
of specific borrowings. The capitalization rate is the
weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the
general-purpose borrowings.

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flow through the expected life
of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the initially recognized amount of the borrowings.

During the capitalization period, exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose borrowing
denominated in foreign currency are capitalized as part of the
cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on foreign currency borrowings
other than a specific-purpose borrowing are recognized as
a financial expense in profit and loss in the period they are
incurred.

The capitalization period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalization of borrowing costs to the
date of cessation of capitalization, excluding any period over
which capitalization is suspended. Capitalization of borrowing
costs commences when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities of
acquisition and construction that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use are in progress, and ceases when the
assets become ready for their intended use. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended when the acquisition, construction
activities are interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts
for over three months.

I
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16.

17.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment losses (see Note
[1.19). Intangible asset’s cost less estimated residual value and
accumulated impairment loss is amortized on the straight-
line method over its estimated useful life, except that the
intangible asset match the conditions of held-for-sale (refer
to Note 11.26). The respective amortization periods for such
intangible assets are as follows:

Item Amortization period
Land use rights 50 years
Various software 3 — 10 years
Others 5 - 10 years

Expenditures on an internal research and development
project are classified into expenditures on the research phase
and expenditures on the development phase. Expenditures
on research phase are recognized in profit or loss when
incurred. Expenditures on development phase are capitalized
if development costs can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development. Capitalized development costs are stated in
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note 11.19).
Other development expenditures are recognized as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

The initial cost of Goodwill caused by business combination
not under common control is the excess of combination cost
and the fair value of obtained identifiable net assets obtained
from the acquiree.

Goodwill is not amortized. Goodwill is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses in the balance sheet (see
Note I1.19). Goodwill is transferred when its related assets or
assets group is disposed, and recognized in profit or loss for
the period.
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18.

19.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortized in equal installments
over the period that it enjoys benefits. Amortization periods
for expenditures are:

Item Amortization period

Decoration 5 years

Impairment of assets other than inventories,

financial assets and other long-term equity
investments

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date based on the internal and external
sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment:

- Fixed assets

- Construction in progress

- Assets acquired under finance lease

- Intangible assets

- Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled enterprises and associates

- Goodwill
- Long-term deferred expenses

- Other non-current assets etc.

f any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In addition,
whether impairment evidence exists or not, the Group assesses
the recoverable amount of goodwill at the end of each year.
The Group amortizes the book value of goodwill based on
benefit from the synergies of the business combination on
its related asset or combination of assets, and on this basis
conducts impairment test for goodwill annually.

The recoverable amount of an asset, asset group or set of asset
groups is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
present value of expected future cash flows.
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20.

that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups. An asset
group is composed of assets directly relating to cash-generation.
Identification of an asset group is mainly based on whether
the asset group can generate cash inflows independently.
In identifying an asset group, the Group also considers how
management monitors the Group’s operations and how
management makes decisions about using or disposing of
the company’s assets.

An asset’s fair value less costs to sell is the amount determined
by the price of a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction,
less the costs that are directly attributable to the disposal of
the asset. The present value of expected future cash flows of
an asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset and
from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using an
applicable pre-tax discount rate.

If the result of the recoverable amount estimation indicates the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is recognized as an impairment loss
and charged to profit or loss for the current period. A provision
for impairment loss of the asset is recognized accordingly.
For impairment losses related to an asset group or a set of
asset groups, first reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset
group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However,
the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be reduced
below the highest of its individual fair value less costs to sell
(if determinable), the present value of expected future cash
flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Provisions

A provision is recognized for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows.
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21.

Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the inflows result
in increase in shareholder’s equity, other than increase relating
to contributions from shareholders. Revenue is recognized in
profit or loss when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group, the revenue and costs can be measured
reliably and the following respective conditions are met.

(1)

(2)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all of
the general conditions stated above and the following
conditions are satisfied:

- The significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyers;

- The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvements to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the considerations received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is measured at the
fair value of the considerations received or receivable
under the contract or agreement.

At the balance sheet date, where the outcome of a
transaction involving the rendering of services can be
estimated reliably, revenue from the rendering of services
is recognized in the income statement by reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction based on the
progress of work performed or the ratio of cost happened
to the proportion of total estimated cost.

Where the outcome of rendering of services cannot be
estimated reliably, if the costs incurred are expected to be
recoverable, revenues are recognized to the extent that
the costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable,
and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as
service cost; if the costs incurred are not expected to be
recoverable, the costs incurred are recognized in profit
or loss and no service revenue is recognized.
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22.

(3)

(4)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis

with reference to the principle and the applicable effective
interest rate.

Royalty income of intangible assets

Royalty income of intangible assets is calculated based
on the agreed charging time and method in the relevant
contract or agreement.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given and
other relevant expenditures incurred in exchange for services
rendered by employees. Except for termination benefits,
employee benefits are recognized as a liability in the period
in which the associated services are rendered by employees,
with a corresponding increase in cost of relevant assets or
expenses in the current period.

(a)

(b)

Social insurance benefit and housing fund

Pursuant to relevant regulations of PRC, the Group has
joined a social insurance system established and managed
by the government organization. At the applicable rates
based on the amounts stipulated by national government,
the Group has joined housing fund and made contributions
to the basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity
insurance. The contributions to social insurance and
housing fund mentioned above are recognized as cost
of assets or charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis.
The Group will have no further payment obligations
after periodic contributions mentioned above pursuant
to national regulations.

Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment relationship
with employees before the employment contracts have
expired, or provides compensation as an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
for the termination benefits provided, is recognized in
profit or loss when both of the following conditions have
been satisfied:

- The Group has a formal plan for the termination of
employment or has made an offer to employees for
voluntary redundancy, which will be implemented
shortly;

- The Group is not allowed to withdraw termination
plan or redundancy offer unilaterally.
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23.

24,

(c) Early retirement benefits

The early retirement is recognized only when the Group
has clear commitment to provide benefits to the staff
who initially retire early and the commitment cannot be
withdrawn unilaterally. If the related payment is over one
year and the amount is significant, the amounts should
be measured at discounted value.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-
monetary assets from the government to the Group at no
consideration except for the capital contribution from the
government as an investor in the Group. Special funds such
as investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly
defined in official documents as part of “capital reserve”
are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as
government grants.

A government grant is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary
asset, it is measured at the amount that is received or receivable.
If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-
monetary asset, it is measured at its fair value.

A government grant related to an asset is recognized initially
as deferred income and amortized to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses or losses to be incurred
in the subsequent periods is recognized initially as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss in the same periods in
which the expenses are recognized. A grant that compensates
the Group for expenses or losses incurred is recognized in
profit or loss immediately.

Income tax

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to business combinations
and transactions or items recognised directly in equity (including
other comprehensive income).

Current income tax is the expected income tax payable
calculated at the applicable tax rate on taxable income for
the year, plus any adjustment to income tax payable in respect
of previous years.

R
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liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases, which include the deductible losses and tax credits
carried forward to subsequent years. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is not recognized for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor the profit (or deductible loss).
Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the expected
manner of recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or the
liability is settled in accordance with tax laws.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date. The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefit
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset if both the following conditions are met:

- the taxable entity has the legal rights to settle the income
tax assets and income tax liabilities for the current period
by net amount;

- and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which either intend to settle the current
income tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred income tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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25. Operating and finance leases

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal title to
the asset is eventually transferred or not. An operating lease
is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1)

(2)

Assets acquired under operating leases

Rental payments under operating leases are recognized
as costs or expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance lease,
the asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower
of its fair values and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease. The minimum lease payments are recorded as
long-term payables. The difference between the value
of the leased assets and the minimum lease payments is
recognized as unrecognized finance charges. Initial direct
costs that are attributable to a finance lease incurred by
the Group are added to the amounts recognized for the
leased asset. Depreciation and impairment provisions are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
described in Notes I1.13 (2) and 11.19, respectively.

If there is a reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the leased asset is depreciated over its estimated useful
life. Otherwise, the leased asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and its estimated useful life.

Unrecognized finance charge under finance lease is
amortized using an effective interest method over the lease
term. The amortization is accounted for in accordance
with policies of borrowing costs (see Note 11.15).

At the balance sheet date, long-term payables arising from
finance leases, net of the unrecognized finance charges,
are presented into long-term liabilities and long-term
liabilities due within one year.

-
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26.

27.

28.

Assets held for sale

The Group has resolved and signed a non-cancellable agreement
on the transfer of the assets classified as held for sale with
the transferee, and the transfer is expected to be completed
within one year. Such non-current assets included fixed assets,
intangible assets, investment property subsequently measured
using the cost model, long-term equity investment (excluding
financial assets and deferred income tax assets). Non-current
assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and net realisable value. Any excess of the carrying amount
over the net realisable value is recognised as impairment loss.
At the balance sheet date, non-current assets held for sale are
presented into each asset item by category.

Profit distributions to shareholders

Dividends or distributions of profits proposed in the profit
appropriation plan which will be considered and approved after
the balance sheet date, are not recognized as a liability at the
balance sheet date but disclosed in the notes separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, or where two or
more parties are subject to common control, joint control or
significant influence from another party, they are considered
to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or
enterprises. Enterprises which is under common control only
from the State and that have no other related party relationships
are not regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and Company include, but are not limited to:

the Company’s parent;
the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c) enterprises that are controlled by the Company's
parent;

investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

enterprises or individuals under control, joint control or
significant influence over with the Group;

(f)  jointly controlled enterprises of the Group,
subsidiaries of jointly controlled enterprises;

including

associates of the Group,
associates;

including subsidiaries of
principal individual investors and close family members
of the Group;

(i)  key management personnel of the Group and close family
members of such individuals;
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29.

(j).  key management personnel of the Company’s parent;

close family members of key management personnel of
the Company’s parent; and

(I)  other enterprises that are controlled or jointly controlled
by principal individual investors, key management
personnel of the Group, and close family members of
such individuals.

Besides the related parties stated above, determined in
accordance with the requirements of CAS, the following
enterprises and individuals are considered as (but not restricted
to) relate parties of the Group or Company based on the
requirements of Administrative Procedures on the Information
Disclosures of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC:

(m) enterprises or persons acting in concert that hold 5% or
more of the Company’s shares;

individuals and close family members of such individuals
who directly or indirectly hold 5% or more of the
Company’s shares, supervisors for listed companies and
their close family members;

enterprises that satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(a), (c) and (m) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement;

individuals who satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(i), (j) and (n) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement; and

enterprises, other than the Company and subsidiaries
controlled by the Company, which are controlled directly
or indirectly by an individual defined in (i), (j), (n) or (p),
or in which such an individual assumes the position of
a director or senior executive.

Segment reporting

The Group determines the operating segments on the basis
of internal structure, management requirements and internal
reporting system, and determines reporting segments based on
the operating segments. An operating segment is a component
of the Group that meets the following criteria:

- that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily business
activities;

- whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group's management to allocate its resources and assess
its performance;

I
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30.

AN

- for which discrete financial information on fina _
positions, financial performance and cash flow:
available to the Group.

Two or more operating segments can be aggregated into one
operating segment if the segments have similar economic
characteristics and the segments are similar in each of the
following respects:

- the nature of each product and service;
- the nature of production process;

- the type or class of customers for their products and
services;

- the methods used to distribute their products or
provide their services;

- the influence brought by law, administrative regulations
on production of products and provision of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual
transaction price for such transactions for segment reporting,
and segment accounting policies are consistent with those used
for the preparation of financial statements of the Group.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Key assumptions and judgments on
uncertainties related to estimates are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Aparting the information of risk factors and assumption of the
impairment of goodwill and termination benefits contained in
Notes V. 11 and 21, other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of receivables

As described in Note I1.10, receivables that are measured
at amortization cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss
is provided. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about loss events such as a significant decline in
the estimated future cash flow of an individual debtor
or the portfolio of debtors, and significant changes in
the financial condition that have an adverse effect on
the debtor. If there is an indication that the receivables
has recovered to its value and is related to the events
occurred after the recognition of the loss, the impairment
loss recognized in prior years is reversed.

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

As stated in Note Il. 11, the Group estimates the net
realisable value of inventories periodically and recognize
the excess of inventory cost over its net realizable value
as diminution in value of inventories. When making
estimation of the realizable value of inventories, the Group
considers the purpose of holding the inventory based
on available information including its market price and
previous operation costs of the Group. The actual selling
price, production costs and sales expenses and taxes
may vary with sales status, production technologies or
the actual usage of the inventories and the provision for
diminution in value of inventories may change accordingly.
The adjustments to the provision for diminution in value
of inventories will have effects upon the profit and loss
for the period of change in estimation.

Impairment of other assets excluding inventories, financial
assets and other long-term equity investments

As described in Note 11.19, other assets excluding
inventories, financial assets and other long-term equity
investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount of the assets. If there are indications
that the carrying amount of the long-term asset cannot
be recovered, the asset is impaired and impairment loss
is provided.

—IE
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| ¥
The recoverable amount of an asset (asset

greater of its fair value net of selling price and its present

value of expected future cash flows. Since the market
price of the asset (the asset group) cannot be obtained
reliably, the fair value of the asset cannot be estimated
reliably. In assessing the present value of expected future
cash flows, significant judgments are exercised over the
asset’s production volume, selling price, related operating
expenses and discounting rate to calculate the present
value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are
used for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production volume, selling price
and related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumption.

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and
intangible assets

As described in Notes 11.13 and 16, fixed assets and
intangible assets are depreciated and amortized using the
straight-line method over their useful lives after taking
into account residual value. The estimated useful lives
are regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and
amortization costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives are determined based on historical experience
of similar assets and estimated technical changes. If there
is an indication that there has been a change in the factors
used to determine the depreciation or amortization, the
amount of depreciation or amortization is revised.

Product quality warranty

As described in Note V. 25, according to recent
maintenance experience, the Group has made provisions
for providing after-sales quality maintenance to its
customers on the sales of machine tool products. Since
the recent maintenance experience might not reflect
the maintenance information for sold products in the
future, the management needs to apply more judgments
to estimate the provisions. The increase or decrease of
the provisions will affect the profit or loss in the future
period.
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1> EEBERBR 1. Major types of tax and tax rates
BiE TRk E Bt R
Types Tax basis Tax rate
BER BREEREFT ENHEEMAMETH B WA 17%
VAT RERTEHBARE - EHGRE AR

HEANRRR RO REIEER

In accordance with Tax Law, tax on sales of
goods or taxable service income for the period
after deducting the current allowed deduction
of tax, the balance should be the taxable VAT
in accordance with the policies

EEM RIER & R W AGTHE 3%-5%
Business tax In accordance with taxable operating income
YR T A R SRR B RER N EET MBI ER 4.5%-7%
City construction tax In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

B BN RER N EET MBI ER 3%
Education fee surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

o 75 2B K N RER SN EET MBI ER 2%
Local education surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

PERFHR 1R & WA T P 1S FR AT X it

Enterprise income tax In accordance with Income tax payable Note

FARARE RRARMTFARRALTEBREREK Note: The applicable rate of income tax for the period of the Company
ELEHEERAT(AZER ) RARQ R and the Company’s subsidiaries Xi‘an Ser Turbo Machinery
NFABERVPERETLTEBAR AT (R Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Xi‘an Ser”) and Changsha Ser
HLRIRDPEBURBR G ] ATH Turbine Machinery Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Changsha
BIELSER AR ERNFERB XA Ser Turbo Equipment Co., Ltd.”) (“Changsha Ser”) is 15%
15%(2011: 15%) ° AN &l H b F A &)@ (2011: 15%) and the applicable rate of income tax of other
FREFTE AR 825%(2011: 25%) ° subsidiaries is 25% (2011: 25%).
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Preferential tax policies and approvals

As at 27 July 2011, Ministry of Finance, China Customs and
State Administration of Taxation jointly issued the Notice Issues
on Tax Policies for the Implementation of the Strategy Further
Exploration and Development of the Western Region (Cai Shui
[2011] No. 58), according to which, from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2020, the enterprises of encouraged industries
established in the Western regions are subject to an income tax
rate of 15%. In accordance with the SAT Announcement No.12
of 2012 issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 6 April
2012, namely the Announcement Regarding the Implementation
of Corporate Income Tax Policies for the Development of the
Western China, and the Letter of Confirmation Recognising
the Relevant Businesses of Shenji Group Kunming Machine
Tool Company Limited as State Encouraged Industry (Yun
Fagaiban Xibu [2012] No.312) issued by Development and
Reform Commission of Yunnan Province on 21 May 2012, as
our research and development, production and sales of digital
machine tool and high tech components meet the relevant
criteria as stipulated in Order No.9 of NDRC (namely Guiding
Catalogue for Industrial Structure Adjustments (Version 2011))
and the requirements regarding the encouraged industries
as set out in Cai Shui [2011] No.58 Notice, the Company is
entitled to a preferential income tax rate.

Management estimated that the Company would derive 70%
or more of its total revenue from the encouraged type business
in 2012 and thus applied for a preferential income tax rate of
15% for the six month period ended 30 June 2012. In March
2012, Kunming State Tax Bureau has approved the Company's
application for a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15%
in 2011. Thus the applicable income tax rate of the Company
for 2011 was 15%.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Xi‘an Ser and Changsha Ser are
recognised as Advanced and New Technology Enterprises and
their current certificates of Advanced and New Technology
Enterprises expires on 9 October 2014 and 3 November 2014
respectively. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, they are entitled to a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15% in 2012 (2011: 15%).
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(IV).BUSINESS

COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1- EEFREHER 1. Background of major subsidiaries
(1) FHERTEREET LB H T (1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
AY-1) investment
KBIURR
BEPAR
8R08  HEOERR
EHHER R HRER  BREE RMERN RE  hREE  BEMCH
SCE FhURE ffeug € HfEs el -£ (%) () &% (AREn)  (\R¥R)
Reversal of
minority
Minority loss interest
Actual capital interests from
contribution  Proportion of Proportion of at the end minority
Type of Placeof ~ Businessnatureand Organization Registered  attheend shareholding voting rights Consolidated ~of the period interests
Full name subsidiaries  registration ~ scope of business code capital  of the period (%) (%)  statements (RMB) (RmB)
EREREARE ARRELT %A BRZIERR 6ossdp1y  ARH AE% 100% 100% £ - -
ERAF Company with ~ Ching SRR 3,000,000 3,000,000 Yes
(FBRRENE)  lnited EEAHE RVB RMB
Kunming Kunjl General ~ liabilites Development, design, 3,000,000 3,000,000
Machine Co,, Ltd. production and sales of
("General Machine”) machine tool series
(note 1) products and accessories
RUER(Z)  RBRELT %A EfBZERR 750011803 ARE AE% 100% 100% £ - -
Changsha Ser Company with ~ Ching [iSER R R 10,000,000 10,000,000 Yes
fnote ) lmited EEAHE RVB RMB
[iabilties Development, design, 10,000,000 10,000,000
production and sales of
COMpressor series
products and accessories
FF1 0 R20105F108198 « AR AR & Note 1. On 19 October 2010, the Company resolved to dissolve
MRECRARE - BB ANRARIE General Machine. Subsequently, the Company carried
BREELZENHEEERETSE - H out liquidation in accordance with the requirements
BMEERFREEELRER - BHE - under relevant laws and regulations which was
ARG BRI HBHEENFBARE substantially completed by now. However, now
MRER BEUHEEEE#HEEZ A that the Company wished to continue its business
RIAERE TIE - expansion via that company, the cancellation of the
company was suspended.
A2 EHRmARDT IBTHEIE BiZ Note 2: With approval from the Administration for Industry

M RAPBAKRAERARESR
RV ERETHEMAERLQA X

M2012F58168 B 7 & 1 &Y
4301940000019775% 1 ¥ )5 A &

EHR -

and Commerce of Changsha City, Hunan Province,
Changsha Ser Turbo Equipment Co., Ltd. was renamed
as Changsha Ser Turbine Machinery Co., Ltd. and
obtained the renewed enterprise legal person business
license (No. 430194000001977) on 16 May 2012.

-
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(2) FER—#F# T DEE GEEE R+ (2) Subsidiaries acquired from business combinatio.
N under common control .
KHHHRR
EETAR
R0 HEOERR
£HHER fEee SRER  BREA mRERH RE  BREE  EENEE
SCEL FhIEE  dfk ffeqE £E  ZfEs it (%) ()  AEx  (AREL)  (ARER)
Reversal of
minority
Minority loss interest
Actual capital interests from
contribution  Proportion of Proportion of at the end minority
Type of Placeof ~ Businessnatureand Organization Registered  attheend shareholding voting rights Consolidated of the period interests
Full name subsidiaries  registration  scope of business code capital  of the period (%) (%) statements (RMB) (RMB)
AZEAH)  ERRELR +E BERZIERR 063184 ARE ARR 45% 60% B OS23310064 38900960
Xi'an Ser(note 1) Companywith ~ China EANREE 25 50,000,000 50,000,000 Yes
imited EENRE RB RB
liabilties Development, design, 50,000,000 50,000,000
production and sales of
COMpressor seies
products and accessories
1 AEBYEAELERMNERELH 2 Note 1: The percentage of voting rights of the Group in Xi‘an
BEAEBREARERNEEZSMN Ser is determined by the percentage of voting rights of
IR RRELDIFETE - AEBEER the Group in the board of directors of Xi'an Ser. Xi‘an
HAERZERNYBMELREE Ser was consolidated due to the fact that the Group
EH B EATERMNAEIIE has gained control over its financial and operational
° decision making.
AtEEBLESENGBA 2. Explanation to the change of scope of consolidation
of the Company
R2012F3A21H » R ARIETRAEE On 21 March 2012, the Company reached an agreement
EREBERERAR([EBEERK NS with Fujian Chenggong Machine Tool Co., Ltd.("Chenggong
—BREBEKINEIRBR AR TEE Machine Tool”), another shareholder of its subsidiary Fujian
[ECINHEER | )R - BAARIEERE Kunji Conventional Machine Tool Co., Ltd.("Fujian Kunji”), to
EEMAS0%RMNEELKINEIR - 21 transfer 50% of Fujian Kunji's shares held by the Company to
EWEH2012F1A1BRE 2R Q 7 = &ITEH Chenggong Machine Tool. The financial performance of Fujian
AIFENEERREE N ARER KRN Kunji from 1 January 2012 to the date of the Company’s losing
EHFER - control has been consolidated into the Group’s consolidated

income statement for the current period.
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ARBFRAALERRFEMNMNER
51%MEHE - MNEBERRIMELABAR
#1208 7T ° 201258 * ZRERETZ
MmN EREMRRNIBERR SR - B
EMMNERBRRZAZMERENER -
MMNEBROMEERAARRE - &5HEM
ARKS0E THRE @ WIREBMNAIKZ
BED BIME TN EB46.55% M42 % 5 %
o MALERZERFENSI%RAEAS
(AR®61 28 L) h BB ERERE & HIMN
FEH11.45%0815 o N BB STARIE S B
% ALERNAEBEEXHIINERD
THE - MINERTBIEAARARARNTA
Al e MINERBEBE2012F1A1BEEARQ A
FERVEH B IEEIM MG ERRE NALRSE
B ARHMEHFEE -

FHEFBAANSHEENETRE

(1) AHTBRAEHEERF LA
EREEN  ARKT

Xi'an Ser, a subsidiary of the Company, originally held 51%
equity interest in Hangzhou Ser. The original registered
capital of Hangzhou Ser was RMB1,200,000. In May 2012,
the Company decided not to participate in the proposal on
increase capital investment by other shareholders of Hangzhou
Ser. According to a resolution passed by the shareholders at
the general meeting and the amended articles of association
of Hangzhou Ser, its two shareholders who are natural
persons made additional contribution to the company in an
aggregate amount of RMB8,800,000, increasing their respective
shareholding in Hangzhou Ser to 46.55% and 42% upon
such additional contribution. The original capital investment
of RMB612,000 by Xi‘an Ser which accounted for 51% of the
share capital would represent 11.45% of the shareholding in
Hangzhou Ser after the increase capital investment. After the
completion of the increase capital investment, both Xi'an Ser
and the Group lost their control of Hangzhou Ser. As such,
Hangzhou Ser ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
The financial performance of Hangzhou Ser from 1 January
2012 to the date of the Company’s losing control has been
consolidated into the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the current period.

Entities no
period

longer consolidated during the

(1) Subsidiaries no longer consolidated in the Company
during the period

Unit: RMB
RiBHERAEE 0115128318 012F1R18 2B A B4R

Carrying amounts at the
date of losing control

From 1 January 2012 to the date

As at 31 December 2011 of losing control

5% kS EE S
R it EESE  BEEE  BESE 0 EEME 0 BRAE  BREE ERN RER FER
Total Total Operating
Total Total shareholders’ Total Total shareholders’  Operating  costs and
Name Note assets liabilities equity assets liabilities equity income  expenses Net loss
RERE (m)2 824550466 9,228909.67  -983,405.01 8,307,992.56 9,105332.98  -797,340.42 1,021311.96 1,207376.55  -186,064.59
Fujian Kunii w2
nMEE (m)2 16,045,914.63 14,681,898.29 1,364,01634 11,175812.13 892881645 2,246,995.68  800,952.28 1,683 931.62  -882,979.34
Hangzhou Ser w2

.
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e
(V). Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

(B) et KRR EETE
1. E¥ES 1. Cash at bank and on hand
TEE - ARETT
Unit: RMB
2012%6A30R 20115128318
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011

HESE kS ARESHE HESE nE% ARESHE
Original RMB/RMB Original RMB/RMB
ik Item currency  Exchange rate equivalents currency  Exchange rate equivalents
B4 Cash on hand: - - 205309.82 - - 503,574.06
AR RMB - - 176,122.69 - - 461,601.60
it HKD 5,132.76 0.8152 4,184.23 5,137.07 0.8107 4,161.03
xn usD 2,194.79 6.3000 13,827.18 2,866.46 6.3009 18,059.32
ey EUR 1,419.86 7.8710 11,175.72 2,420.30 8.1625 19,752.11
BIER Cash at bank: - - 127,705,726.70 - - 175,304,445.56
AR RMB - - 108,293,770.56 - - 159,138,846.02
it HKD 9,031,792.04 08152 736271687  8,916,284.47 0.8107  7,228,431.82
xn usD 1,806,837.90 6.3000 11,383,078.76  1,405,490.18 6.3009  8,855,851.43
ey EUR 84,634.80 7.8710 666,160.51 9,962.71 8.1625 81,316.29
AvE¥Es: Other monetary funds: - - 13,222,142.90 - - 16,392,311.03
AR RMB - - 13,222,142.90 - - 16,392,311.03

At Total

MR2012F6A30H * AR®13,222,142.907T
(20114128318 + A R #16,392,311.03
TTINETEYESRERASBIREHRES
FMIRITHR G EZE R -

W=

141,133,179.42 192,200,330.65

As at 30 June 2012, other monetary funds of
RMB13,222,142.90 (31 December 2011: RMB16,392,311.03)
were pledged for the Group' s bank guarantee and bank
acceptance bills.

2. Bills receivable

(1) JEUZEE I (1) Classification of bills receivable
DB AR®T
Unit: RMB
20126 H30H 2011%E12A31H8
As at As at
BE Type 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
RITEHESR Bank acceptance bills 137,212,884.80 104,034,946.22
=1 Total 137,212,884.80 104,034,946.22

FREREEA R —FREH -

i BRBETEERERNAAF%
(85%) A ERRBERMD KRR
RS

The above bills are due within one year.

None of the above bills was due from shareholders
holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company
entitling voting rights.
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(2) HR AREEBNERARMBRNE 2]
WRE -

(3) BXR AREBEELRAENEOM (3)
HRIBEESEURFAIBER

As at the end of the period, none of the bills was used
for pledge or discount for cash.

As at the end of the period, none of the bills was
transferred to accounts receivable due to non-
performance of the issuers.

3 EBWER 3. Accounts receivable
(1) EREFEEFERDTNAT (1) Analysis of accounts receivable by the type of

customers:

EFRENMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB

20126 A30H 20115124311

As at As at

k| Type of customers 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

£=h Third party 482,652,574.86 461,679,432.22

) Related party 1,754,403.43 6,094,433.84

NE Sub-total 484,406,978.29 467,773,866.06
B RS Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debt 205,733,292.82 182,828,343.15

B Total 278,673,685.47 284,945,522 .91

(2) EWERFUZERE ST ¢ (2) Ageing analysis of accounts receivable:

SEE  ARET

Unit: RMB

2012568308 2011%12A318

As at As at

HHl Ageing 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

1FLAR(E1E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 165,642,966.98 160,235,520.22

1FE2F(52F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 115,874,579.05 131,994,960.49

2FEIF(E3F) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 67,107,627.13 73,342,118.82

3FEPA Over 3 years 135,781,805.13 102,201,266.53

N Sub-total 484,406,978.29 467,773,866.06
AR Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debt 205,733,292.82 182,828,343.15

= Total 278,673,685.47 284,945,522 .91

fRik B MR AIERR AR R IARTE -

The ageing of accounts receivable is calculated starting
from the date of recognition.

I -
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012563308 IMENRANE
As at 31 December 2011

As at 30 June 2012
FEkE SRER FERE SRR
Provision for had Provision for had
Book balance and doubtful debts Book balance and doubtful debts
i £8 te (%) £ tei(%) 48 (%) £8 te (%)
B8 Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
EECEEATERE Individually
SREEERD  ioniicant
BUER and assessed
individually for
impairment 4 18,526,000.00 38 926,300.00 500 89,372,562.83 1911 12,612,691.31 141
FEGHRRE  Collctively
EREMERET:  assessed for
impairment*
a1 Group 1 (35} 46412657486 95.82 204,806,992.82 4413 372,306,869.39 7959 170,215,651.84 4572
82 Group 2 (10) 1,754,403.43 0.36 - 6,094,433.84 130 - -
BAt Subvtotal o groups 165,880,978.29 %.18 204,806,99282 B39 37840130323 8089 170,215,651 84 I

EHI Total 484,406,978.29 100.00 205,733,292.82 467,773,866.06 100.00 182,828 343.15

g EeREEASRELRENE
WEBR R

Note*: This category included accounts receivable having

been individually assessed but not impaired.

R E A L A 2 AR R E A
FEM R KB B R -

The Group did not receive any collateral for the
above accounts receivable with provision for bad and
doubtful debt.

(4) HIREBELFEE AN FIETIRIERE (4) Individually significant accounts receivable with
HE IR K - individual bad debt provision as at the end of the
period:

SREEREE BIRER  FHREAI(%) B

Provision for Reasons for

bad and Proportion making

EWERERART  Type Book balance doubtful debts (%) provision
MR Accounts receivable 18,526,000.00 926,300.00 5.00 EAER
Al EAERE

Impairment

occurred under

individual

assessment

method
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(5) #HETF  WREDITAIRERER (5)

Accounts receivable in groups with provision for bad

B FE U BR X and doubtful debts using ageing analysis method:
2B ARET
Unit: RMB

201266 A30A 2011%12A31H
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
RGBS RHSE
Book balance Book balance

E2 t (%) BRER £ HI(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
K& Ageing Amount (%) doubtful debts Amount (%) doubtful debts
(£ Within 1 year 163,888,563.55 3531 8,480,053.20 108,521,429.37 29.15  5,624,619.36
122F 1-2 years 97,348,579.05 2097 29,371,750.59  97,708,010.38 26.24  29,312,403.11
1538 2-3 years 67,107,627.13 1446 38,453,928.90 63,876,163.11 1716 38,282,426.17
3ENE Qver 3 years 135,781,805.13 29.26  128,501,260.13 102,201,266.53 27.45  96,996,203.20
ait Total 464,126,574.86 100.00 204,806,992.82 372,306,869.39 100.00 170,215,651.84

7R B 7R 62 (B 48 3 A B K 0 R W IR X
EREFHEE DKM -

7R B 7R 62 (B 48 3 A B K Y B W IR X
HAZEH o

PR RS AT B R BAIER

(6)

During the period, no significant bad debt provision
for the accounts receivable was reversed or collected.

During the period, there was no significant write-off
for the accounts receivable.

Amounts of top five accounts receivable

ERRENMN - ARET

Unit: RMB
1 FE U BR =X
BuEB b NET] R ER ] BRiEe BB EEBI(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
Debtor with the Company Amount Ageing receivable (%)
F—% E=F 23,227,757.01 TF AR 4.80
1st Third party Within 1 year
BZF E=F 18,526,000.00 T E 3.82
2nd Third party Over 1 year
F= F=F 17,422,087.90 1A E 3.60
3rd Third party Over 1 year
o E=F 10,668,000.00 TF AR 2.20
4th Third party Within 1 year
ERE E=F 10,399,028.90 T E 2.15
5th Third party Over 1 year
CE Total 80,242,873.81 16.57

7 o

HREFPHRRES R AN EE /XK
T AREARBKEALRTEFPHNAR
% 7

As names of customers are confidential commercial
information of the Group, we did not disclose the specific

names of the top five customers.

R
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) S
None of the above accounts receivable W%, Y

LR BBV B A RES% (& (9)
5% ) LA ERIFER DB AR R A FKIE - shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%)
Company entitling voting rights.
JE W B Bk 75 sk A (10) Accounts receivable from related parties
LREEN  ARKTT
Unit: RMB
1 FE W BR 7K
BUERE k23 AR AR E -} HEERIEEB1(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivable (%)
BRRABHEKERAR([RAEN]) (N6 &EL%E 1,754,403.43 0.36
Kunming TOS Machine Tool V). 6 Jointly controlled
Company Limited enterprise
("Kunming TOS")
BEAEE (11) Credit policy

AEENEYREREIERERE - R
BREEPRINHEESR  HRE—
BRERLEER—FINH - K TEHR
I B IR Rt 7 BV 15
RN - AEERBERPAER
NHREBENRHRERERTHER
B —RE—Z2=A -

H o B WK

(1

Hp USRI T PR DT

The Group’s accounts receivable are mainly quality
guarantee deposits, which are generally due for payment
upon one year from date of installation according to the
sales contract with customers. Receivables other than
quality guarantee deposits are due for payment after the
negotiated credit terms. The Group generally grants credit
term of one to three months to customers according to
their payment records and transaction performance.

4. Other receivables

(1)

Analysis of other receivables by the type of customers:

EREEM - ARETT

Unit: RMB

201266 H30H 2011%12A31H

As at As at

Al Type of customers 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
F=h Third party 16,189,504.57 17,520,895.29
R 5 Related party 919,626.71 930,594.93
5 17,109,131.28 18,451,490.22

INE Sub-total

Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debt

Total

5,585,298.02

4,221,633.89

11,523,833.26

14,229,856.33
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(2) HARWFIZEREDTAOT

(2]

Ageing analysis of other receivables:

EEEEN  ARET

Unit: RMB

20125 6H30H 2011512H31H

As at As at

BRiER Ageing 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
1FAR(E1E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 9,451,234.28 13,181,557.63
1EE2F(52%) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 5,005,982.52 2,870,339.98
2FEIF(E3IF) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 865,738.59 765,174.94
3ELA Over 3 years 1,786,175.89 1,634,417.67
NET Sub-total 17,109,131.28 18,451,490.22
B EAR%E Less: provision for bad and doubtful debt 5,585,298.02 4,221,633.89
AF Total 11,523,833.26 14,229,856.33

Rk B H b FE U R RE PR B AR A 4R At

st
H o
7t

(3) EfEURBBEINMT

(3)

The ageing of other receivables is calculated starting
from the date of recognition.

Analysis of other receivables by category:

EREET  ARKT

Unit: RMB
012564308 WNENANA
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
b ShER FanE SRR
Provision for had Provision for bad
Book balance and doubtful debts Book balance and doubtful debts
# £ ] A1) 1 BAi(%) i B Bl(%) ¢ A(%)
5 Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
EEEREAUER  Individually significant
TREEERY and assessed
LY individually for
impairment 4) - - - - 1,014,793.03 550 664,785.54 65.51
REAHREEEE  Collectively assessed
EtE for impairment*
51 Group 1 (5 16,189,50457 9462 5585,298.02 3450 16,506,102.26 8946 355684835 2155
] Group 2 (10 919,626.71 538 - - 93059493 5,04 - -
ey Sub-total of groups 17,109,131.28 100.00  5,585,298.02 3065 17,436,697.19 9450 3,556,848.35 2040
aif Total 17,109,131.28 100.00  5,585,298.02 18,451,490.22 10000 4,201,633.89

A WRERFRAAREERENE
i FE UL R -

ARE B EpL £t 2 AHRIERER N
H i EUCGR I A TR -

Note *: This category included other receivables having been
individually assessed but not impaired.

The Group did not receive any collateral for the above
other receivables with provision for bad and doubtful
debt.

I
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(5)

~ with individual bad

period.
HEF - IR DT AT IR R ERE (5) Other receivables in groups with prdV|§| f
B H A FE R doubtful debts using ageing analysis method:
SEHE - ARM T
Unit: RMB
2012F6530A 011E12A318
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
RERE RAEBE
Book balance Book balance
Ex ) £ 6l(%) BRER ©8 H6l(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
bad and bad and
R& Ageing Amount Proportion (%) doubtful debts Amount Proportion (%) doubtful debts
BN Within 1 year 8,531,607.57 52.69 430,392.28  11,935,165.34 7231 591,571.89
1228 1-2 years 5,005,982.52 3092 2,502,991.26  2,770,339.98 16.78  1,164,679.52
1E3F 2-3 years 865,738.59 535 865,738.59 765,174.94 4.64 765,174.94
3ELE QOver 3 years 1,786,175.89 11.04  1,786,175.89  1,035,422.00 6.27  1,035,422.00
At Total 16,189,504.57 100.00  5,585,298.02  16,506,102.26 100.00  3,556,848.35
7 HA 8 7N £ 8 4 B A EE K A9 EL b B LUK (6) During the period, no significant bad debt provision for

FORREHE R -

the other receivables was reversed or collected.

RNEARI AR EFER A B X H M ER (7) During the period, there was no significant write-off for

the other receivables.
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(8) HftREWHREBEAAREMER (8)

Amounts of top five other receivables

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
i E At B UK
BNuERB EE RN B BA R T8 IR HBEHELBI(%)
Relationship Percentage of
with the total other
Debtor Company Amount Ageing receivables (%)
=—EIBRPERRAR E=5h 1,752,000.00 1A E 10.24
Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.  Third party Over 1 year
THERBREARAR E=F 1,308,400.00 TF AR 7.65
Jiangsu Complete Equipment  Third party Within 1 year
Co., Ltd.
E B BERE 919,626.71 TF AR 5.38
Kunming TOS Jointly controlled Within 1 year
enterprise
REEIRBRNHERQT E=7 800,000.00  1FBE 4.68
CITIC Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.  Third party Over 1 year
REEH £= 696,049.28 1A E 4.07
Fujian Kunji Third party Over 1 year
BF 5,476,075.99 32.02
Total
(9) FHeRFEPEERIFEARLGES% (B (9) None of the above other receivables was due from

5% ) PA £ FRIRFER D B BCR B FRIA

shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
Company entitling voting rights.
(10) FEM AR T RIE (10) Other receivables from related parties

ERRENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
1 H b FE W 5K
BEE k23 HEAQTBR ot} BEH L B(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total other
Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivables (%)
ERREHT (7X) -6 o) 919,626.71 5.38
Kunming TOS V). 6 Related party
5+ FEMNFIE 5. Prepayments
(1) FEMFZIESLEZ LT (1) Prepayments by category
THEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 A30H 2011%12831H
As at As at
EHAB Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
TR AR Prepayment for materials 37,458,646.12 79,699,344.86
EAh Others 9,386,500.00 -
a&t Total 46,845,146.12 79,699,344.86
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(2) ENKEZEE ST

(3)

(4)

‘-f.‘l.“ \
Frp gl
F L

(2) Ageing analysis of prepayments

SEEL - ARKT

Unit: RMB
2012%6H30H 2011128310
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011

o} K BI(%) X K B1(%)

BRiR Ageing Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)

TERA(ETE) Within 1 year 42,886,841.34 91.55 74,758,304.84 93.80
(including 1 year)

1225 (82%) 1-2 years 229,123.25 0.49 1,188,237.42 1.49
(including 2 years)

2E35E(F3F) 2-3 years 1,317,225.93 2.81 639,125.00 0.80
(including 3 years)

3EN Over 3 years 2,411,955.60 5.15 3,113,677.60 3.91

A&t Total 46,845,146.12 100.00 79,699,344 .86 100.00

fRik B AN SRR B FHAETE -

TRV IB 2 BRI I 5 E 15K

The ageing of prepayments is calculated starting from
the date of recognition.

(3)  Amounts of top five prepayments

EREEMN - ARKET

Unit: RMB
ERANE
AERLLA
B AR BANAHE &8 (%) BEAEE REHERR
Relationship Percentage of Reasons for
with the total  Prepayment  non-
Debtor Company Amount prepayments (%)  time settlement
MR ERRBNERAT  £=4 9,104,396.83 1944 VLR MRENRERIE

Hangzhou Chinen Steam

The third party

Turbine Power Co., Ltd.

nNER

Hangzhou Ser

RNBEHMRE(LR)

BRAA

)
The third party
)
The third party

East Fuhui Machine Equipment

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
BENFRRES(LE)
ERAT]

)
The third party

Siemens International Trading

(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
TREARENRER
ERAT]
Beijing Hcty Science

Development Co., Ltd.

&t

Total

)
The third party

PRBREPEBNFAANRFS% (B
5% ) A _EFORBER D M AR BRI o

Within 1 year  Prepayment for
materials undue
5,220,157.30 114 1FHR MHBRREAIE
Within 1 year  Prepayment for
materials undue
4,619,000.00 986 1EUA MHBRREAIE
Within 1 year  Prepayment for
materials undue

3,521,927.44 752 1ENUR MRERTEARIE
Within 1 year  Prepayment for
materials undue

1,650,000.00 352 1EBLE MRENRERIE
Over 1 year Prepayment for
materials undue

24,115,481.57 5148

(4) None of the above prepayments was made to shareholders
holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling
voting rights.
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6 L 6. Inventories

(1) ZESHE (1) Inventories by category
THE  ARKTT
Unit: RMB
201266830 2011%12831R
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
i HEER FEEE FEAE HEER FEEE
Provision for Provision for
diminution diminution
in value of Carrying in value of Carrying
R Item Book balance inventories amount  Book balance inventories amount
FRiTH Raw materials 112,795,052.55  3,065,619.64  109,729,432.91  136,500,099.11  3,065619.64 133,434479.47
g Consumables 6,461,918.04 82,781.00  6379,137.04  6,096,567.83 82,781.00  6,013,786.83
EER Work in progress 603,434,827.33  10,435,282.97  592,999,544.36  506,056,400.92  10,435,282.97  495,621,117.95
ERE® Inventory of goods 339,275,599.94  2,684,150.37  336,591,449.57  334,943,612.36 2,684,150.37  332,259,461.99
ZENINE Commissioned processing
materials 9,432,732.76 - 943273276 16,350,544.28 - 16,350,544.28
At Total 1,071,400,130.62  16,267,833.98 1,055,132,296.64  999,947,22450  16,267,833.98  983,679,390.52
NREBEHREERANERNGFEE As at the end of the period, no inventory was pledged
(20114 : 42) - (2011: nil) by the Group.
(2) TFEREEE)IZT S50 (2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the
period
THEMN - AR¥T
Unit: RMB
BiBE R AR KB B HRBE
Increase during Decrease during
ER Item Opening balance the period the period  Closing balance
R 8 Raw materials 136,500,099.11 399,932,101.07  423,637,147.63 112,795,052.55
EE R Consumables 6,096,567.83 5,651,104.09 5,285,753.88 6,461,918.04
EEM Work in progress 506,056,400.92 597,583,181.37 500,204,754.96 603,434,827.33
T/ Inventory of goods 334,943,612.36  492,123,484.92  487,791,497.34 339,275,599.94
ZEMINE Commissioned processing
materials 16,350,544.28 16,572,572.39 23,490,383.91 9,432,732.76
P Sub-total 999,947,224.50 1,511,862,443.84 1,440,409,537.72  1,071,400,130.62
B FERBEEE  Less: Provision for
diminution in value
of inventories 16,267,833.98 - - 16,267,833.98
At Total 983,679,390.52 1,511,862,443.84 1,440,409,537.72 1,055,132,296.64
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AUHOE

HORE AR
Provision Decrease
made for during
REEE Item Opening balance the period the period  Closing balance
R ¥ Raw materials 3,065,619.64 - - 3,065,619.64
JEE Consumables 82,781.00 - - 82,781.00
EER Work in progress 10,435,282.97 = = 10,435,282.97
7 Inventory of goods 2,684,150.37 - - 2,684,150.37
At Total 16,267,833.98 - - 16,267,833.98
RERERE 7. Long-term equity investments
(1) RHEEKRESBEOT : (1) Long-term equity investments by category:

2HEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 HA30H 2011%12A831H
As at As at
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

HEEDENRE Investments in jointly controlled
enterprises 43,566,045.60 47,500,223.66
HEEPENKRE Investments in associates 13,976,470.29 14,424,357.29
Hih REARERE Other long-term equity investments 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00
NEE Sub-total 60,687,515.89 63,924,580.95

Less: impairment provision

Total

2,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

58,687,515.89

61,924,580.95
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(2) REHBREKREARNBHEZIHBS DU (2) Movements of long-term equity investments during the
B period:
SHEEMN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
ERREENL
FRiH
BRRE  RERE  ERAE
BER  BURAE  HAR-3 Rt 18
REns  BUBE  EER9 BRRE MAW)  HA() WHB  BERR  WERE  RedA
Percentage of  Percentage
shareholding ~of voting  Explanation
inthe ~rights in the for Impairment Cash
invested ~invested  discrepancy provision  dividend
Opening  Increase/ Closing ~ company ~ company  between Impairment made during for the
BREEN Invested company  Investment cost halance  Decrease halance (%) (A) (%) () (A)and(B) provision the period period
ERE-AERT  Under equity method:
jointly controlled
enterprise
RHEd Kunming TOS 24,739,533.99 47,500,223.66 -3,934,178.06 43,566,045.60 50.00 50.00 - - - 5,000,000.00
ERit-BEnT Under equity method:
ass0clate
ERGHRBHETE  X'an Ruite Laser
FEERA Prototyping
(IE%E ) Manufacturing
& Engineering
Research Co., Ltd.
("Xi'an Rute”) 14,000,000.00 14,424,357.29  -447,887.00 13,976,470.29 B34 B34 - - - -
WAE-Ef Under cost method:
FoRERE other long-term
equity investment
EERTENEE)  Yomnan Cheng Jiang
Copper Products
Plant (note) 2,000,000.00°2,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00 40.00 40.00 - 2,000,000.00 - -
ki Hangzhou Ser 1,145,000.00 - 1,145,000.00 1,145,000.00 145 145 - - - -
it Subota 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,145,000.00 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 - -
ait Total 41,884,533.99 63,924,580.95 -3,237,065.06 60,687,515.89 2,000,000.00 - 5,000,000.00
H: EmEIMMRE ERFERLL L Note:  Full provision for impairment loss on long-term equity

51 ANEBEE R19994F H % 1B 1R
BERHETIRT RERBREREBEE
o BIBEAR Tﬁzoogiﬁ%ﬁm%
/\E§$Akk

T%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁLﬁ@@ B
é%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁav

BEHRE K

= R BT R A
BB TEIEfE#ETTH -

investment of Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products
Plant was made in 1999 because the plant has lost the
ability of sustainable operation. In 2009, as approved
at the 7th meeting of the six session of the Board of
the Company, the Company began to dispose of such
investment. As at the date of the financial statement,
the process of disposal is still in progress.

I -

MEEEEARKROERAA 2012 FHRE




8\

| %
Information of major jointly controlled enP@'p

(3) EEESEEMBMELEER (3)
associates: .
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
S R AR rEEE N
BEAE BEAH BEENAE o8t FHE/ R
Total Total Total Total
assets liabilities net assets operating Net profit/
at the end of  at the end of at the end income for loss for
BREENER Invested company the period the period  of the period the period the period
- BEDLE 1. Jointly controlled
enterprise
AR Kunming TOS ~ 150,302,287.97  63,192,242.81  87,110,045.16  40,684,867.31 2,131,643.88
I BEtE 2. Associate
[iEegites Xi'an Ruite 130,376,378.97  62,894,928.76  67,481,450.21  18,522,328.74  -1,547,660.36
EE&EE 8. Fixed assets
(1) BIEEEFL (1) Details of fixed assets
THEE - ARETT
Unit: RMB
EEREEN T Efkf R ait
Building and Machinery Transportation Electronic
ER [tem structures and equipment equipment equipment Total
R Cost
Hne Opening halance 331,923,773.17 510,166,514.61 32,560,070.76 14,924,651.01 889,575,009.55
BN Addition during the period - 2,956,652.41 221,258.00 274,976.72 3,452,887.13
fRIEREA Transfer from construction
in progress - 19,028,058.20 94,017.09 - 19,122,075.29
REHD Disposal during the period - - -240,000.00 -3,800.00 -243,800.00
AHEEZELEHEY  Decrease due to the change
in the scope of consolidation - -1,335,984.16 -1,506,177.00 -438,483.46 -3,280,644.62
HREE Closing halance 331,923,773.17 530,815,241.06 31,129,168.85 14,757,344.27 908,625,527.35
ESiil Accumulated depreciation
Hne Opening halance 79,098,901.62 232,397,742.81 15,834,765.99 9,753,870.07 337,085,280.55
AR Charge for the period 4,861,331.58 14,937,699.00 1,454,593.25 719,262.32 21,972,886.15
KD Written off during the period - - -230,400.00 -3,648.00 -234,048.00
AHEEZELEHEY  Decrease due to the change
in the scope of consolidation - -844,524.96 -832,462.28 -372,612.83 -2,049,600.07
HREE Closing balance 83,960,233.20 246,490,916.91 16,226,496.96 10,096,871.56 356,774,518.63
HEER Impairment provision
e Opening balance - 3,606,029.68 - 102,350.08 3,708,379.76
BRAE Closing balance - 3,606,029.68 - 102,350.08 3,708,379.76
FEERE Carrying amounts
iy At the end of the period 247,963,539.97 280,718,294.47 14,902,671.89 4,558,122.63 548,142,628.96
i) At the beginning of the period ~ 252,824,871.55 274,162,742.06 16,725,304.77 5,068,430.86 548,781,349.24
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AEBAHMARMNEARR
A ST G i

AEBAPRERTIREABREEE
H&EAEARE19,122,075.297T °

MR2012F6A308 A5 EETEE
EdFEAEARI3,396,608.69
t(2011%F12A31B: A R ¥
10,458,326.1670) MIEE MEEY A
EIRITRHBERNERD -

2) EEHEMETEEERN

(2)

During the period, the depreciation of fixed assets
amounted to RMB21,972,886.15.

The transfer from construction-in-progress to
fixed assets at cost during the period amounted to
RMB19,122,075.29.

As at 30 June 2012, certain fixed assets (buildings and
structures) with net book value of RMB13,396,608.69
were pledged to banks for short-term loans (31 December
2011: RMB10,458,326.16).

Temporarily idle fixed assets

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
RERE 2t E REER REFE it
Accumulated Impairment Net book

HE Item Cost depreciation provision value Remark
wERE Machinery and

equipment 2,323,255.38 1,982,857.41 - 340,397.97 s

Temporarily

sealed and

stored

(3) FEMEHEHAARETEEEN (3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

EREEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

RERE R E REFE

Accumulated Net book

EH Item Cost depreciation value

R201256A30H As at 30 June 2012

FEREED Buildings and structures 2,592,597.82  2,488,893.91 103,703.91
20114124318 As at 31 December 2011

FEREED Buildings and structures 2,592,597.82  2,488,893.91 103,703.91

2012F6 A30H FM2011F12H31H -
AEEBBMEASEHANEEEE
BEREFHERITE o

(4) ABRERZFZNETEEFT

HEAUBmER 2 HWER  NEEIE
AN EEREERYBBEEFE
E MEERFENRHEBUARIER
BT P R E IR - 18201296 8
30 EVMELAEENEERE
B A AR¥41,941,780.0070(2011
F12H318H : AK®42,506,860.24
JT) °

ARRBEERRAEELENEERA
EREETGFELASEGALER
HEB D R SR EEY) -

(4)

As at 30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011, fixed assets
acquired under finance leases were fully depreciated.

Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

At the date of approval of this statement, the Group is
applying for property certificates for some buildings and
structures. The time of obtaining property certificates
is depending upon the consideration and approval
procedures of the relevant government authorities. As
at 30 June 2012, the carrying amount of the above
mentioned fixed assets was RMB41,941,780.00 (31
December 2011: RMB42,506,860.24).

Directors of the Company are of the opinion that pending
the grant of property certificates will not affect the Group’s
usage and operation of the buildings and structures.

-
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(1) ERTEER

(1)

.

Information of construction i

WIENANE

201256308
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
RERE AEER REFE RERE AEER REFE
Impairment Net book Impairment Net book
B Item Book balance provision value  Book balance provision value
EREEEN Heavy casting base 129,993,235.04 - 129,993,235.04  90,650,165.27 - 90,650,165.27
MEEBHLTED  CNC cylindrical grinder
BEGE - and grinder imported
REER from Switzerland for
small parts workshop - - - 10,247,728.44 - 10,247,728 44
AfEE Other items 17,836,354.54 2,056,931.37  15,779,423.17  20,305,830.76 2,056,931.37  18,248,899.39
At Total 147,829,589.58 2,056,931.37  145,772,658.21  121,203,724.47 2,056,931.37  119,146,793.10
(2) BAEZITEIEHKANBEEE N (2) Movements of major construction projects in progress
during the period
2REEN  ARBT
Unit: RMB
IERA
KHEN 3
BRE  MOME  AMEM BREE  AfED  EB(W)  IREE HERR fieg
Transfer to Investment
Increase ~fixed assets percentage
Opening during during Other to total Project  Sourceofthe  Closing
R Item Budget  balance  theperiod  theperiod  deceases  budget(’s)  progress  fund balance
EREER Heay casing base TI956000000 90,650,16527  39.343069.77 - - 8% ¥ EEEE I9BIBM
IWReas
&R
&
Sefiinandng
and budgetary
nvestment of
central
qovernment
EERTEn CNC ofincical grnder and ginder 1200000000 102477284 61000000 1085772844 - 0% 0% AEEE -
RSN importe from Switzering Sel-fnandng
REER forsmall parts workshop
HfER Other items 1824889939 579487063 826434685 - 15,71943.17
) Totdl 11914679310 4574794040 19122,075.29 - 14577265821
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(3) BEAEZIEANTIEERIELR

(3) Progress of major construction in progress

THEENMN AR

Unit: RMB
IRER e
HE Item Work progress Remark
BREELN Heavy casting base 36% B RSB

10 - BREEE

10. Intangible assets

Major structure
for the base under
construction

EREENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB

THERE REHN Hit At
ER Item Land use rights Various softwares Others Total
R{E Cost
B Opening balance 25,925,562.02 19,661,920.41 3,736,089.93 49,323,572.36
REED Addition during the period - - - -
KERED Decrease during the period - -27,400.00 - -27,400.00
RRBE Closing balance . 2025,56202 1963452041 3736089.93 49,296,17236
R Accumulated amortization
AR Opening balance 3,651,809.29 9,740,612.03 552,511.87 13,944,933.19
REEHR Charge for the period 299,617.99 657,445.81 64,635.59 1,021,699.39
KERED Decrease during the period - -17,810.13 - -17,810.13
RRBE Closing balance | 395142728 1038024771 61714746 1434882245
EHEERE Carrying amounts
HR At the end of the period 21,974,134.74 9,254,272.70 3,118,942.47 34,347,349.91
11 At the beginning of the period 22,273,752.73 9,921,308.38 3,183,578.06 35,378,639.17

AEBEEVEEANBEHBE/SARE

1,021,699.397T °

M2012%F6A30H ' AEBEBEBEBES
A R #11,959,183.827c (2011412 A31
H: AR®12,100,712.607T ) # £ #{E A
ERERITOEBERNERR -

Amortization for intangible assets for the period was

RMB1,021,699.39.

As at 30 June 2012, land use rights with the carrying amounts
of RMB11,959,183.82 was pledged to banks for short-term
loans (31 December 2011: RMB12,100,712.60).

- BRI re IR




11 - 58

11. Goodwill >
EREENL - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HRR
MANBE AL ) MR ERE BXEE
Impairment
Increase Decrease provision
Opening during during Closing at the end
RREENER Invested company balance the period the period balance  of the period
BRER Xi‘an Ser 7,296,277.00 - - 7,296,277.00 -

AEBER2001FREOLERE - &6
XA B 3B 4% Lo 5 15 Y 7 22 B R R) 9 3R
E -RBEAABENERE HIASEAR
ERMAENEE -

AZBERO AT WO EREABET KRR R
EREMNIAEE AKEREEEEMR
JFE B B AT R SRS 4F B 75 TR E A 10% 5% AT 4T
RAEBAZEEANARKRBESRERE -
BESFYBREZRFNHRESTEDR
FIRE - YA KROSBHOEAERLREAE
BH@ABREERK - BEEFZEEEARK
RengREMRENBERERRTES SR
EoE EEERSNRERERELER
mEE - RREEEHARANEKEEE
BeERKEEER -

WA ZEWET AR E R BRENH
SRR T AL L R R T 5 B E A
RREERAMEREABRERR - B2
BRI TR S EARE > B M0 & 4 R R A

B -

When the Group acquired Xi‘an Ser in 2001, the cost of merger
was higher than the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Xi’an Ser corresponding to the interests acquired,
and the difference was recognized as goodwill related to
Xi'an Ser.

The recoverable amount of Xi‘an Ser is determined based on
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The Group
prepared cash flow forecasts for this asset group based on the
recent 5 years’ financial budgets approved by the management
and a 10% discount rate before tax. The cash flows after the 5
years' forecast would remain stable. The forecast result imposed
no impairment loss to the recoverable amount. However, the
key assumptions on which the present value of future cash
flows were based may vary. The management considered that
if negative changes occurred to the key assumptions, the book
value of the Company might exceed its recoverable amount.

The key assumptions for the calculation of the present value
of estimated future cash flows for Xi‘an Ser were the gross
profit margin and the growth rate of operating income of the
turbo machine segment. The management determined these
key assumptions based on the historical information prior to
the estimated period.
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12 REIGHER

12. Long-term deferred expenses

EEEMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB
HHERER REE IR FEE T R EREE
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Closing
HE Item balance the period the period balance
£iE Decoration 1,365,116.55 604,109.63 191,156.49 1,778,069.69
13- BEEMBHEE 13. Deferred income tax assets
(1) EEREIFEARTEF EE (1) Recognised deferred income tax assets
TERE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
201266 A30H 20115128318
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
A i3 A BE
ERHER REHEE TRHER REHEE
Deductible Deferred Deductible Deferred
temporary income temporary income
EH Item difference tax assets difference tax assets
EEFEBHREE: Deferred income tax assets:
ERERE Bad debt provision 211,318,590.84 31,688,768.01 187,049,977.04 28,226,996.55
FELEES Provision for diminution
in value of inventories 16,267,833.98 2,440,175.10 16,267,833.98 2,440,175.10
EEBERMEER Provision for impairment
of fixed assets 3,708,379.76 556,256.96 3,708,379.76 556,256.96
T2 TI2R{E%ME  Provision for impairment of
construction in progress 2,056,931.37 308,539.71 2,056,931.37 308,539.71
RERERE Provision for impairment of
REEE long-term equity investments  2,000,000.00 300,000.00 3,500,000.00 525,000.00
HHAE Provisions 14,234,414.16 2,135,162.12 17,390,990.97 2,608,648.64
EEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 5,432,865.15 814,929.77 5,432,865.15 814,929.77
BIRER Accrued expenses 4,140,100.00 621,015.00 4,140,100.00 621,015.00
KEBADFE  Unrealized internal profits 5,699,394.96 854,909.25 6,527,481.51 979,122.23
NEHEEANE Discounted value of retirement
BURIBAIEZ  benefits for internal staff
under early retirement 9,694,812.13 1,454,221.82 11,325,508.61 1,698,826.30
B8 Government subsidies 44,363,884.00 6,654,582.60 39,643,000.00 5,946,450.00
AHMELRTN  Payables overdue for
RT3 two years 1,276,914.33 191,537.15 1,276,914.33 191,537.15
BREER Deductible losses 9,980,608.03 1,327,591.21 9,980,608.03 1,327,591.21
A&t Total 330,174,728.71 49,347,688.70 308,300,590.75 46,245,088.62
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() ARREEFGEHEENM (2 Breakdown o

2012468308

As at A :
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
AENEE Deductible losses 1,127,686.71 4,733,074.58
(3) KEERIEIL BT 15 & Z /Y9 8] #H H] (3)  Expiration of deductible losses for unrecognized deferred
JET1E /Y 2l A1 7 income tax assets
2HEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 HA30H 2011%12A31H
As at As at
F14 Year 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
20134 2013 - 201,495.36
20144 2014 - 730,877.95
20154 2015 - 2,448,294.03
20164 2016 146,704.56 1,352,407.24
20174 2017 980,982.15 -
A&t Total 1,127,686.71 4,733,074.58
14 HiERBEE 14. Other non-current assets
2HBEMN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 H30H 2011%12A831H
As at As at
S Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
T TR Project prepayments 3,345,119.28 10,770,514.20
TEAT Lo E AR (3E) Prepayments for land use rights (Note) 50,720,000.00 50,720,000.00
A& R A &R Prepayments for contracted technology
MR SR A AR K licensing fee and purchase of relevant
(Kt7E (%) ~ 57t4) equipment (Note (VI). 5 note 4) 37,090,829.95 18,246,610.80
CEn Total 91,155,949.23 79,737,125.00
i 2012968308 - FEN L {E AR Note: As at 30 June 2012, the prepayments for land use right were
BAEEENAERESHEERARKAR paid by the Group to the People’s Government of Songming
BESMITEMER R ERRENRK County of Yunnan Province for a piece of land in Yanglin
I8 o Industrial Development Zone.
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15 - EEREEEHMA 15. Breakdown of provision for impairment of
assets
TEEMN  ARET
Unit: RMB
RE rEED
Increase during the period Decrease during the period

i3 B8 e Eft &f B HABE

Opening Charge Closing

R ltem Note balance  for the period Others Reversal Write-off balance

R Accounts receivable (Z) (V.3 182,828343.15  23,207,093.40 - - 302,143.73  205,733,292.82

Efbis Other receivables () (.4 422163389  1440,054.74 - - 76,390.61  5,585,298.02

kg Inventories () (V.6  16267833.98 - - - - 16,267,833.98
RARERE Long-term equity

investments (Z)+W). 7 2,000,000.00 - - - - 2,000,000.00

EEdE Fixed assets (). 8  3708379.76 - - - - 3,708379.76

fETR Construction in progress () (1. 9 2,056,931.37 - - - - 2,056,93137

A3t Total 211,083,122.15  24,647,148.14 - - 378,534.34  235,351,735.95

16

v

BEHEBREEAHBERMERRNRRA
2R AREEERB NN -

Please refer to notes to the relevant assets for reasons of
impairment loss recognized for different assets during the
period.

FFERZERFINEE 16. Restricted assets
M2012F6A30H ' FIBEEZIIRFNE As at 30 June 2012, the assets with restrictions placed on
EBRIT their ownership are as follows:
2HEEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
it B8RS R KHHED HRBE
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
EAR Item Note balance the period the period balance
BRERMWEE  Assets pledged as
collateral
-E®ES - Cash at bank
and on hand (#)(v). 1 16,392,311.03 829,831.87 4,000,000.00 13,222,142.90
-EEEE - Fixed assets (#)+(v). 8 10,458,326.16 3,309,584.01 371,301.48 13,396,608.69
-BVEE - Intangible assets ~ (7) * (V). 10 12,100,712.60 - 141,528.78 11,959,183.82
ch Total 38,951,349.79 4,139,415.88 4,512,830.26 38,577,935.41

RAE IS IR EIE - PrA RS BRI R
BEFERARFARITERSREFRITA/ALE
B A RHMRITEARLEZNHRESD

FRERZEIRGINEEEEARBILEE
AEETRITEREROERR - ZRH
R IERRIRTT IR I BRI AR R -

During the financial reporting period, restricted security deposit
was deposited with the bank as security for the letters of
guarantee and bank acceptance bills issued by the bank for
the Group.

Restricted fixed assets and intangible assets were pledged for
short-term bank loans. After repayment of the short-term bank
loans, the term of restriction will be released.
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- - _-17'-'\ 5‘=

(1

(2)

REMESR O

" 17. Short-term loa

(1) Types of short-term loans:

20126 H30H 20115128314

As at As at

EHE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
BIHER Secured loans 15,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
ERER Credit loans 110,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
&5t Total 125,000,000.00 100,000,000.00

M2012F6 4300 - REBAFER
BHIREENEHER o

18 ENRE

(2) As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no short-term loans
due but outstanding.

18. Bills payable
BREENL  ARKT

Unit: RMB

201296 H30H 2011%12H8318

As at As at

#EE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
RITAHEAHESR Bank acceptance bills 34,134,249.00 46,596,910.09

RSB S —FRIMOENRIE -

19 » EFERRX

(1

e BR R FEDIR AT

The above amount of bills payable is due within one year.

19. Accounts payable

(1)  Types of accounts payable are as follows:

EHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB

201266 H30H 2011%12H31H

As at As at

HHE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
FE T RE S A R Accounts payable to related companies 46,614,796.45 45,553,713.06
FEHHEERS Accounts payable to suppliers 424,178,611.00 318,378,289.87
A Total 470,793,407.45 363,932,002.93

LHBEREHFEARARE% (&
5% ) LA L ZRORHE B 0 B B 3R B FE A iR

=+
e

(2) There were no accounts payable to shareholders holding
over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
rights.

Interim Report 2012 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |03 -




(3) ENERFREEIIROT

BR Aging

(3) Aging analysis of accounts payable is as follows:

TEEEN  ARKTT

TELR(E1E) Within 1 year (including 1 year)
1226 (829) 1-2 years (including 2 years)
2E3F(E3%)  2-3 years (including 3 years)
3FENUE Over 3 years

Total

fRiic B B RIS BRI SARTH -

20 - AWRKIEA 20.

BUGREA B RBREFPAKRNER

(1) FEUFKBIRREDIRAOT

KR Aging

Unit: RMB
20126 A30AH 2011%12A31H

As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011

RHSESE HAl(%) EHGESE EEAl(%)
Book balance Book balance

amount Proportion (%) amount Proportion (%)
450,488,612.73 95.69  345,694,705.24 94.99
15,856,049.61 3.37 13,028,799.15 3.58
1,841,789.40 0.39 2,547,823.45 0.70
2,606,955.71 0.55 2,660,675.09 0.73
470,793,407.45 100.00 363,932,002.93 100.00

The aging of accounts payable is calculated from the
date of recognition.

Advances from customers

All advances from customers are payment for goods received
in advance from the customers of the Company.

(1) Advances from customers by aging of accounts are as

TEAR(E14) Within 1 year (including 1 year)
1229 (82%) 1-2 years (including 2 years)
2E3%E(53%)  2-3 years (including 3 years)
3EN L Over 3 years

Total

BRFEMRGETELTAEARR
5% (B5% ) A EFRIARER A R BR &Y
FEURIA -

follows:
TEEMN - ARET
Unit: RMB
2012%6A30H 2011%12831H
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
IREHEEH HBl(%) RERESHE EE (%)
Book balance Book balance
amount Proportion (%) amount Proportion (%)
332,031,140.06 86.69 356,431,749.52 82.25
35,027,812.14 9.15 49,972,174.63 11.53
11,019,987.00 2.88 19,731,124.00 4.55
4,917,683.70 1.28 7,218,723.20 1.67
382,996,622.90 100.00  433,353,771.35 100.00

As at the end of the period, there were no advances
due from shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares
of the Company entitling voting rights.
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A1 BIERENFRESI  BNITE - s -
EALANEL 0 BR20129F7 A 25 A
By o 201268300 AEBEBER
HE R B FEAST B T B o

i£2 0 2012966 HA30H » L[ BEBH &
REBSEBREBERE THHE - K
SR BT REETRNFRRMIZA
RIR - RBAEEE AT AR KRG
EMRTE  AEEBEBE L= LRER
HAEETERAKBERE BIAHARA
ETEMBMNT SRR B SR THBH -
UIMRENSBERAEHEE st AE
HERBH(IAREAR]) - AEEEAN
WK ARALEENES RS HRIER
KB (EF K o

21 > FEER T M 21. Employee benefits payable >
BHREN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HARE RHEM KHED HABE
Opening  Accrued during Paid during Closing
o Item balance the period the period balance
—IE #g 2% 1. Salary, bonus, subsidy
(1) and grants (note 1) 13,082,236.69 122,426,357.26 130,583,836.47 4,924,757.48
Z BIGHE 2. Staff welfare 36,665.44 2,587,415.60 1,784,450.24 839,630.80
= HeRkEE 3. Social insurance 2,367,737.95 21,133,537.98 26,235,987.56 -2,734,711.63
R BERRE Including: () Medical insurance 1,580,270.88 5,852,134.67 7,261,453.91 170,951.64
2 BEREZRRE (il) Basic retirement insurance 1,058,657.09 12,979,739.25 16,041,268.93 -2,002,872.59
3 RERRE (iii) Unemployment insurance -406,477.56 1,331,579.97 1,827,893.09 -902,790.68
4 IERRE (iv) Work injury insurance 131,612.90 366,924.87 498,537.77 -
5 EERRE (v) Maternity insurance 3,674.64 603,159.22 £06,833.86 -
M- fRAES 4. Housing fund 1,835,953.72 2,382,842.48 2,735,372.18 1,483,424.02
o BERET 5. Termination benefits
(RRREBR)(H2) (including early retirement
expenses) (note 2) 11,325,508.61 - 1,630,696.48 9,694,812.13
A IEHMENBIHELE 6. Union expenses and employees
education expenses 4,850,287.23 2,969,459.26 1,899,845.71 5,919,900.78
G Total 33,498,389.64 151,499,612.58 164,870,188.64 20,127,813.58

Note 1:

Note 2:

Except for accrued year-end bonuses, the Group paid the
accrued salary, bonus, subsidy and grants in July 2012. As
at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any accrued salary
in arrears.

As at 30 June 2012, the above termination benefits did
not include the compensation for termination of labour
service contract. Some employees of the Group retired
from employment of the Group prior to their statutory
retirement age. According to the requirements of the
early retirement plan of the Group, from the date of
ceasing service provision up to their respective statutory
retirement dates, such employee salary as proposed salary
and social insurance for early retirement employees were
recognised at their discounted present value as provisions
and were included in current administrative expenses (“early
retirement expenses”). The discount rate selected by the
Group represents the interest rate of national bonds having
the same credit term with early retirement expenses of the
Group.
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22 - EBXHRE

22.

Taxes payable

TRENMN - ARKET

Unit: RMB

20126 H30H 20115128318

As at As at

HH Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

HEM Value added tax 6,685,677.20 3,199,549.74

B Business tax -1,310.40 120,830.69

TEMGH Corporate income tax -1,908,280.21 267,149.52

H b Others 1,200,927.73 3,722,772.91

=1 Total 5,977,014.32 7,310,302.86

23 ENRA 23. Dividends payable

BN ARKETT

Unit: RMB

20126 A30H 20115128318

As at As at

IEH Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
OEEEMAER Cash dividends declared

# IR & A% F) but outstanding 2,953,794.73 135,898.49

24 - B
(1) HiEMRIBRAOT :

24,

Other payables

(1)  Other payables are as follows:

ERRENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB

2012566 A30H 20115128314

As at As at

b= Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

IRRES Secured deposits for projects 4,454,592.25 4,607,662.25

He Leasing expenses 2,687,270.10 2,254,373.81

s R&D expenditures 11,110.87 45,000.00

BB Auditor’s fee 1,400,000.00 2,150,000.00
HehkEzKERE Commissions and business

promotion fees 15,841,908.33 20,414,223.33

Hity Others 13,587,353.34 11,194,377.60

CE Total 37,982,234.89 40,665,636.99

LRBREFEHFTEARALFS% (B
5% ) JA_E SRORBER 7 8 B R B0 E At FE
5K -

There were no other payables due to shareholders holding
over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
rights.
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s .
(2) HMEMFURRERYIROT (2) Other payables by aging of accounts are as follow

SEEN - ARKT

Unit: RMB
201268308 2011128310
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
EHBESHE EEB1(%) BHSESE EEAl(%)
Book balance Proportion Book balance Proportion
IR e Aging amount (%) amount (%)
TELA(E1E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 32,274,891.50 84.97 35,435,519.62 87.14
122F(52%) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 2,059,777.56 5.42 1,293,896.67 3.18
2835 (83%)  2-3 years (including 3 years) 199,856.67 0.53 2,263,850.30 5.57
3 E Over 3 years 3,447,709.16 9.08 1,672,370.40 4.11
Ch Total 37,982,234.89 100.00  40,665,636.99 100.00
25 JEETEE 25. Provisions

THEEN  ARKTT
Unit: RMB
20126 H30H 2011%12A31H
As at As at
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
EmEE2RE Product quality warranty 14,234,414.16 17,390,990.97
AEE—RenBEERRERAEEER Generally, the Group provides after-sale quality service
HEREERERSL HERRERELE guarantee to its customers who buy machine tool products
—FRNEBREBIINEHERNHENE S from the Group. If the products have malfunction caused by
M@ AEBrEEERE - FlERS non-accident or quality problems within one year after sale,
ERFRIEAEETER AR & AR H the Group will provide free maintenance. The above product
HMEXYNEREEAZENERESRES quality warranty was made based on the Group’s forecasted
TR - product quality warranty expenditures to be undertaken for

products sold during the period and prior periods.

26 —FREFPVIERDAR 26. Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FRIMNERDEELHEBBRN Information of non-current liabilities due within one year is
K as follows:

2HEEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

logz3 201256 A30H 2011%12A31A

As at As at

HH Item Note 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
ENmEHRER Obligation under

finance lease () (). 27 213,209.00 213,209.00

ErED Sales and lease back (&) * (V). 29 205,300.00 205,300.00

CEn Total 418,509.00 418,509.00
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27 - RAERR

27. Long-term payables

EREENMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

2012§6H30H 2011%12H831H

As at As at

EA Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

FERT B E HE Obligation under finance lease 2,025,486.35 2,132,090.90
W — R H R FE T Less: obligation under finance

BEHREXK lease due within one year 213,209.00 213,209.00

art Total 1,812,277.35 1,918,881.90

EmERE R RN ZARNEER2001F
ERHEBIBEREBREEANZERE
NHREMRE ZHEEEKBERE M
EH8A204F -

2012968300 » AEBAHERMEE
ez A ARE1,225119.1070(20114F
12H318 : AR#¥1,289,599.007T) °

ERSREPEHFEARAS% (55%) A
ERRERO O BROR BB K -

REBEM20129F6 A30B LA BB X M &
ERERENZBOT

Obligation under finance lease reflected the present value
of minimum lease payments caused by the Group’s lease of
some workshops and factory buildings after sale in 2001. The
lease constituted finance lease and the term of lease was 20
years.

As at 30 June 2012, the balance of unrecognised finance
expenses of the Group was RMB1,225,119.10 (31 December
2011: RMB1,289,599.00).

There were no long-term payables due to shareholders holding
over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting

rights.

The minimum finance lease payments of the Group payable
after 30 June 2012 are as follows:

EREENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB

20126 A30H 2011%12A31H

As at As at

BREBEENR Minimum lease payments 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
15 AA(E14E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 342,168.88 342,168.88
1FEAE2FUARN(E2F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88
2F LA EIFLAR(E3IF) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88
3FLAE Over 3 years 2,224,098.81 2,395,183.26
/NEE Sub-total 3,250,605.45 3,421,689.90
W RERMEEA Less: unrecognised finance expenses 1,225,119.10 1,289,599.00
CEn Total 2,025,486.35 2,132,090.90

i — 4 OB R R A TR BT
RRBRAEBEOFEDENITR - 26%
HE -

The amount of finance lease payment due within one year
after deducting unrecognised finance expenses was disclosed
in Note V. 26.
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28 - EHEMNK

28. Special payables

SEEL  ARKT

Unit: RMB
HARE AEEM THED HRBE
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
EH Item balance the period the period balance
RELNBERER Specific appropriation from Shaanxi
AN Intellectual Property Office 100,000.00 £ 100,000.00 =
BRERTHED Tax refund for import tariff and
BT IR ETIEE import VAT for key parts of
BEBA(H1) machine tools (note 1) 15,167,565.87 - - 15,167,565.87
Ch Total 15,267,565.87 - 100,000.00  15,167,565.87

1 BB BRI ERERNELSAEER
REI5 48 B R 75 B B IS BT hn ik ik S15E 5
BEENETERABEORKBERNE
HY(EBFEEFE[2007)1198%) - ZBRBRIES
BRIEERE @ BERTHREAEERK
BARE o IR KREEIRHBER RS
ERREARS @ BIAMRBRARERER
E - 1RIE2010F8A16HBHNENESE

CETREERE Ao EKRE
FHRBF2FRBBALEE XREL
WEBMERFE TERETRETRE
ERBZERAEERREAENEF -
HEHZ A ARABIEBE AN - EUE
R G AR EEMNF -

29 HtpERBEE

Note 1:

Pursuant to the stipulations of the “Notice from the Ministry
of Finance, National Development Reform Commission, China
Customs, State Administration of Taxation on Import Duties
Policy Related to Several Opinions on the Acceleration of
Revitalising the Equipment Manufacturing Industry” (Cai
Guan Shui [2007] No. 11), the tax refund will be treated as
state investment, and should be converted into state capital
within a specified time. If an enterprise cannot convert the tax
refund into state capital within the specified time, it should
return the refund to state treasury on time. According to the
resolution passed at the 19th meeting of the sixth session
of the Board of the Company held on 16 August 2010, the
Company would directly issue shares to its state-owned
substantial shareholders Shenji Group and Yunnan Industrial
Investment within two years after receiving the tax refund
and complete the procedure of converting tax refund into
state capital. Before that time, the Company would treat
it as special payables according to corporate accounting
standards.

29. Other non-current liabilities

EREEMN  ARETT

Unit: RMB

2012566 A30H 2011%12A31H

As at As at

EH Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
IR IE W 2= Deferred income

—E&MEE(5FT) — sales and lease back (note 1) 1,745,052.81 1,847,702.91

— BB (aE2) - government grants (note 2) 44,363,884.00 39,643,000.00

ant Total 46,108,936.81 41,490,702.91
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Note 1:

HERBSFEREY ML EBER -
CIEBKREENEE - IARSEEEN L
158 P 2 Wi A B TR AR T B M ) 22 BB TV AR
IEW 20 M & BN iR B 0K 81 R
e 201266 A30H &2011412A31
B AKEEEF —FABANBROE

JE W B

2201256 A30R BN EERFENT

HYER

ER—FRNIHNERBDER
(RHFER - 26)5R o

Note 2:

1) BEIRRMNIeLEMAFES
MTGKA6100 R 7| &= # £ i1 §2 $% /K
MEMEEENERREEESHES
2Bl & A R#8,035,000.007T & A
R1#10,923,384.007T :

2) ARREHGEAMKER9)
WEEEIREETERBNED
&4 ANR%16,000,000.007T °

Deferred income-sales and lease back were caused by the
Group's lease of some buildings and structures and land use
rights after sale in 2001 and the lease constituted finance
lease. Therefore, the difference between the income of
selling premises and land use rights and the original book
value formed deferred income and would be amortised with
the straight-line method within 20 years of leasing period.
As at 30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group
treated the deferred income which was forecasted to be
transferred to income statement within one year as non-
current liabilities due within one year (see Note V. 26).

As at 30 June 2012, the government grants mainly included:

1) specific state grants of RMB8,035,000.00 and
RMB10,923,384.00 for developing technology
innovation platform for precision horizontal and vertical
products machining center and TGK46100 series high-
tech boring and milling machines respectively;

2) government grants of RMB16,000,000.00 for civil
construction and equipment purchasing and installation
for the heavy casting base (see Note V. 9).

30 A 30. Share capital
2BE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
MR REREE
Opening and
closing balance
AR E @A Ordinary domestic A Shares
B EmAR 390,186,228.20
BHN ETHINE IR Overseas foreign H Shares listed in Hong Kong
B ETHR 140,894,874.80
CEl Total 531,081,103.00
31 EXRTE 31. Capital reserve
2BE - ARET
Unit: RMB
MR REREE
Opening and
HH Item closing balance
PR A% (B Share premium 19,206,777.12

HpEARRTE—HA

32 Eth TR

Other capital reserves — others

Total

8,096,544.60

27,303,321.72

32. Surplus reserve

BREE  ARKT
Unit: RMB

AR ARERER
Opening and
closing balance

EEBBATE

Statutory surplus reserve

116,508,002.60
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33 RO EAHE

33. Retained earnings -

SPEEW  ARKET

Unit: RMB

i &8

EHE Item Note Amount

BRI AR 5 B A1) Retained earnings at the beginning of the period 727,245,922.10
mn: NEEBR AR Add: net profits attributable to shareholders

% ER B 5 ) R of the Company for the period 3,592,495.24

W R AR AR Less: dividends payable on ordinary shares (1) 10,621,622.06

BRR AR B F))F Retained earnings at the end of the period (2) 720,216,795.28

(1)

(2)

5 B0 Z 8 IR AR T
2012958150 AR KRE RS &
TEREBR200MNEENERAR
#0.027C(EHE201156 A308 1-61E
A BBRARK005TT) BELEA
AR #10,621,622.067T &) I& F( &
Z2011F6A30H L6 A : AR
26,554,055.157%) °

EELRZNREHZE2012F6A8
308 It6E A AP BB (&=
201156 A30H IF6fER : ) -

B R K 73 B ) B 19 35 B

FRABABRINBENTRAANE
BATEAAREOT(HE2011468
30HIE6MER « #) -

H 201267300 "EEFB
RERFRNRDEFNEFRBEE T AR
AN FRARRINBBABARE
6,750,282.167C(2011412A318 :
ANE#6,750,282.167T) °

34 - BEWA - EERE

(1)

(2)

Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares

At the general meeting held on 15 May 2012, the
payment of a dividend of RMB0.02 per share (six months
ended 30 June 2011: RMBO0.05 per share) amounting to
RMB10,621,622.06 (six months ended 30 June 2011:
RMB26,554,055.15) in respect of the year 2011 was
approved.

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2012 (six months ended 30 June 2011: nil).

Retained earnings at the end of the period

RMBO of surplus reserve attributed to the Company was
drawn by subsidiaries during the period (six months ended
30 June 2011: nil).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’'s retained earnings
attributed to the Company included RMB6,750,282.16
of surplus reserve drawn by subsidiaries of the Company
(31 December 2011: RMB6,750,282.16).

34. Operating income and operating costs

(1) EXUA  EXZHK (1) Operating income and operating costs
THEW  ARET
Unit: RMB
HZ6H30H 6@ A KM
For the six months ended 30 June

2012% 20114

HH Item 2012 2011
FEEBRA Operating income from

Hep : sHEEmBA

principal activities
Including: income from sales of goods
income from rendering
services

629,624,131.99
609,246,115.33

20,378,016.66
2,053,170.96

882,267,218.74
871,654,128.21

10,613,090.534
2,925,362.63

631,677,302.95

885,192,581.37

REEBRA
RS T ON Other operating income
EEL NS Total operating income
&R Operating costs

478,647,251.40

668,271,822.33
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2) EXRUA(FERE) 2)

Operating income (by business)
BB - ARETT

Unit: RMB
BZ6A30H L6fE A HA
For the six months ended 30 June

2012 20124 20115 201145

2012 2012 2011 2011

EERA EERK =1 ON EERK

Operating Operating Operating Operating

£B LB Business income costs income costs

BIRE Boring machines 534,101,907.97 397,009,155.98 804,064,692.58 601,913,589.84
ERRERVBE D Turbo machines

BEKER 97,575,394.98 81,638,095.42 81,127,888.79 66,358,232.49

A&t Total 631,677,302.95 478,647,251.40 885,192,581.37 668,271,822.33

(3) BRAAEBRZTRMEY]RAOINEE (3) Please refer to note (IX). 2 (2) for information regarding

FPRAMER2REME) ~ 2(2)

income from external customers as set out by different
areas by the Group.

(4) FKEEFTAEEPHEEKAIE (4) Operating income from top five customers for the
D period

THHEN - ARKITT

Unit: RMB

HEERA

EEWA BEEREEBI(%)

Proportion to

Operating total operating

EFAE Name of customers income income (%)

F—% 1st 46,666,666.60 7.39

F-Z 2nd 26,713,675.23 4.23

F=% 3rd 25,782,051.28 4.08

Eapup 4th 19,444,444 .42 3.08

FRA 5th 19,307,692.30 3.06

A&t Total 137,914,529.83 21.84

HRBEENZES R ANE B As names of customers involve the commercial confidential

= AEERBEEHE201296A30 information of the Group, the Group did not disclose

6B A MMM A BB S EE S
7 o

the specific names of the top five customers for the six
months ended 30 June 2012.
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35 EEHR SR

35. Business taxes and surcharges =

PEE  ARMT

Unit: RMB
HZ6830H L6 AHM™
For the six months ended 30 June
20124 20115 ETEUEE
15H Item 2012 2011 Taxation basis and rates
e Business tax 7,048.24 - ZHEWBAKZ% -5%
3% - 5% of operating income
T 4R B Urban maintenance and 1,365,567.97 3,407,042.27  HUNEERREENNL5% - 7%
construction tax 4.5% - 7% of paid VAT and
business tax
2B BHI Education surcharges 590,859.91 1,487,999.09  BNEER L EERN3%
3% of paid VAT and business tax
MHEEMI  Local education surcharges 393,906.60 917,688.88  HIMISEMKLEERAN2%
2% of paid VAT and business tax
At Total 2,357,382.72 5,812,730.24
36 - REW = 36. Investment income
2REEN  ARBT
Unit: RMB
HZ6H30RL6EAH™
For the six months ended 30 June
Hat 20125 20115
EH Item Note 2012 2011
EamEZENRH Income from long-term
M1 B W 5 equity investments
accounted for using
the equity method (#) V). 7 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
EERHARERE Income from disposal of
EERRE N long-term equity
investments 1,408,054.17 -
H A, Others 533,000.00 -
X Total 2,558,989.11 2,996,157.41
(1) REREIZENRHARERERK (1) Information on income from long-term equity
@IFERMAT investments accounted for using the equity method is
as follows:
THEN - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HZ6H300 L618 B HAM
For the six months ended 30 June
20125 201145
WIREEN Invested company 2012 2011
ERAE T Kunming TOS 1,065,821.94 3,322,334.50
78 2 3 Xi‘an Ruite -447,887.00 -326,177.09
A& Total 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
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37 - EERERX 37. Loss on impairment of assets
ZHE - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H 1L61E A MM
For the six months ended 30 June
20124 20115
EA Item 2012 2011
JEE s AR 3R Accounts receivable 23,207,093.40 42,414,353.97
b YR Other receivables 1,440,054.74 -
CE Total 24,647,148.14 42,414,353.97
38 - EEIMKA 38. Non-operating income
(1) EZEINGASEHIERLRT - (1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:
TEHE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
B Z6A30H L6fE A HAM ST AEHE
For the six months ended 30 June EEMIERNELHE
Amount
included in
non-recurring
gains and
btat 20124 20115 losses for the
HE Item Note 2012 2011 current period
ERBEE Gain on disposal
BE NG of non-current
assets - 494,316.49 -
RS #8 B Government
grants (2) 13,142,000.00 1,805,000.00 13,142,000.00
Hit Others 822,629.08 58,422.04 822,629.08
R Total 13,964,629.08 2,357,738.53 13,964,629.08
(2) BT B EA A (2) breakdown of government grants
TREE AR
Unit: RMB
HZ6H300 L61E B HAM
For the six months ended 30 June
20124 20114 L
HE Item 2012 2011 Explanation
THMZRZIFEZEAZ THM series precision
I horizontal products
machining center 8,142,000.00 - i* Note
RIS 8= Large precision CNC boring
S and milling machines
(TKS6916) (TKS6916) 2,600,000.00 -
Hb Others 2,400,000.00 1,805,000.00
R Total 13,142,000.00 1,805,000.00

- IO e




it

BIBRCRAR2009F B BREEMNIE) (T
1= 8B4 sk[2009]) 61957 ) LA & AN A 7] B2 H
HEIEBEMNNE  AARERREEML
Bi o EEMAESBMEA PRROMEE
B (THMZREZBZEAN I T A0 ) ] SAES
BT B ARM8148 7T - AR HK2010
F12 8 AR2011467 B U E) T 48 B8 &Y B
e WRERRARLEWS - 2012F £
& TEERBZTHMEZIEZEAR M
THRLEEERAFAZRENERHRRER
EREE  EZRTZBTE R R W
1&H - EmEWEOBRFREBARES14
BRI EE AL EINRA o

Note:

the agreements entered into by the Company and other
cooperation units, the research project (THM series precision
horizontal products machining center) jointly submitted by
the Company (as the subject responsible unit) and other
cooperation units is expected to receive government grants
in an amount of RMB8.14 million. The Company received
the government grants in December 2010 and July 2011,
which were recognized as deferred gain. In the first half
of 2012, the management considered that the THM series
precision horizontal product machining center project had
achieved the expected results and reached the assessment

criteria of the project, thus fulfilling the requirements for
such government grants. Therefore, the government grants
of RMB 8.14 million received were transferred from deferred
gain to non-operating income.

39 EXI X

39. Non-operating expenses

EREEMN  ARETT

Unit: RMB
BZ6H30H L6EA M FAEHERE
For the six months ended 30 June MIBENEHE
Amount
included in
non-recurring
gains and
losses for
2012%F 20115 the current
EHE Item 2012 2011 period
BETEERERX Losses on disposal of
fixed assets - 334,890.75 -
HIMBE Donations provided - 2,000.00 -
Hb Others 277,374.85 1,007,424.61 277,374.85
CE Total 277,374.85 1,344,315.36 277,374.85
40 - FIEHEH 40. Income tax expenses
LHE - ARETT
Unit: RMB
BZ6H30H L6f@AHM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012%F 20114
HE Item Note 2012 2011
BFOARHBRETTER  Current tax expenses for
EHIFTEH the period based on tax law
(FEIFFEH) and related regulations
(PRC income tax) 2,219,735.27 5,683,776.10
ARTSFE DR H Under provision for income tax
in respect of preceding years 1,681,073.04 -
RIEFTS T A Z &) Deferred taxation movement (1) -3,168,400.77 -9,832,770.59
CEn Total 732,407.54 -4,148,994.49
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AR AEBEREE20129F6530H F12011 No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the

F6A30H LL61E A A & BREVE B TS Group did not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
HPER R F - B RGBSR B ET Profits Tax for the six month period ended 30 June 2012 and
A - ZGRIE

(1) BEELFZHBESTLT - (1) Analysis of deferred income tax adjustment:

EHRENMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H LL6fE A HAM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012F 20115
HE Item 2012 2011
ERMEEED Origination and reversal of
EE A MEEE the temporary differences -5,066,160.98 -1,969,035.11
RS-k Effects of tax rate changes
RIET IR 8 on deferred tax 2,112,267.23 -4,241,435.40
KRIERHAIIEIEE  Unrecognised deductible losses 486,902.46 757,902.94
FIALARTFE Using deferred income tax assets
RIERHIRIE unrecognised in prior years
PSR EE -701,409.48 -4,380,203.02
A&t Total -3,168,400.77 -9,832,770.59
(2) FriE#E HaE s F e B E 0 (2) The relationship between income tax expenses
I and accounting profit:
TREE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HZ6H30H L6f@ B HAM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012% 20115
1HH Item 2012 2011
IRV Profit before tax 4,188,220.22 38,155,088.73
EEBNGTE Expected income tax under
ERARER tax rate applicable
ZEBIE to relevant region 1,047,055.06 9,538,772.18
e AR m Add: Non-deductible expenses 102,005.82 1,566.58
TERFLUA Non-taxable income -154,483.73 -749,039.35
RIEREAE I EE Unrecognised deductible losses 486,902.46 757,902.94
FANLAFE Using deferred income
RERIEL tax assets unrecognised
FTSHiEE in prior years -701,409.48 -4,380,203.02
BEZBLEL Effects of tax rate changes
HENFE on deferred tax 2,112,267.23 -4,241,435.40
PRSI Effects of preferential
BENTE income tax -3,841,002.86 -5,076,558.42
PRI Under provision for income
PrAS Mt tax in respect of
preceding years 1,681,073.04 -
REAFTISHER Income tax expenses for the period 732,407.54 -4,148,994.49
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4 EXSRUSENHEESRUAMNTHE 41, Calculation of basic earnings per share f<<*

Bz earnings per share

(1) EXEGRKzm (1) Basic earnings per share
%$H§Hﬁl?ﬁt%5§%ﬁ@$ﬁﬂ%i@ﬁi Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
IR B & 0 F FEBR AR A R EITE the consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
HNERAREY NI PO BGHE - shareholders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding:

EREEMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB
201256 A30H 2011512831H
As at As at
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
SERAAT LA Consolidated net profit
IRERE A OHFFIE attributable to ordinary
(AR¥ETT) shareholders of the
Company (RMB) 3,592,495.24 42,771,864.27
AN/ S B R Weighted average number
L im AR BY of ordinary shares
T8 (R outstanding (share) 531,081,103 531,081,103
BEREGRE Basic earnings per share
(7t B%) (RMB/share) 0.0068 0.0805
B £2012F M2011466 308 1L61E For the six months ended 30 June 2012 and 2011,
RAEIRE - AR A BEITEII T BRE there were no changes in the number of outstanding
RECR B EEME L o FatAIF AR ordinary shares of the Company. The weighted average
NEIFTEINE B NEFHEE number of ordinary shares outstanding for such periods
B2011F1 A1 BT BRARE - was the same as the number of ordinary shares as at 1
January 2011.
(2) WHEGRKZ (2) Diluted earnings per share
NERE - AAB T FEREBIENEE The diluted earnings per share was the same as the
Tk - MEGRKE ARG RIK basic earnings per share, because the Company did
AR ° not have any potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue

during the period.
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42 - FARERER
HBRBERTHERREEDE

42. Income statement supplementary information

Expenses in the income statement by nature:

EHEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
HZ6H30R 1L61E B M
For the six months ended 30 June

HRERPH Expenses in the income 2012%F 201145

ERRMEESE statement by nature 2012 2011

PN Operating income 631,677,302.95 885,192,581.37
B ERMREERN Less: changes in inventory of finished

FTEHED) goods and work in process -101,710,413.99 20,971,912.74

FERNEMRSE Consumption of raw materials 341,743,721.68 395,839,093.86

BFEMNBTHMNER Staff cost incurred 151,499,612.58 144,095,489.50

mIT#E Processing expenses 75,162,867.85 134,002,827.20

FHRmITE Depreciation expenses 21,972,886.15 19,394,726.48

| A EEE Amortization of intangible assets 1,021,699.39 1,443,197.55

BERE Impairment of assets 24,647,148.14 42,414,353.97

IRITEFFE Bank loans interests 4,264,333.50 1,504,277.96

it 9T I F B8 A AR R&D costs 21,879,979.51 15,754,451.29

EHAith Others 87,007,247.91 71,617,162.09

b FERE Total profits 4,188,220.23

38,155,088.73

43 - BEREREAIR
(1) ANEJRETH 2 a) B AR 28 BB

43. Notes to the cash flow statement

(1) Other cash received relating to operating

938 & activities during the period
TEEMN - ARET
Unit: RMB
&5
HAB Item Amount
I T #68 Bh E o B B Government grants for
H) 5K I8 R&D of products 17,862,884.00
Hit Others 1,140,256.52
a5t Total 19,003,140.52
(2) FEEZTRIAEMBLETE R (2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities
Z kA during the period
BN ARKEIT
Unit: RMB
o]
HAB Item Amount
BeFEE Commission fees 3,901,800.00
EnBEEREE Product quality warranty expenses 8,987,685.40
Hity Others 11,025,021.13
CE Total 23,914,506.53

Il cesEEessmeERAA 200 FHEE




(1)

e e

(1) Supplementary information of the

-y
HZ6A30H 68 A MM
For the six months ended 30 June
20128 2011F
BrER Supplementary information 2012 201
1. BRFERGRLE . Reconciliation of net profit to cash
EHRERE flows from operating activities:
AR Net profit 3,455,812.69 42,304,083.22
m: BEREEE Add: Provision for impairment of assets 24,647,148.14 42,414,353.97
BEEERE Depreciation of fixed assets 21,972,886.15 19,394,726.48
B EERH Amortization of intangible assets 1,021,699.39 1,443,197.55
REGBEREH Amortization of long-term deferred expenses 191,156.49 79,614.78
ERME Amortization of deferred gain -102,650.10 -102,700.10
REATAEMEL Loss on disposal of fixed assets
(Mezssh [—] S350 ("-" for gain) - -159,425.74
BISER (Wb [—] $E750) Finance expenses ("-" for gain) 3,589,547.70 -2,125.03
RERE (UM [ SEER) Investment loss ("-" for gain) -2,558,989.11 -2,996,157.41
ERFEREERYD Decrease in deferred income tax assets
(SEIUA -] SHE510) ("-" for increase) -3,102,600.08 -9,832,770.59
FENRD GEmi [—] E5) Decrease in inventories (“-" for increase) -71,452,906.12 -76,584,616.80
LR EYURE MR Decrease in operating receivable
(SEIA [ ] 553851) (“-" for increase) -7,577,064.32 -109,768,977.27
LR ERTEE MM Increase in operating payable
(RO - 53850) ("-" for decrease) 26,671,332.67 84,382,787.44
KEEREENRENETE Net cash flows from operating activities -3,244,626.50 -9,428,009.50
2. BeRBSEEUEZBER: . Net movements in cash and cash equivalents:
RemBAAE Cash balance at the end of the period 127,911,036.52 226,459,646.81
W R E%RE Less: cash balance at the beginning
of the period 175,808,019.62 285,882,274.37
BeRReSEMTENS Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(R =] R8T ("-" for decrease) -47,896,983.10 -59,422,627.56
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(2) KA B F I~ A J% B2 26 F 15 i 12 (2) Relevant information on disposal and loss of control of

B2 ARS8 - a subsidiary during the period:
BETARMNBEBER Relevant information on disposal of a subsidiary
TEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
EHZ6A30A L6EAHME
For the six months ended 30 June
2012% 20114
2012 2011
BETRAINER Consideration of disposing a subsidiary 1,000,000.00 =
RETARMWERIRE  Cash received from disposal of a subsidiary 1,000,000.00 -
B FRARINEER Less: cash held by the subsidiary on
HAENRS the date of disposal 56,241.69 -
BETF AR Net cash received from disposal of
R a subsidiary 943,758.31 -
BRETFARPEEHBHR  Disposal of non-cash assets and liabilities
FREBENMBE of the subsidiary on the date of disposal
-nBEE(RRL) — Current assets (other than cash) 7,607,843.68 -
—JERBEE - Non-current assets 581,419.29 -
—-mBEE ~ Current liabilities 9,228,909.67 -
—FRBEE - Non-current liabilities - -
TRFREHESIENEBEER Relevant information on loss of control of a subsidiary
TEENMN - AR¥T
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30HL6EA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012% 20115
2012 2011
REXEHIER Cash held by the subsidiary on the
ZTRRFANES date of losing control 5,970,608.35 -
3 4N R Decrease in net cash resulted from
BHMIEFEAREL  loss of control of a subsidiary -5,970,608.35 -
REREGIER - Non-cash assets and liabilities held
ZTARFAR by the subsidiary on the date
FReBEEMNAE of losing control
-RBEE(RES) — Current assets (other than cash) 9,381,614.22 -
—ERBEE - Non-current assets 693,692.06 -
-nPEE ~ Current liabilities 14,681,898.29 -
—FRBAE — Non-current liabilities - _
(3) BB Z(EYRIIEK (3) Composition of cash and cash equivalents
TREE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 A30H 2011%12H31H
As at As at
HAB Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
— /e 1. Cash 127,911,036.52 175,808,019.62
E EFRe Including: cash on hand 205,309.82 503,574.06
A R& B Bank deposits available
AN on demand
RITFK 127,705,726.70 175,304,445.56
FUEBRBEORETEERAZRAN Note: Cash disclosed above does not include the amounts of
ERESRBRENKRENERE - monetary funds with restricted usage and short-term
Investments.
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N -BABARABEXS
1 FARFANE-KRRREBER

N
Y
(VI1).RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS —

1. Information of the largest shareholder of t e

Company
TEE - ARETT
Unit: RMB
E-RRREANT  E-ARREALA
E-RRE%H i3 35 Fidle EARR FHng -t gl a7 RRAELA(%) ARIRREHS ARHERE
Percentage of Percentage of
shareholding voting rights ~ Ultimate
held by the largest ~ held by the largest ~ controlling
Name of the Place of Legal Business Registered shareholder in shareholder ~ shareholder of Organization
largest shareholder ~ Type registration  representative  nature (apital the Company (%) ~in the Company (%)  the Company code
THEE ERERLR  fE BiR BREEEE 155,480,000 25.09% B0%  AENEREE 243381258
EOeEzEe
Shenji Group Limited liability ~ China Guan Xiyou ~ Production and Shenyang State-owned
company sales of machine Assets Supenvision
tools and Administration
Commission
AATWFATER 2. Subsidiaries of the Company
BEAANARFARNEELZ2RME(M) - Please see note (IV) for information of subsidiaries of the
Company.
KRB EE M E D ERS) 3. Jointly controlled enterprises and associated
companies of the Company
AN KDIERRE
BREENEE fid 44 Fidie EARE £HKE AhER BREAC) BRMRAELAH)  EREERE
Percentage of
voting rights
Place of Legal Percentage of of the Company ~ Organization
Name of investee Type registration  representative  Business nature Registered capital ~ shareholding (%) in the investee (%) code
- ebg
] BRAT g g ROl BREREEHE BS00ET ) 50 77266099
1. Jointly controlled enterprise
Kunming T0S Limited liabiity ~ China Production and sales of EURS,000,000
company machine tool products
oo BEdE
(35t BRAT e iEL3 REREREENE MRS 0008 334 B3 79166780-4
2. Associated company
Xi'an Ruite Limited liabiity ~ China Tian Huisheng ~ Production and sales of laser RMB60,000,000
company prototyping machine
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4 HABABGER

4. Information on other related parties

HisEam s 578 BB R HEKBNRE
Name of other related parties Related relationship Organization code
EHEREBELOBRAA RRBE-ABREZFRF 709781545
([EgEE N )
Yunnan Yun Ji Group Import Subsidiary of the largest
and Export Co., Ltd. shareholder of the Company
("Yun Ji | & E Co.")
EECYEERAF RRBE-ABREZFRF 919190831
Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
EREHERAA RRBEZABREZFRAF 216547232
([E#EERA])
Kunming Kunji Group Subsidiary of the second largest
Co., Ltd. (“Kunji Group Co.") shareholder of the Company
EEEENEERERAAF RRBEZABREZFRF 291887852
([EEEEmE])
Yunnan State-owned Assets Subsidiary of the second largest
Property Management shareholder of the Company
Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan State-
owned Assets Property”)
EHCYREDEZRER RRBE-ABREZFRF 99211416-5
([EEERK])
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Subsidiary of the largest shareholder
Jinhui Spraying Factory of the Company
("Jinhui Spraying Factory”)
ERCYEBRARIKE RRBE-ABREZFRF 292147185
EmBSHRL(ESFL])
Yunnan CY Group Co. Ltd., Subsidiary of the largest shareholder
Products Trading Center of the Company
("Trading Center”)
LSRR B R A A RRBE-ABREZFRF 24340683-0
Shenyang Machine Tool Subsidiary of the largest shareholder
Company Limited of the Company
EEFRAERETEAA RATE-—RKBRRZF AT TEMA
([fEEAHT])
SCHIESS GmbH (”"Schiess”) Subsidiary of the largest shareholder N/A

of the Company
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(1) BHXZIERERX (1) Summary of related p'é'rt g
REE The Group

SHEW  ARKT

Unit: RMB
#Z6A30AL6MEAHM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012F 01E
2012 2011
tRERS tRERS
BES BEIZNE  BERIEESFARARER &8 SEMLAI%) 8 SEMLAI(%)
Pricing
method and
decision-making Percentage Percentage
Content of procedures to the amount to the amount
connected of connected of similar of similar
Related party transaction transaction Amount transactions (%) Amount transactions (%)
EREN(22) HEBER B-REREEER - - 32,298,237.40 3.65
Kunming TOS Sales of goods  Based on normal
(note 2) commercial terms
ERELD HEHM B-RERBEER 256.41 0.00 1,794.87 0.00
Yun Ji | & E Co. Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
EHCYEBRRF HERM B-REREEER - - 290,760.68 0.03
Yunnan CY Group  Sales of goods  Based on normal
Co., Ltd. commercial terms
E5%0 HEBER B-REREEER - - 717,948.72 0.08
Trading Center Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
EBCYRERR BX&% B-RERBEHER 64,485.48 178 - -
Yunnan CY Group  Receipt of Based on normal
Co., Ltd. service commercial terms
EREERT EX8% RRAHBERER 112,158.00 3.09 - -
Kunji Group Co. Receipt of Based on relevant
service terms of agreement
EREN(22) BESY B-REREEER 42,390,209.23 1225 30,726,495.87 427
Kunming TOS Purchase of Based on normal
(note 2) goods commercial terms
EREENT BESY B-REFBEHER - - 278,964.68 0.04
Kunji Group Co. Purchase of Based on normal
goods commercial terms
EREERT 2] diih RRABERER 2,625,000.00 72.33 2,625,000.00 0.00
(321~ (7)52)
Kunji Group Co. Leasing Based on relevant terms
(note 1, (VI). 5(2)) of agreement
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EREEN  ARKTT

Unit: RMB
EZ6A30AL6EANE
For the six months ended 30 June
2012F 2011
2012 2011
BHERAEER HRER S ERERS
BEA BBERZNE  HARARER 8 SEMA(%) 2B SEMHLH(%)
Pricing
method and
decision-making Percentage Percentage
Content of procedures to the amount to the amount
connected of connected of similar of similar
Related party transaction transaction Amount transactions (%) Amount transactions (%)
SERRM(H3)  BEEY B-REEBEHER 2,071,874.16 0.60 - -
Jinhui Spraying Purchase of Based on normal
Factory (note 3) goods commercial terms
EHEENE BHEE RIAE R AR 9,000.00 0.25 224,644.72 6.83
Yunnan State-owned Leasing Based on relevant
Assets Property terms of agreement
BRRH(#4) BERB RIAE R AR 18,844,219.15 38.30 - -
Schiess (note 4) Purchase of Based on relevant terms
equipment of agreement
HERARAERLR BERE RRAGEGR 663,172.91 135 - -
Shenyang Machine  Purchase of Based on relevant terms
Tool Company equipment of agreement
Limited
iN/NE The Company
BREH(F5) HERM BB RE R - - 345,191.44 0.04
Fujian Kunji (note 5) Sales of goods  Based on relevant terms
of agreement
ERES(H2) HERM B-REBHZRES - - 32,298,237.40 4.04
Kunming TOS Sales of goods  Based on normal
(note 2) commercial terms
EHELD HERM B-REBHZRES 256.41 0.00 1,794.87 0.00
Yun Ji I & E Co. Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
EHCYEERT HERm B-REBHZRES - - 290,760.68 0.04
Yunnan CY Group  Sales of goods ~ Based on normal
Co., Ltd. commercial terms
E5%0 HERM B-REBHZREN - - 717,948.72 0.09
Trading Center Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
EHCYERRA BEX5% B-REBHZREN 64,485.48 1.95 - -
Yunnan CY Group ~ Receipt of Based on normal
Co., Ltd. service commercial terms
EREELT BEX5% R RE R 112,158.00 339 - -
Kunji Group Co. Receipt of Based on relevant terms
service of agreement
BB (72) BEEY B-REEHZREN 42,390,209.23 1542 30,726,495.87 4.83
Kunming TOS Purchase of Based on normal
(note 2) goods commercial terms
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26830016/ AHH
For the six months ended 30 June

2012F 201E
2012 2011
BRRZER HAERS HRERS
BEA BEZZNE  FARRRER 8 SEMLA(%) 28 SEMHLH(%)
Pricing
method and
decision-making Percentage Percentage
Content of procedures to the amount to the amount
connected of connected of similar of similar
Related party transaction transaction Amount transactions (%) Amount transactions (%)
EREELT BEEY BR-REBHEER - - 278,964.68 0.04
Kunji Group Co. Purchase of Based on normal
goods commercial terms
EHEEAT
(&1 (%) 52) BHES RRAHBERR 2,625,000.00 79.29 2,625,000.00 0.00
Kunji Group Co. Leasing Based on relevant terms
(note 1, (Vi). 5(2)) of agreement
TEREM(E3)  BEEY B-REBBHRER 2,071,874.16 0.75 - -
Jinhui Spraying Purchase of Based on normal
Factory (note 3) goods commercial terms
EHEENE BHAEE RIAEREER 9,000.00 0.27 224,644.72 7.40
Yunnan State-owned Leasing Based on relevant terms
Assets Property of agreement
EEAE(314) BERME RRAHERR 18,844,219.15 38.80 - -
Schiess (note 4) Purchase of Based on relevant terms
equipment of agreement
RERARNERLR BERME RIRBREER 663,172.91 137 - -

Shenyang Machine  Purchase of Based on relevant terms
Tool Company equipment of agreement
Limited

1 RS NDEINGEEREBE QA
HBER THERENEESR
A-EREBARKEREA
REHFEE AEZEEHEAR
BF2001811 128 EARQ A
EEZMEEREA R L
FRERES R )P HEFR ME
ﬁ%o

AQFR20119281H 6HEE #
EEARFTAE AR E - F
BLrii e A ARKAL,457,340
T HAEBREREAARE
792,6607T ° LA FFHAEZBSH
MITHIBR A BE2010F11H128
FEE2013F11A11HILE °

2 0 AR AEIR20114 B E R E T
B20NNFEHBEBEY - #
B HEEY  BESKE
AEBELCEIERRE - B
Hi PR B20114F10831H #£ &
20114 12H831HIE

A R 388

Note 1: The transactions were about rental fees for premises

and land use rights paid to Kunji Group Co.. Kunji
Group Co. was authorized by the People’s Government
of Yunnan Province to succeed the rights and
obligations of the “The Premise Rental Agreement”
and “The Land Use Rights Rental Agreement”
signed between the People’s Government of Yunnan
Province and the Company on 12 November 2001.

On 1 February 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement for rental adjustment with Kunji Group Co..
The annual rent of land use rights was adjusted to
RMB4,457,340, and the annual rent of premises was
adjusted to RMB792,660. The adjusted annual rent was
effective from 12 November 2010 to 11 November 2013.

Note 2: The ordinary business framework agreement was

entered into between the Company and Kunming TOS
regarding the purchase of goods, receipt of services,
sales of goods and provision of services, etc. in 2011
with effect from 31 October 2011 to 31 December
2011.
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ARABR201NFESEZRRESR
HEBEKERBEMBEIERDGZ -
% B[R B201149A21H #£ &
2013F12A3181L »

i&2011¢7ﬁ]18E| B H20114F
//\EWE‘IHX% /\ﬁﬁékiﬂ Z’S
jéﬁifﬁlﬁﬁﬁgg HIE-R=Es3iE!
fﬁfr\J#‘JAH HEHF ol #
2000mmiE R EFEPIEIK(T AR
EmDBET  RENMTENER
Fff - WESBRT]EZENLFR
B {5 45 L 3 10T /9 AE EE A RN AE 22O
HESRERBOER -

E—vﬁ&mﬂﬁﬂﬁTA
AERBE

Elﬁf
=

— R MW FATER:
6,600,000E T

. B THTEIIER : 700,000
BT &

s HEIMAIR BVYMGEM
VM8 B 1 K 12 ﬁmﬁlﬁ&
B E A ¢ 200,000 7T

R2011F8A » AR AIRIEAS R IE
o BB E T A R R EE Al
% #930%,811,980,0008 ;t( &5 &
A R ¥ /518,246,610.807T ) » I
BRI E— A REHE R /9 30 5 Bl
NIE(BERTEL  TEFEM
B8 %) 20114128318 -
ZeBEREMIERBEE(RW
HERCIOEEEBEBRIT R
20114F11 8 - AR R [ EE & H
BT £ 31 & 400,000 T (5B
AR 53,483,152.007T) °

201146127 - RQ R EE@EF T
#EAR - MEBEEVMGe R K
RIS R B - £%8/54,481,309.008k
gL ° R20129F4 8 » AR T*E%E—/:.\H
&R - MERA I TERNVMGeR A
R3%2,261,256.83 T (HEARE
7,%18,844,219.1571) M201246 A
308 ZeEE M ENN30%0
AR E - tEAHMIEREE
ERHNER 14 EEEBEBRY
2N

MR2012%F3[21H » ARAREEH

HAEREEEM2EEND - At
REERTBREARGNERT -

Note 3: The framework agreement was entered into between

the Company and Jinhui Spraying Factory regarding
the purchase of packing materials for machine tools
in 2011 with effect from 21 September 2011 to 31
December 2013.

Note 4: As reviewed and approved by the first extraordinary

Note 5:

general meeting of 2011 of the Company held on
18 July 2011, the Company and Schiess entered
into the Proprietary Technology and Patent Licensing
Contract to introduce the proprietary technology
for the design, manufacture and installation of
double column 2000mm-crossrail machine (“contract
products”), and obtain the exclusive and non-
transferable license for production in the PRC with such
technology and sale in Asia of these contract products.

According to the Proprietary Technology and Patent
Licensing Contract, the contractual expenses include:

o License fee in one lump-sum: EUR6,600,000;

o Technical training fee: EUR700,000; and

o Technical service fee for the first two prototype
machines of machine models VMG6 and VM8:
EUR200,000;

In August 2011, the Company paid 30% of the contract
technology license fee to Schiess, which amounted to
EUR1,980,000 (equivalent to RMB18,246,610.80), and
received part of the technical documents (including
design drawing, process and content) of the first
prototype machine. As at 31 December 2011, the
amount was included in the balance sheet as other non-
current assets (refer to Note V. 14). The Company paid
the technical training fee of EUR400,000 (equivalent
to RMB3,483,152.00) to Schiess in November 2011.

In December 2011, the Company and Schiess entered
into a contract to purchase assembly components
of VMG6 prototype machine from Schiess with an
amount of EUR4,481,309.00. In April 2012, under
the terms of the contract, the Company prepaid
EUR2,261,256.83 (equivalent to RMB18,844,219.15)
to Schiess for VMG6 prototype machine. As at 30 June
2012,such amount together with the aforementioned
30% of the contract technology license fee was
included in the balance sheet as other non-current
assets (refer to Note V. 14).

On 21 March 2012, the Company disposed of all
of its shares in Fujian Kunji. Thereafter, Fujian
Kunji ceased to be a related party of the Company.
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The Group
JE L2 R Bt 75 R IR Receivables from related parties
Unit: RMB
201256 530H 20114128310
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
HEEH BE A SREEAE BIRER EREEAEE RERER
Provision for Provision for
Item Related party Book balance bad debt Book balance bad debt
& IR 3K A 1,754,403.43 - 6,085,433.84 -
Accounts receivable Kunming TOS
Hoth R R BEREH 919,626.71 - 930,594.93 -
Other receivables Kunming TOS
FEUBR TR EELIN - - 9,000.00 -
Accounts receivable Trading Center
HtERBEE EE A 37,090,829.95 - 18,246,610.80 -
Other non-current assets Schiess
KEE The Group
JE {<F B Bt 77 5ROE Payables to related parties
2HBEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BHEER BT 201256 HA30H 2011%12A831A
As at As at
Item Related party 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
JE ST BRK ERRRE T 45,604,706.30 43,510,497.07
Accounts payable Kunming TOS
JE ST BRK TIERE R 1,010,090.15 2,043,215.99
Accounts payable Jinhui Spraying Factory
Hoth FE 5 5K B#ERLT 2,625,000.00 2,625,000.00
Other payables Kunji Group Co.
Hoth FE 5 5K EMCYEERA - 1,461,801.71
Other payables Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.
Hoth FE 5 5K L5 HE IR AR 19 B BR X 7] 2,539,044.72 1,875,871.81

Other payables

Shenyang Machine Tool Company Limited

Interim Report 2012 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |27 -




2N
& W BE st 77 BRI

The Company

Receivables from related parties

THEENMN AR

Unit: RMB

20126 A30H 2011§12H831H

As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011

HBER )bl AR SRR BREE IREERER FIREE
Provision for Provision for

Item Related party Book balance bad debt Book balance bad debt
A ERREHT 1,754,403.43 - 6,085,433.84 -
Accounts receivable Kunming TOS
A RYER 244,000.00 - 244,000.00 -
Accounts receivable Changsha Ser
A BEREMT(N)  5(715) - - 4,992,195.83 1,130,000.00
Accounts receivable Fujian Kunji Note (VI). 5 (note 5)
A R0 - - 9,000.00 -
Accounts receivable Trading Center
H b & U R BEREH 919,626.71 - 930,594.93 -
Other receivables Kunming TOS
H b & U R ALER 6,600,326.15 - 6,564,496.74 -
Other receivables Xi‘an Ser
H b & U R BEREMT(N)  5(715) - - 637,604.30 -
Other receivables Fujian Kunji Note (VI). 5 (note 5)
HtbIEmBEE EE A 37,090,829.95 - 18,246,610.80 -
Other non-current assets Schiess
JFE LS A ) ARER 11,000,000.00 - 11,000,000.00 -
Dividend receivable Xi‘an Ser
JFE LS A ) BRARE - - 29,130,802.55 -

Dividend receivable

A2 A]
FE A< A BSE 77 BOR

General Machine

The Company

Payables to related parties

ERRENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB

HEER BE S 201266 A30H 20115F12A31H

As at As at
Item Related party 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
JETBR K AR EHT 45,604,706.30 43,510,497.07
Accounts payable Kunming TOS
JETBR K TIERER 1,010,090.15 2,043,215.99
Accounts payable Jinhui Spraying Factory
JETBR K RIERMT(N) - 5(75) - 325,000.00
Accounts payable Fujian Kunji Note (VI). 5 (note 5)
TR BR K RAER 9,120.67 9,120.67
Advances from Changsha Ser

customers

H At & 3K BARME - 12,640,191.46
Other payables General Machine
H At & 3K RH#EBE LT 2,625,000.00 2,625,000.00
Other payables Kunji Group Co.
H At & 3K EMCYEERATA - 1,461,801.71
Other payables Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.
H At &5 3K LIS R AR 1 B BR 2 7] 2,539,044.72 1,875,871.81

Other payables

Shenyang Machine Tool Company Limited
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(VII). CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding litigations
and arbitration and related financial effect

(1)

The Company signed a sales contract with Yancheng
Xinde Oil Machine Company (“Xinde Machine”) in June
2002 for sales of four machine tools with a contract
amount of approximately RMB11.9 million. The related
four machine tools had been delivered to Xinde Machine
before October 2003. In June 2009, Xinde Machine filed
a lawsuit against the Company alleging that the goods
delivered by the Company were unqualified and sought
for return of goods, refund of advances paid of RMB10.7
million and payment of penalty and compensation of
RMBO0.3 million and RMB3.7 million respectively. The
Company denied the claim and filed a counter claim
against Xinde Machine alleging that it was unreasonable
for Xinde Machine to claim for return of goods after use
of the Company’s products for more than 6 years and
requesting Xinde Machine to repay the unpaid amount
of RMB1.3 million for the goods.

The Intermediate People’s Court of Yancheng City made
a ruling in relation to the aforesaid litigation on 18 May
2012. It was ruled that the Company should refund the
advances paid of RMB2,375,000 and bear the costs of
the action in the amount of approximately RMB26,000.
The Company refused to accept the ruling and appealed
to the Higher People’s Court of Jiangsu Province on 20
July 2012. The case has entered the second-instance
stage.

Up to the date of the financial statements, the above case
is still under the second-instance stage. In consultation
with legal counsels, the management considered it may
not be quite probable that an outflow of economic
benefits would arise from the outcome of the above
case. Therefore no provision has been made in respect
of the above pending case in the financial statements.
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A sales contract of sets of turbo machines amounting
to RMB2.8 million was entered into between Xi‘an Ser,
a subsidiary of the Company, and Zhucheng Guanghua
Acetylene Oxygen Making Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred
to as “Zhucheng Guanghua”) in September 2004. In
2008, Zhucheng Guanghua filed a lawsuit against Xi’an
Ser, alleging that the goods received did not meet the
requirements stipulated in the contract and required
Xi'an Ser to return the amount of RMB1.68 million paid
and to be liable to breach of contract. Xi‘an Ser denied
the charge and countercharged Zhucheng Guanghua
because of its breach of contract in advance for failing
to pay in accordance with the contract. Xi‘an Ser also
required Zhucheng Guanghua to settle the balance. On 16
October 2009, the Intermediate People’s Court of Weifang
City made the final judgment that Zhucheng Guanghua
should pay a total of RMB1,319,518 for goods price,
interest accrued and transportation fee. On 3 March 2010,
Zhucheng Guanghua refused to accept the final verdict
and appealed to the People’s Procuratorate of Shandong
Province. On 25 May 2010, the People’s Procuratorate of
Shandong Province filed a protest to the Higher People’s
Court of Shandong Province. On 4 June 2010, the Higher
People’s Court of Shandong Province made a judgment
for retrial, that the case would be reopened by the Higher
People’s Court of Shandong Province, and the original
judgment should be suspended during retrial period. On
16 February 2011, the Higher People’s Court of Shandong
Province opened a court session for the case to mediate
the disputes.

Pursuant to the Civil Meditation Order (2011) Lu Min
Ti Zi No.16 issued on 21 March 2012, Xi'an Ser and
Zhucheng Guanghua voluntarily entered into the
following agreements: (1) Zhucheng Guanghua shall
pay the remaining consideration of RMB1.12 million
to Xi'an Ser in two instalments, and shall arrange the
one-way transportation of the turbo machines to the
factory and bear the relevant costs as well as the costs
for repair, purchase and transportation of the ancillary
machines and components; (2) Xi'an Ser shall carry out
thorough examination, repair and trial run of the turbo
machines, and shall bear the costs for the examination,
trial run, components replacement and repair of the
turbo machines at the factory as well as the one-way
transportation fee of the machines back to the operation
site upon completion of the examination and repair.

Management considered that it is not probable to result
in an outflow of significant economic benefits from
the obligation of performing of the above agreements.
Therefore no provisions have been recognized in respect
of such litigation in the financial statements.
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~ (VII.COMMITMENT

1. significant commitments

(1) Capital commitments

PHEEW  ARKT

Unit: RMB
2012566 A30H 20115F12A31H
As at As at
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
EEFTHMABIT Construction contract that has been
W ARTEEITH signed but not implemented
ERIRER or not fully implemented 178,526,654.93 171,007,819.14
ERBEERERT Construction contract that has been
AR BT AR authorized but not signed or
TERBITHER not implemented or not fully
TREER implemented 387,385,343.43 422,571,073.06
EEET EEe EE Proprietary technology and patent
BITEIH A Bl licensing contract signed and
MEFFTATER being implemented or proposed
to implement 99,533,149.36 74,405,718.64
&t Total 665,445,147.72 667,984,610.84

(2) EEHEFE

RIETABGENEREEREHED
& AEEREBRFRARES A
MREBEEMNREWT

(2) Operating lease commitments

According to the irrevocable lease agreement of premises,
the minimum lease payments in the future period/years
that the Group should pay are as follows:

EREEMN - ARKETT

Unit: RMB

201256 A30H 20115124311

As at As at

HAE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011

1FLAR(E1F) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 7,045,614.00 7,194,685.00
1A E2F AR 1-2 years (including 2 years)

(82%9F) 6,531,375.00 7,066,006.00
2F A E3F AR 2-3 years (including 3 years)

(83%F) 5,172,800.00 5,691,200.00

3 E Over 3 years 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00

A Total 53,749,789.00 54,951,891.00
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(1X).OTHER SIGNIFICANT ITEMS

e

Leases

Please refer to note V.27 for information of amounts payable
of the Group in respect of finance lease.

Segment Reporting

According to the internal organization structure, the
requirements of management and internal reporting system,
the Group defined its business into two reportable segments —
boring machine and turbo machines. Each reportable segment
is a separate business unit and provides different goods and
services. As each segment needs different technology and
marketing strategy, it needs separate management. The
management of the Group will review the financial information
of different segment regularly for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

(1) Information of gain or loss, assets and liabilities for the
reporting segments

In order to assess the performance of each segment and
to allocate resources, the management of the Group will
regularly review assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and
financial performance which attribute to each segment.
The basis of preparation of these information is as
follows:

Segment assets include current assets of all tangible assets,
intangible assets, accounts receivable, prepayments,
and inventories attributable to each segment, but do
not include deferred income tax assets caused by the
unrealized gains and losses of the Group’s internal
transactions, long-term equity investment and other
undistributed assets of headquarters. Segment liabilities
include accounts payable, advance from customers,
bank loans and expected liabilities attributable to each
segment.

Segment operating results is about the income generated
by each segment (including income from transactions
with outside parties and income from transactions among
segments), after deducting expenses caused by each
segment, depreciation, amortization and impairment
losses attributable to assets of each segment, and the net
interest expense arising from bank deposit and bank loans
attributable to each segment. The pricing of transactions
among segments is similar to that of transactions with
outside parties. The Group did not allocate investment
income and directors’ remuneration to each segment.
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2 dlsclosed below is the ¢
Group to calculate the pro 0SS)
of each segment or data not be| g

ZH : to management regularly.
201246 H30H 30 June 2012
2B ARKT
Unit: RMB
HRHED
BrzEasy  EEERENY AREEH RAWER fit
Business Elimination
Business segment of segment of among Undistributed
L Item boring machines  turho machines segments items Total
WARFMA Revenue from exteral customers 53410190797 97,575,394.98 - - 66113009
APRRAMA Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
HRENSELENRANE Investment income from jointly
controlled enterprises
and associated companies - - - 617,934.94 617,934.94
EHEERERL Impairment loss of assets
for the period 24,647,148.14 - - - 2464714814
FENEHER Depreciation and
amortization expenses 19,369,080.57 3,625,504.97 - - 22,994 585.54
BIBRHERA Interest income from
bank deposits 329,444.82 67,055.90 - - 39%,500.72
S Interest expense 351215042 752,183.08 - - 1,264,33350
HRGE(EEEEA-10T)  Totl profit (*-" for total loss) 8,113,756.51 715,881.43 S S TR E N 4,188,203
HEHER Income tax expenses (*~"for
(BRI - 5E5) income tat income) .9 441,57.10 - 1987747 731,407.54
FHE(FERN - 15IT) Net profits (*~" for net loss) 4,521,468.9 27463033 - -1,340,286.60 3,455,812.69
EEBE Total assets 2,144,706,296.83 420,653,888.23 -17,853,446.82 59,542,425.06 2,607,049,163.30
afE8E Tota iabltes 85351203606 3204825072 1785344682 - 1,157,706,840.06
EHERNEREEE ! Other significant non-cash items:
-REEMERENM - other non-cash expenses
EMFREER other than depreciation
and amortization 30,478,256.73 - - - 30,478,256.73
-HRERENRERR - long-term equity investment
WRERERE to jointly controlled enterprises
and associated companies - - - 58,687 515.89 58,687 515.89
- RERERENIMY - other increment of non-current
EpERGEELNE assets other than long-term
equity investment 48,700,686.82 500,140.71 - - 49,200,827.53
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201146 H30H

30 June 2011

TEEENM  ARKT

Unit: RMB
LA
BREBAD  BEREEAD ABES FHRER aif
Business Elimination
Business segment of segment of among Undistributed
&R Item boring machines  turbo machines segments items Total
HARFHA Revenue from extemal customers 8040646958 81,127,888.79 - - 881925813
PELRGLON Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
HBENARLRORENG Investment income from
jointly controlled enterprises
and associated companies - - - 2,996,157 41 2,996,157 41
EMERNEEX Impairment loss of assets for the period 141435397 - - - 041435397
nENREER Depreciation and amortization expenses 17,388,251.9 3,449,672.74 - - 20,837,924.03
FOREHEMA Interest income from bank deposis 2,674 8821473 - - 90,46147
iy Interest expense 739,259.53 765,018.43 - - 1,504,277.9
HEAE(SEEEN-15IT)  Total profit (*" for total loss) 37,933,466.38 -36,009.95 - 25763130 38,155,088.73
fEHER Income tar expenses
(BN - |5 ("~"for income tax income) -3,954,38.09 279,743.00 - 474499.40 4,148,994.49
SR (SBR[ - 57 Net profits (=" for net loss) 41,887,704.47 315,752.95 - 7313170 42,304,083.22
i3 Total assets 204031786899 436,483,861.81 -40,500,775.40 57763,288.87 2,494,084 244.27
e Total liabiltes 75342630448 33436544227 -40,500,775.40 - 104729097135
RHEENEREEE Other significant non-cash items:
-HEENERENM - other non-cash expenses
Ehincen other than depreciation and amortization 51,527,20890 - - - 51,527,208.90
-HBRELENLENR ~long-term equity investment to jointy controlled
R ERERE enterprises and associated companies - - - 57,585,916.56 57,585,916.56
-RARERE MM - other increment of non-current assets other
EERGERENE than long-term equity investment 55,026,935.07 1,327,016.66 - - 56,553.951.73

(2) @158

TRIVR T ANEEIR R E 5K H
BRANBEFPIRANGER  EhEP
PATFE B0 3 [ 2 AR 15 5 1D 58 B 3 =k AR 75

(2) Geographic Information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from external
customers. The geographical location of customers is

BEHBETH - based on the location at which the goods delivered or
the services were provided.
THEMN - AR¥T
Unit: RMB
HZEZ6A30H1L6{EA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
20126 201145
EHAB Item 2012 2011
A B KB Mainland China 613,916,717.28 876,219,932.25
B B International 17,760,585.67 8,972,649.12
a&t Total 631,677,302.95 885,192,581.37
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(1) FRURRBREPEROMMOT :

2)

O PR

1. Accounts receivable

customers:

COMPANY'’S FINANCIAL ST.

(1) Analysis of accounts receivable 'by

EHEN - ARKET

Unit: RMB

2012568308 2011128318

HAl Type of customers As at 30 June 2012  As at 31 December 2011
£=h Third party 356,909,625.91 340,328,421.27
o Related party 1,998,403.43 11,330,629.67
N Sub-total 358,908,029.34 351,659,050.94
B ERER Less: provision for bad and doubtful debt 176,067,435.77 153,990,342.37
At Total 182,840,593.57 197,668,708.57

RN IR BRI DT IO T

LY

Ageing

(2)  Ageing analysis of accounts receivable:

201256 A30H

As at 30 June 2012

EREEMN  ARETT

Unit: RMB
20115128318

As at 31 December 2011

TEUAR(E1E)
1E225(82%)
2EE3IF(E3F)
3L E

gt
iR

Ha

BRik B BUR N FER H R SART S ©

Within 1 year (including 1 year)
1-2 years (including 2 years)
2-3 years (including 3 years)
Over 3 years

100,305,712.39
80,943,419.29
56,755,746.05
120,903,151.61

104,681,157.63
95,827,346.73
62,773,342.74
88,377,203.84

Sub-total
Less: provision for bad and doubtful debt

358,908,029.34
176,067,435.77

351,659,050.94
153,990,342.37

Total

182,840,593.57

197,668,708.57

from the date of recognition.

The ageing of accounts receivable is calculated starting
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(3) [EYWBRAILTELE R (3) Analysis of accounts receivable by category
2B ARBT

Unit: RMB
012£64308 W1ENA31R
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
RagE SRER FEBE SEER
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Book balance and doubtful debts Book balance and doubtful debts
Fid £8 BEBiC%) &% tB1(%) i (%) £ thi(%)
EE Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)

EREEAT  Induidually significant

BEHIREE  and assessed individually for

EEORUES  impaiment “ - - - - 39688058 121012550346 255
RAKHETE  Collectively assessed for

EENERER  impairmentt

41 Group 1 (5 356,909,625.91 99.44 176,067 435.77 4933 300,699,615.45 85,51 142,734,838.91 4747
ity Group 2 (1) 199840343 0.56 - - 11,330,629.67 322 1,130,000.00 9.97
Eavr Sub-total of groups 358,908,029.34 100.00  176,067,435.77 4906 312,030245.12 83.73  143,864,838.91 4.1
Aif Total 358,908,029.34 100.00  176,067,435.77 351,659,050.94 10000 153,990,342.37
g WEeEEEASAZEERERNE Note*: This category included accounts receivable having been
WBR K individually assessed but not impaired.
REFEWEM LMD RIERERD The Group did not receive any collateral for the above
JEWER R B AR - accounts receivable with provision for bad and doubtful
debt.
(4) EAREEIE4SEEE AW EEIRER (4) There was no individually significant accounts receivable
R EAR K o with individual bad debt provision as at the end of the
period.
(5) Haw  BEERDITATRERES (5) Accounts receivables in groups with provision for bad
B FE U AR X - and doubtful debts using ageing analysis method:

EREEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
201256A30A 20115128318
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
RESE RESE
Book balance Book balance

©8 Efl(%) BRER £ HI(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
Rl Ageing Amount (%)  doubtful debts Amount (%)  doubtful debts
1EHR Within 1 year 98,551,308.96 27.61 5233,635.50  80,194,823.79 26.67 4,261,530.10
122% 1-2 years 80,943,419.29 268 23,682,652.65  80,536,396.62 2678 24,160,918.99
123F 2-3 years 56,755,746.05 1590  32,683,628.97  53,307,387.03 1773 3198443222
IENF Over 3 years 120,659,151.61 3381 114,467518.65  86,661,008.01 2882  82,327,957.60
At Total 356,909,625.91 100.00  176,067,435.77  300,699,615.45 100.00  142,734,838.91
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| b
During the period, no significant bad debt provis

(6) ANEARZARARIEEEE NSRRI (6) o
ZAREFE O YD o the accounts receivable was reversed or collected.
(7) ANEABAR B EE KRR EUER K (7) During the period, there was no significant write-off for
K% 38 o the accounts receivable.
(8) EWAENZEEI AEEMISH (8) Amounts of top five accounts receivable
SHE - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
1k FE WL BR X
BuERE BEAR RN TR &8 AR HBEMEEBI(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
Debtor with the Company Amount Ageing receivable (%)
F—HA E= 17,422,087.90 T E 4.85
1st Third party Over 1 year
4 E=F 10,668,000.00 T AR 2.97
2nd Third party Within 1 year
F=% F= 10,399,028.90 1F A+ 2.90
3rd Third party Over 1 year
EutE E= 8,177,400.00 T E 2.28
4th Third party Over 1 year
ER% E=F 5,964,307.69 T E 1.66
5th Third party Over 1 year
CE Total 52,630,824.49
BHREZAEPHEREIRAEER As names of the third party customers are confidential
EERDT KRARABRBEEAES commercial informaiton of the Group, we did not
T o disclose the specific names of such customers.
(9) LilispBEhEERIFEEARDG% (9) None of the above accounts receivable was due from

5% ) A ER IR AR E A
I8 o

shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
Company entitling voting rights.

(10) FEHBEBE S R

(10) Accounts receivable from related parties

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB

1 FE WL BR X

BuEHE Mzt NN | RES &8 HERRI L BI(%)

Percentage of

Relationship total accounts

Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivable (%)

ErRE (X)) 6 HEDE 1,754,403.43 0.49
Kunming TOS V). 6 Jointly controlled enterprise

RO ER (X)) 6 FRA] 244,000.00 0.07
Changsha Ser V). 6 Subsidiary

G Total 1,998,403.43 0.56
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2 HtbEWK
(1) EfbEEFIZREFERIDOMMT

Other receivables

(1) Analysis of other receivables by the type of customers:

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB

201256 A30H 20115124318

Bl Type of customers As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
F=5F Third party 14,352,002.36 15,439,858.98
E2)al Related party 7,519,952.86 8,132,695.97

NET Sub-total

=X Total

(2) EtbREFIZEREOTIT

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debt

21,871,955.22
5,035,398.87

23,572,554.95
3,595,344.13

16,836,556.35

19,977,210.82

(2) Ageing analysis of other receivables:

TEEN  ARET

Unit: RMB

201256 A30A 2011%12831H

Bk Ageing As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
TFUAA(E14E) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 9,480,258.39 14,508,931.01
1FEE2F(529F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 7,158,193.06 4,598,950.71
2FEEIF(E3F) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 2,988,406.57 3,015,855.68
3FEM Over 3 years 2,245,097.20 1,448,817.55
INET Sub-total 21,871,955.22 23,572,554.95
o EERERE Less: provision for bad and doubtful debt 5,035,398.87 3,595,344.13

B Total

Rk B E Al FE WK HE AR B RE B AR AT

o

16,836,556.35

19,977,210.82

The ageing of other receivables is calculated starting

from the date of recognition.

- IRt




(3) Analysis of other receivables by category: = =

(3) EMpEEERBEESTOT
BHEM - ARK
Unit: RMB
W1256A30R W1E128318
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
REgE SEER i SEER
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Book balance and doubtful debts Book balance and doubtful debts
Fid &8 H8(%) £ tBl(%) B61(%) i tBl(%)
B5 Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
BESEERUE  Individually significant
EREEEE  and assessed individually
WERERZ  for impaiment () - - - - 2031 19,7287 285
FEGHRRE  Collctively
ERMER assessed for
Jelst impairmentt
i Group 1 ) 14352,002.36 6562 503539887 35.08  15,094,281.62 64.03  3,398,621.26 2052
82 Group 2 (10) 751995286 3438 - - 15681993 6.66 - -
£ali Sub-total of groups 21,871,.955.22 100.00  5,035,398.87 2302 16,662,480.85 70.69  3,398,621.26 2040
H] Total 21,871,955.22 100.00  5,035,398.87 23,572,554.95 100.00  3,595,344.13
A WA EEEARAREARENE Note*: The type included other receivables having been
b FE LR © individually assessed but not impaired.

AEEWE M EFHIREREERD The Group did not receive any collateral for the above
E b E N SR A AR o other receivables with provision for bad and doubtful
debt.

(4) HIRMEEEIESEE AN BEBEAIRER (4) There was no individually significant other receivables
ZEAF B E b R R o with individual bad debt provision as at the end of the
period.

(5) HEFR  HERITETIRERER (5) Other receivables in groups with provision for bad and

B ELfth FE MK doubtful debts using ageing analysis method:
2REEN  ARBT
Unit: RMB

201266A30 2011%12831R
As at 30 June 2012 As at 31 December 2011
FRSE FRSE
Book halance Book balance

k] tA(%) BiRER E2 HB1(%) BiRER
Provision for Provision for
Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
& Ageing Amount (%) doubtful debts Amount (%) doubtful debts
1R Within 1 year 7,151,581.03 4983 337,968.80 11,156,731.22 3.9 554,819.09
1228 1-2 years 5,005,982.52 34.88  2,502,991.26  2,187,496.46 1449 1,093,748.23
1E3E 2-3 years 865,738.59 6.03 865,738.59 744,681.94 4.93 744,681.94
3ENE QOver 3 years 1,328,700.22 926 1,328,700.22  1,005,372.00 6.66  1,005,372.00
ait Total 14,352,002.36 100.00  5,035,398.87  15,094,281.62 100.00  3,398,621.26
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(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

AHEASEEZEERNE R
RERERER KA -

AEE AR R EBEEERNE R
AL

E WA 2 BRI ETIFR

(6)

(7)

(8)

During the period, no significant bad debt provision for
the other receivables was reversed or collected.

During the period, there was no significant write-off for
the other receivables.

Amounts of top five other receivables

ETHEN  ARKTT

Unit: RMB

i B At B WO

BB RN RES 8 AR e HBEEHIEL (%)

Percentage of

Relationship total other

Debtor with the Company Amount Ageing receivables (%)

fifeg -] FRF 6,600,326.15 —FAE 27.85
Xi'an Ser Subsidiary Over one year

S E=7 1,752,000.00  —%FLAE 7.43
2nd Third party Over one year

E=% E=7 1,308,400.00  —HFLAE 5.09
3rd Third party Over one year

BB BERE 919,626.71 —FE 3.95
Kunming TOS Jointly controlled enterprise Over one year

ERES E=F 800,000.00  —FM Lk 2.70
5th Third party Over one year

CEl Total 11,380,352.86

EisrEPEERSAARNAFS% (B
5% ) A £ FORBER (D OB ER B R o

(10) FEWKBEBE S AR

9)

None of the above other receivables was due from
shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
Company entitling voting rights.

(10) Other receivables from related parties

ERRENMN - ARKT

Unit: RMB

1k H A FE UK

BB K et BEAR R FBIR KX HBEERIEEFI(%)

Percentage of

Relationship total other

Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivables (%)

ERAEHT (x) 6 HBEhE 919,626.71 4.20
Kunming TOS Vi). 6 Jointly controlled

enterprise
AL ER (x) 6 FAF 6,600,326.15 30.18
Xi'an Ser vi). 6 Subsidiary
&t Total 7,519,952.86 34.38
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RIIRERSE
(1) RHEBRERESBWET :

Long-term equity investments

(1) Long-term equity investments by type are as follows:

EHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB

20126 A30H 2011512 A31H

As at As at

IEH Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
HFRAINEE Investment in subsidiaries 24,693,265.85 27,193,265.85

HABLEMNERE
HEBEPENRE

S i EBER S
gt

B OREE R

Investment in jointly controlled enterprises
Investment in associated companies
Other long-term equity investments

Sub-total

Less: impairment provision

43,566,045.60
13,976,470.29
2,000,000.00

47,500,223.66
14,424,357.29
2,000,000.00

84,235,781.74

91,117,846.80

2,000,000.00

3,500,000.00

CEll Total 82,235,781.74 87,617,846.80
(2) RERESERBEHELONTOT : (2) Analysis of changes in long-term equity investments
for the period is as follows:
BREEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
ERREENL
T o RhiAE
REEL  REERL  RAEHN AR 18
RERE BUBE MWD ARBE RRRO(N) RABMOW T-RORE MERR  NERE  REdH
Percentage of  Percentage of
shareholdingin  voting rights  Explanation
theinvested in the invested for difference Impairment
Investment Qpening Increase/ Closing ~ company ~ company ~between  Impaiment provision Cash dividend
BeCEN Invested company cost balance tecrease balance (%)(A) (%)) (A)and(B) provision for the period for the period
ERt-2E0T Under equity metho:
jointly controlled enterprises
RS Kunming T0S UT953399 4750022366 -3934,17806  43566,045.60 5000 5000 - - 5,000,000.00
BEL-BELT Under equity method:
associated companies
il Xian Ruite 1400000000 144435729 -447887.00 13976470.09 B B - - - -
AE-FA8 Under cost method: subsidiaries
BRER Xian Ser 2169326585 21,693,265.85 - 2169320585 500 6000 i loe - - -
ERsE General Machine 300000000 3000,00000 - 3000000.00 100.00 100.00 - - - -
BERR Fujian Kunji 250000000 250000000 -2,500,00000 - 5000 60.00  lote - - -
gt St VB 119326585 250000000 2469326585 - - -
AR 2R BRERE  Under cost method: otherlong-tem
equity investments
EE I Yurnan Cheng fang
Conper Products Plant 200000000 2,000,00000 - 2000000.00 4000 4000 - 200000000 - -
it Totd 6793279984 9111784680  -6.882,06506 8423578174 200000000 - 500000000

i ARFEZERRRRELLDIZ
BREARREZSEREANEETSH
EH)RORBELL I FETE - NABIRES
HZEFRAANPBMEEREEE
2] EUE AR R KR E R ERE
RAFZFRRF - WERAKAERZ
o

Note: The percentage of voting rights of Company in the
above companies is determined by the percentage to
total voting rights in the board of directors of the above
companies. The Company have control over the above
companies’ finance and operating decisions. Therefore,
the Company treats these companies as subsidiaries and
adopts cost method for accounting.
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associated companies:

Information of major jointly controlled enterprises and

Exé% %*ﬂﬂ?ﬁ EhEEEFAZ Please refer to Note VI.3 for information of major jointly
controlled enterprise and associated companies.

4. BEWA - EEAS

4. Operating income and operating costs

(1) BRERLA - EXZHAX (1) Operating income and operating costs
2BE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30H 1L6{E A HAM
For the six months ended 30 June

2012% 20115

HA Item 2012 2011
FEEBRA Operating income from principal

activities 531,027,425.05 797,374,010.01

EHeh o HEERYA  Including: Income from sales of goods 527,174,013.39 786,760,919.48
REEBRA Income from rendering

services 3,853,411.66 10,613,090.53

EMEBKA Other operating income 2,053,170.96 2,925,362.63

EERAEF Total operating income 533,080,596.01 800,299,372.64

DR Operating costs 396,054,285.03 598,303,102.87

(2) ERWRA(DEE)

(2) Operating income (by business)

THEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
EZ6A300L6EAHME
For the six months ended 30 June
20125 20115
2012 2011

EEWA 2% EERA EEMAE

Operating Operating Operating Operating

ES T Business income costs i costs

HINEREE MRS Sales and service of

boring machines  533,080,596.01  396,054,285.03  800,299,372.64  598,303,102.87

(3) XEGIAEEFPHEEIWANE (3) Operating income from the top five customers for the
D period

2BE - ARKT

Unit: RMB

HEERA

=ELON BRI EEBI(%)

Percentage to

Operating total operating

BAE Ranking income income (%)

B—% Tst 26,713,675.23 5.01

B4 2nd 25,782,051.28 4.84

F=% 3rd 19,444,444.42 3.65

g 4th 19,307,692.30 3.62

FERH 5th 15,549,572.65 2.92

R Total 106,797,435.88 20.04
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EIJJ:GT@HH:@F‘E’?HUEE%E}EE’Jﬂ 22

5

2 top 5 custdmers S
which involved commeroa. €

ﬁ o
BEWS 5. Investment income
BN AR¥T
Unit: RMB
HZ6H30H L6ERAEM
For the six months ended 30 June
BtaE 201245 201145
EAR Item Note 2012 2011
BmEAZENRH Income from long-term
AR & Wz equity investments
under equity method (+)(X). 3 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
RETRAIEEA Investment income from
& W= disposal of subsidiaries - 650,286.89
a5t Total 617,934.94 3,646,444.30

(1) BREDEIZENRMREREREE

(1) The amount of long-term equity investment income

WA under equity method:
HZ68308 618 A B
For the six months ended 30 June

20125 20115
WREEN Invested company 2012 2011
ERBE T Kunming TOS 1,065,821.94 3,322,334.50
[fiE-eiotss Xi‘an Ruite -447,887.00 -326,177.09
= Total 617,934.94 2,996,157.41
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6 iﬁ%l)lbi%*ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂ:

(1) BenEEpris

6. Related information of the cash flow statement

(1)  Supplementary information of the cash flow statement

EHEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
EZ6A30H LoEA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
2012F 20115
HrEN Supplemental information 2012 2011
1. BFABERAGALLETHHSRE . 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows
from operating activities:
bezlbd Net profit 7,028,991.92 37,416,138.74
n: BEREERE Add: Provision for impairment of assets 23,517,148.14 42,414,353.97
BEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 18,620,743.12 16,089,322.54
B EEHRE Amortization of intangible assets 880,170.61 1,298,928.75
REGHEREH Amortization of long-term deferred expenses 146,016.49 56,522.29
B Amortization of deferred income -102,650.10 -102,700.10
REETEEENEX Loss on disposal of fixed assets
(Megs AT — J5R3E51) ("=" for gain) - -159,425.74
B8 A (Wa Al — I5EE) Financial expenses (“~" for gain) 2,838,665.44 -766,703.41
BEBK (WAl — 158 3E51) Investment loss (“~" for gain) -617,934.94 -3,646,444.30
ERFMBHEAERD Decrease in deferred income tax assets
(SEnSA— ISR ET) (=" for increase) -3,292,613.83 -3,672,254.79

FEARED (MM
[— 53851
2R RIR R R D
(B IAT — ISR
REIEENIRR MM
(B IAT — ISR 53

RETPELNREREFR

2. RERREEENFLDER

RE MRS
B Re NSRS

ReRREEENFEME
CRUAIAT — 1551

Decrease in inventories (“~" for increase)

Decrease in operating receivable
("=" for increase)

Increase in operating payable
("=" for decrease)

Net cash flows from operating activities

2. Net movements in cash and
cash equivalents:
Closing balance of cash
Less: Opening balance of cash

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
("=" for decrease)

-56,415,206.90

-103,615,327.31

113,802,893.94

-79,343,956.85

115,093,679.43

89,011,718.86

2,790,896.58

-16,498,179.47

116,368,718.87
143,087,572.52

193,783,744.78
248,304,966.05

-26,718,853.65

-54,521,221.27
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v

() BHaofiEoZEYRIEL (2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents ~5
BREENL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126 H30H 2011%12H31H
As at As at
HE Item 30 June 2012 31 December 2011
—RE 1. Cash 116,368,718.87 143087572552

Hep: BlFRE

Including: cash on hand 186,003.69 440,099.83

AIpE R A bank deposits
R available on demand
RITER 116,182,715.18 142,647,472.69

i WEBRBEMRSNRESEEYIS
ERZRHNEEES LHRED
RENTHE -

(- - BRBEE

Note: the above disclosed cash and cash equivalents do not
include the amounts of monetary funds with restricted
usage and short-term investments.

(XI). Net current assets
SEE - ARET

Unit: RMB

2012%6830R 2011%12A31H 201256 A30R 2011%12H31H

A5E A%E L LN

As at As at As at As at

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2012 2011 2012 2011

EHE Item The Group The Group The Company The Company
MEEE Current assets 1,670,521,025.71  1,658,789,391.49  1,333,247,999.78 1,367,095,530.03

B RBAE

FRBEE

(O -REERRBAEE

Less: current liabilities 1,080,383,645.87  1,025,911,421.35 776,188,841.97 768,950,641.39

Net current assets 590,137,379.84 632,877,970.14 557,059,157.81 598,144,888.64

(XII). Total assets less current liabilities
LHEEN - ARET

Unit: RMB

201264308  2011F12A31H 201266308  2011%12A31H

PN | r5E PN PN

As at As at As at As at

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2012 2011 2012 2011

BH Item The Group The Group The Company The Company
BEAH Total assets 2,607,049,163.30  2,558,664,361.12  2,219,524,332.41  2,214,523,709.43

BRBRE

REERRYAR

Less: current liabilities 1,080,383,645.87  1,025,911,421.35 776,188,841.97 768,950,641.39

Total assets less current

liabilities 1,526,665,517.43  1,532,752,939.77  1,443,335,490.44  1,445,573,068.04
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1~ FEREE IR as B AT

B H

Supplemental Information

1. Non-Recurring Gains and Losses

TEE - ARKTT

Unit: RMB

BZE2012F

65300 L-61E B #if

For the six

months ended

Item 30 June 2012

At AE BB s M BUT
(LR
YR - =R
BZRS— IR EE

Government grants included in the
profit or loss for the period (other
than those closely related to the normal
operating activities of the Company and

E B F X HBT those subject to a standard fixed amount
HBIBRIN) and intervals in accordance with State policies) 13,142,000.00
B Eat I8 2 SN Other non-operating income and expenses
H & S MR other than the above
> H 545,254.23
FriStis &% Effect of income tax -2,053,298.07
DB RS % Z2E(Hik) Effect of minority interests (after tax) 178,290.68
Bt Total 11,812,246.84
2 JEEBEINGEKGEKIK 2. Return on Net Assets and Earnings per Share
KNEBIZBEESEMAOCAR T The return on net assets and earnings per share
A NT= B E GRS RS0 — prepared in accordance with No.9 of Rules for the
HEEWRENER W ENTE R Compilation and Submission of Information Disclosure
=) (2010F ) A R @+ 8| 87 by Public Offering Companies issued by China
HEHENEEERSRNERIKE Securities Regulatory Commission (2010 revised) and
m regulations of relevant accounting standards are as
follows:
BRWE
¥ Earnings per share
FEEREZ(%) EXRgRKE mESRWKE
Weighted average of Basic Diluted
Earnings during the return on net earnings earnings
HEHFE reporting period assets (%) per share per share

SBHNAFBER
BREF R

HRRIEE T \H@ S
BERARIEER
FCER B9 % M

Net earnings attributable to

the ordinary shareholders

of the Company 0.26% 0.0068 0.0068
Net earnings attributable to the

ordinary shareholders of the

Company excluding

non-recurring gains and losses -0.59% -0.0155 -0.0155

Bl ¢ cesEEesEreERAA 200 FHEE




N~ BEXHE &

HARRPEERRA
AR BAE BRI |wEK

1% NEHBAR

2 WEHAEPEIBESIEERELAD
FIFEZEBNMAE ARIXHNEREA
EHRB

3. 2012FFFERE

4 EH - %‘Z&*ﬁ@/\%‘ﬁnmziﬂﬁi
ERENEMERE

5. EEgYHEESREMQI2F¥F
EHREINEMBEZER

K #EE EIEABH2012F % F
F#&iﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%aﬂﬁ

28

ARREEE EF SAEEABRIART
202F ¥ FEREMBE M FETMERC

1. Financial statements signed and stamped by legal

representative and financial officer of the Company

2. Original copy of all documents and the drafts of
announcements as disclosed in newspapers as specified
by the CSRC during the reporting period

3. 2012 Interim Report

4. Written confirmation by directors and senior management
officers for the 2012 Interim Report

5.  Written approval by supervisory committee for 2012

Interim Report prepared by the Board

ENCS: Written confirmation by directors and senior
management officers for the 2012 Interim Report

DECLARATION

The board of directors (the “Board”), directors and senior
management officers of the Company warrant that there are no

B REMRMESERER - jﬁ%ﬁtﬁq*ﬁ’aﬁ false representations, misleading statements and material omissions
B EREMER R AEER REFEE - in the 2012 Interim Report of the Company, and are severally and
jointly responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness
of the content herein.
BRAAZET : Signature of declaratory persons:
BEx: Directors:
TH REER PR 2R /A
Wang Xing Zhang Xiaoyi Li Zhenxiong Guan Xin
= AR X B % g E
Gao Minghui Ye Nong Li Shunzhen Zhang Tao
ZIeAE XS RE £ H 28
Liu Minghui Li Dongru Chen Fusheng Xiao Jianming
SREBAE Senior management officers:
K OF ] B £ AR ®' =
Zhu Xiang Zhou Guoxing Xu Kunping Luo Tao
MEEERARKRAGERAR Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
EFg Board of directors
20129 8H27H 27 August 2012
K BEEeHEReRBEANQNFXFEREIN  ENCS: Written approval by supervisory committee for 2012 Interim Report
EREZER prepared by the Board
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BERER

AEZSHEZERUENQINEFFERSE)
(TRIFFRDETTERZ  REEEWT :

1 F*FHRRUNBREFTAER ER -
RAIERMARABEENENESER

= .

T E

2. ¥ERHOATNBRAFTEPEIESM L
BEZXHANEEBRT  FIEEMNGER
RS ESEEEMRREAREHNE
EEENMPABRRNEFER

3 ERBABRA RBEERSEXFRE
HNBZNWABBERRERENITRS °

E=x:
B’ 2 B OE
Shao Li Tang Hua

MREEEARKROERLAT
Exe

20128 A27H

OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Regarding the 2012 Interim Report (hereafter as the “Interim
Report”) provided by the Board, we have the following opinions:

il

The preparation of the Interim Report and the auditing
procedures are in strict compliance with laws and regulations,
the Articles of Association and rules of the Company’s internal
management system;

The content and format of the Interim Report were in strict
compliance with the regulations of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
information included in the Interim Report can truly reflect in
all respects the Company’s operating management and financial
status and other matters of the period;

Before providing the above opinions, we did not discover any
person related in the preparation of the Interim Report or any
auditing personnel has violated the rule of confidentiality.

Supervisors:

£ N REB
Cai Zheming Fan Hong Qin Jianzhong

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Supervisory Committee
27 August 2012
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